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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT, DATED SEPTEMBER 5, 2018  

 

 

NEW ISSUE  RATING: 
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY MOODY’S INVESTORS SERVICE:  “A1” 
 See “MISCELLANEOUS - BOND RATING” herein 

Subject to compliance by the City and the Utility Commission with certain covenants, in the opinion of 
Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois (“Bond Counsel”), under present law, interest on the Bonds is excludable 
from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and is not included as an item of tax preference 
in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations.  Bond Counsel is also of the opinion 
that, under existing laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “Commonwealth”), the Bonds are exempt from ad 
valorem taxation and interest on the Bonds is exempt from present Commonwealth income taxes.  See “TAX 
EXEMPTION” herein for a more complete discussion.  

$63,510,000* 
CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2018 

Dated: Date of Issuance Due:  September 15, as further described on the inside cover page 

The Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”) of the City of Owensboro, 
Kentucky (the “City”), are issuable only as fully-registered bonds, without coupons, and when issued will be registered 
in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, 
New York.  DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry 
form in the denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  Purchasers of the Bonds (the “Beneficial 
Owners”) will not receive certificates representing their interests in the Bonds.  So long as Cede & Co. is the registered 
owner of the Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the Bondholders or registered owners shall mean Cede & 
Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS—Book-Entry Only System” 
herein.   

Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on March 15 and September 15 of each year beginning on 
March 15, 2019.  So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondholder, such payments will be made by 
U.S. Bank National Association, Louisville, Kentucky, as paying agent and registrar (the “Paying Agent”) directly to 
such Bondholder.  Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC.  Distribution of 
such payments to Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and Indirect Participants, as more fully 
described herein.   

The Bonds are being issued on a parity with the City’s outstanding Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds, Series 2014, Water Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2015, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 
and any other parity bonds that may be issued in the future.  The Bonds and the interest thereon are payable solely from 
the revenues derived by the City from the operation of its water supply system (the “System”), all as described herein.  
The Bonds are limited obligations of the City and do not constitute an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of 
any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation. 

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to (a) refund certain of the City’s outstanding bonds, (b) finance various 
capital expenditures to the System, (c) fully fund the Bond Reserve Account (as defined herein), and (d) pay costs 
associated with the issuance of the Bonds. 

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as described herein under the caption “THE BONDS—
Optional Redemption” and “—Mandatory Redemption.”   

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the City and accepted by the Underwriter, subject to prior 
placement, withdrawal or modification of the offer without notice and subject to the approval of their validity by Bond 
Counsel, and subject to certain other conditions.  Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, will also act as 
Disclosure Counsel to the City.  Certain legal matters have been passed on for Owensboro Municipal Utilities by its 
counsel, Kamuf, Pace and Kamuf, Owensboro, Kentucky.  It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery 
through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about September 27, 2018.   

The date of this Official Statement is September __, 2018. 

___________________________________ 
*Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

 

$63,510,000* 
CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds 
Series 2018 

 
MATURITY SCHEDULE 
Base CUSIP:  691106 

 
MATURITY 

SEPTEMBER 15 
PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT* 

INTEREST  
RATE YIELD PRICE CUSIP(1) 

2019 $     980,000     
2020 1,010,000     
2021 1,055,000     
2022 1,100,000     
2023 1,140,000     
2024 1,425,000     
2025 1,480,000     
2026 1,545,000     
2027 1,605,000     
2028 1,665,000     
2029 1,735,000     
2030 1,810,000     
2031 1,880,000     
2032 1,950,000     
2033 2,025,000     
2034 2,095,000     
2035 2,165,000     
2036 960,000     
2037 995,000     
2038 1,035,000     
2039 1,075,000     
2040 1,115,000     
2041 3,425,000     
2042 3,565,000     
2043 3,715,000     
2044 3,865,000     
2045 4,020,000     
2046 4,185,000     
2047 4,355,000     
2048 4,535,000     

Note: After bids are received on the sale date, the City may in its discretion revise the principal 
amount of the Bonds; provided, that the principal amount of the Bonds shall not be 
increased or decreased by an amount in excess of 10%.  The Underwriter’s Discount shall 
be held constant on a per bond basis for any par revisions. 

 

                                                
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
(1) CUSIP data herein is provided by the CUSIP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American Bankers 

Association by S&P Capital IQ, a part of McGraw-Hill Companies Financial.  No representations are made as 
to the correctness of the CUSIP numbers.  These CUSIP numbers are subject to change after the issuance of the 
Bonds. 



 

 

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the City or ________________ 
___________________, __________ (the “Underwriter”), to give any information or to make any representations 
other than those contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offering described herein and if given or 
made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as statements having been authorized by the 
City, the Underwriter or any other entity.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the 
solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than the Bonds, nor shall there be any offer to sell or solicitation of 
an offer to buy the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such 
offer, solicitation or sale.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the securities described 
in it and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purposes. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the City is the source of all tables and statistical and financial information 
contained in this Official Statement.  The information contained in this Official Statement concerning DTC has been 
obtained from DTC.  The other information set forth herein has been furnished by the City or from other sources 
believed to be reliable.  The information and opinions expressed herein are subject to change without notice, and 
neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create 
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the date of this Official Statement. 

This Official Statement should be considered in its entirety and no one factor considered more or less 
important than any other by reason of its position in this Official Statement.  Where statutes, reports or other 
documents are referred to herein, reference should be made to such statutes, reports or other documents for more 
complete information regarding the rights and obligations of parties thereto, facts and opinions contained therein and 
the subject matter thereof. 

Any statements made in this Official Statement, including the Exhibits and Appendices, involving matters 
of opinion or estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, 
and no representation is made that any of such estimates will be realized.  This Official Statement contains certain 
forward-looking statements and information that are based on the City’s beliefs as well as assumptions made by and 
information currently available to the City.  Such statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions.  Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions 
prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or expected. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

For purposes of compliance with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this document, 
as the same may be supplemented or corrected by the City from time-to-time, may be treated as an Official 
Statement with respect to the Bonds described herein and is “deemed final” by the City as of the date hereof (or of 
the date of any supplement or correction) except for the omission of certain information permitted to be omitted 
pursuant to such Rule. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS 
WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE 
THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE 
DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL 
STATEMENT.  ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$63,510,000* 
CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

WATER REVENUE REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS 
SERIES 2018 

INTRODUCTION 

The following introductory information is subject in all aspects to more complete 
information contained elsewhere in this Official Statement.  The order and placement of 
materials in this Official Statement, including the appendices hereto, are not to be deemed to be a 
determination of relevance, materiality or relative importance, and this Official Statement, 
including the cover page and appendices, should be considered in its entirety.  The offering of 
the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the Official Statement. 

This Official Statement, including the cover page and Appendices hereto (the “Official 
Statement”), is furnished to prospective purchasers in connection with the sale and delivery of 
$63,510,000* aggregate principal amount of Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2018 (the “Bonds”), by the City of Owensboro, Kentucky (the “City”). 

Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement, unless defined elsewhere herein, have 
the definitions ascribed to such terms under the Bond Ordinance (as hereinafter defined).  

This Official Statement contains “forward-looking statements” that are based upon the 
City’s current expectations and its projections about future events.  When used in this Official 
Statement, the words “project,” “estimate,” “intend,” “expect,” “scheduled,” “pro-forma” and 
similar words identify forward-looking statements.  Forward-looking statements are subject to 
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and factors that are outside of the control of the City.  
Actual results could differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking 
statements.  Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking 
statements, which speak only as of the date hereof.  Neither the City nor any other party plans to 
issue any updates or revisions to these forward-looking statements based on future events. 

THE BONDS 

AUTHORIZATION 

The Bonds are being issued by the City pursuant to an ordinance (as supplemented by a 
bond order, the “Bond Ordinance”) adopted by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of 
the City on the 21st day of August, 2018, pursuant to authority given to the City in the Statutes 
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky (the “Commonwealth”), including among others, 

                                                
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
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Section 96.350 to 96.510, inclusive, and Sections 58.010 to 58.140, inclusive, all of the 
Kentucky Revised Statutes (the “Act”).  The Bonds are issued on a parity with the City’s 
outstanding Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2014 (the “Series 2014 
Bonds”), Water Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2015 (the “Series 2015 Bonds”) and 
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (the “Series 2016 Bonds” and, together with the 
Series 2014 Bonds and the Series 2015 Bonds, the “Currently Outstanding Bonds”), and any 
other Parity Bonds that may be issued in the future.  The Bonds are being issued for the purpose 
of (i) financing various capital expenditures to the System, including (a) construction of 
approximately 14,250 feet of new 36 inch finished water transmission main from the Cavin 
Water Treatment Plant (the “Cavin Plant”) to tie into the existing distribution system and 
approximately 10,100 feet of new 8 inch waste sludge lines from the Cavin Plant to OMU’s 
existing sludge lagoons, (b) expansion of the capacity of the Cavin Plant by construction of two 
new 10 MGD treatment trains at the Cavin Plant including a new 2.5 million gallon clearwell, 
(c) miscellaneous improvements and modifications to the existing facilities at the Cavin Plant to 
accommodate the construction and operation of the two new 10 MGD treatment trains and 
(d) miscellaneous improvements, repairs and replacements throughout the System (collectively, 
the “Project”); (ii) refunding the City’s outstanding Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds, Series 2009 (the “Series 2009 Bonds”); (iii) fully funding the Bond Reserve Account; 
and (iv) paying the costs of issuance for the Bonds.  See the section herein captioned “PLAN OF 
FINANCE.” 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

The Bonds are payable solely from the Revenues derived from the operation of the 
System, and are secured ratably and equally with the Currently Outstanding Bonds and such 
additional Parity Bonds as may be issued in the future.  From and after the delivery of the Bonds, 
there will be deposited to the Sinking Fund of the Water Revenue Fund of the City, and held, in 
cash and investments, a fractional amount of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding 
interest payment date on the Outstanding Bonds, Currently Outstanding Bonds and Parity Bonds 
and also a fractional amount of the principal becoming due or subject to mandatory redemption 
on the next succeeding principal maturity or mandatory redemption date of Outstanding Bonds, 
Currently Outstanding Bonds and Parity Bonds until there has been accumulated and held, in 
cash and investments, in said Sinking Fund in or before the month preceding such maturity date 
of interest or maturity or mandatory redemption date of principal, an amount sufficient to pay 
such principal or interest, or both.  In computing the fractional amount to be set aside each month 
in said Sinking Fund, the fraction will be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside 
in said Sinking Fund and will be available for the prompt payment of such principal of and 
interest on all Outstanding Bonds, Currently Outstanding Bonds and Parity Bonds and will be 
not less than 1/6th of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date and 
not less than 1/12th of the principal becoming due or subject to mandatory redemption on the 
next succeeding principal payment or mandatory redemption date on all Outstanding Bonds, 
Currently Outstanding Bonds and Parity Bonds until there is sufficient money in said Fund to 
pay such principal or interest, or both.  Credits to said Sinking Fund may be suspended in any 
relevant Bond Year at such time as there shall be a sufficient sum, held in cash and investments, 
in said Sinking Fund to meet principal and interest requirements in said Sinking Fund for the 
balance of such Bond Year, but such credits will again be resumed at the beginning of the next 
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Bond Year.  All moneys in said Sinking Fund will be used only for the purpose of paying interest 
on and principal of Outstanding Bonds, Currently Outstanding Bonds and Parity Bonds as set 
forth in the section entitled “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE” 
herein.  The Bonds are further secured by the Bond Reserve Account, as further described in the 
section entitled “BOND RESERVE ACCOUNT” below. 

The issuance of the Bonds as Parity Bonds is permitted under the ordinances authorizing 
the Currently Outstanding Bonds.  See “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND 
ORDINANCE – Parity Bonds” herein.  The City has received the report of Burns & McDonnell, 
Kansas City, Missouri, as consulting engineers (the “Consulting Engineer’s Report”).  The 
Consulting Engineer’s Report demonstrates that the Adjusted Net Revenues of the System equal 
not less than 110% of Maximum Annual Debt Service in each Fiscal Year for all Outstanding 
Bonds as computed immediately after the issuance of the Bonds.  The projected Net Revenues 
through the fiscal years ending May 31, 2023, are set forth in the coverage table herein under 
“THE SYSTEM—Summary of Revenues and Expenses and Debt Service Coverage.”   

BOND RESERVE ACCOUNT 

A Bond Reserve Account is established by the City in the Bond Ordinance and amounts 
therein shall be used at any time when there are insufficient funds available within the Sinking 
Fund (as described under “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE—Flow 
of Funds”) to pay debt service on the Outstanding Bonds (as hereinafter defined).  On the date of 
issuance of the Bonds, the amount on deposit in the Bond Reserve Account will be not less than 
the Reserve Requirement.  The Reserve Requirement is an amount equal to the Maximum 
Annual Debt Service (as hereinafter defined) on all Outstanding Bonds.  In the event of a 
withdrawal from the Bond Reserve Account resulting in the amount on deposit to the credit 
thereof being less than the Reserve Requirement, the City will replenish the Bond Reserve 
Account to the Reserve Requirement at the rate of 1/60th of the Reserve Requirement each 
month.  See “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE—Flow of Funds” 
herein. 

DESCRIPTION 

The Bonds will be issued in the principal amount of $63,510,000*, will be dated the date 
of issuance thereof, and will consist of fully registered bonds without coupons in the 
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  The Bonds will mature on 
September 15 in the years and in the principal amounts set forth on the inside cover page of this 
Official Statement.  Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on March 15 and 
September 15 in each year, beginning on March 15, 2019 (each, an “Interest Payment Date”).  
Principal is payable at the office maintained for the purpose of U.S. Bank National Association, 
Louisville, Kentucky, paying agent (the “Bond Registrar” and the “Paying Agent”).  Interest 
will be paid to the person appearing as the registered owner thereof at the close of business on 
the “Record Date” for such interest by check or draft mailed by the Paying Agent to the 
                                                
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
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Registered Owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar or 
at such other address as is furnished to the Bond Registrar in writing by such Registered Owner.  
The Record Date will be the first day of the month preceding any regular interest payment date 
or a redemption on the 15th day of any month and the 15th day preceding any other interest 
payment date which may be occasioned by a redemption of Bonds on a day other than the 
15th day of any month.  Cross-reference is made to the discussion under the caption “Book-Entry 
Only System.” 

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION 

Bonds maturing on and after September 15, 2028, are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity in whole or in part, and if in part, in such order of maturities as selected by the City 
acting through its Utility Commission (the “Utility Commission”), and if less than an entire 
maturity, in integral multiples of $5,000, selected by lot, on September 15, 2027, and on any date 
thereafter, at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued 
interest to the redemption date. 

MANDATORY REDEMPTION 

Bonds maturing on the dates set forth below are Term Bonds subject to mandatory 
redemption by operation of the Sinking Fund and are subject to respective mandatory sinking 
fund redemption requirements prior to maturity in the following principal amounts on 
September 15 of the respective years at the redemption price equal to the principal amount 
thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, as follows: 

SEPTEMBER 15, 20__ 

20__ $            
20__  
20__**  

___________________________________ 
** Final maturity 

NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 

In the event of any such redemption, the Bond Registrar will give written notice of the 
City’s intention to redeem and pay said Bonds or any of them by first class mail to the registered 
owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register.  Each of said 
notices are to be mailed at least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the redemption date. 

REDEMPTION PROCEDURES 

With respect to an optional redemption of any Bond or Bonds, unless moneys sufficient 
to pay the redemption price of and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received 
by the Bond Registrar prior to the giving of the notice of redemption, such notice may, at the 
option of the City, state that such redemption shall be conditional upon the receipt of such 



 

 -5- 

moneys by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the date fixed for redemption. If such moneys are 
not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, the City shall not redeem such Bonds, 
and the Bond Registrar shall give notice, in the same manner in which the notice of redemption 
shall have been given, that such moneys were not so received and that such Bonds will not be 
redeemed. 

The Bond Registrar shall proceed to redeem Term Bonds subject to mandatory 
redemption without further order or direction from the City whatsoever.  For an optional 
redemption, the City shall, at least 45 days prior to a redemption date (unless a shorter time 
period shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar), notify the Bond Registrar of such redemption 
date and of the maturities and principal amounts of Bonds to be redeemed. For purposes of any 
redemption of less than all of the Bonds of a single maturity, the particular Bonds or portions of 
Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot not more than 60 days prior to the redemption date 
by the Bond Registrar for the Bonds of such maturity by such method of lottery as the Bond 
Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate; provided, that such lottery shall provide for the 
selection for redemption of Bonds or portions thereof so that any $5,000 Bond or $5,000 portion 
of a Bond shall be as likely to be called for redemption as any other such $5,000 Bond or $5,000 
portion. The Bond Registrar shall promptly notify the City in writing of the Bonds or portions of 
Bonds selected for redemption and, in the case of any Bond selected for partial redemption, the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Unless waived by the registered owner of Bonds to be 
redeemed, official notice of any such redemption shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf 
of the City by mailing the redemption notice by first class mail not less than 30 days and not 
more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to each registered owner of the Bond or 
Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register (as hereinafter defined) or at 
such other address as is furnished in writing by such registered owner to the Bond Registrar. All 
official notices of redemption shall include the name of the Bonds and at least the information as 
follows: 

 (a) the redemption date; 

 (b) the redemption price; 

 (c) if less than all of the outstanding Bonds of a particular maturity are to be 
redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of partial redemption of Bonds within such 
maturity, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed; 

 (d) a statement that on the redemption date the redemption price will become 
due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption and that 
interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and 

 (e) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the 
redemption price, which place of payment shall be the office of the Bond Registrar 
maintained for the purpose. 

For an optional redemption, unless moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price and interest on 
the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been received by the Bond Registrar prior to the giving of 
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such notice of redemption, such notice may, at the option of the City, state that said redemption 
shall be conditional upon the receipt of such moneys by the Bond Registrar on or prior to the 
date fixed for redemption. If such moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and 
effect, the City shall not redeem such Bonds, and the Bond Registrar shall give notice, in the 
same manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that such moneys were not so 
received and that such Bonds will not be redeemed. Official notice of redemption having been 
given as described, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed shall, subject to the 
provision for conditional redemption as stated above, become due and payable on the redemption 
date at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the City shall 
default in the payment of the redemption price), such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to 
bear interest. Neither the failure to mail such redemption notice, nor any defect in any notice so 
mailed, to any particular registered owner of a Bond, shall affect the sufficiency of such notice 
with respect to other registered owners. Notice having been properly given, failure of a registered 
owner of a Bond to receive such notice shall not be deemed to invalidate, limit or delay the effect 
of the notice or redemption action described in the notice. Such notice may be waived in writing 
by a registered owner of a Bond entitled to receive such notice, either before or after the event, 
and such waiver shall be the equivalent of such notice. Waivers of notice by registered owners 
shall be filed with the Bond Registrar, but such filing shall not be a condition precedent to the 
validity of any action taken in reliance upon such waiver. In lieu of the foregoing notice, so long 
as the Bonds are held in Book Entry Form, notice may be given as provided in the Letter of 
Representations, and the giving of such notice shall constitute a waiver by the Depository and its 
Nominee, as registered owner, of the foregoing notice. Upon surrender of such Bonds for 
redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be paid by the Bond Registrar at the 
redemption price. The procedure for the payment of interest due as part of the redemption price 
shall be as herein provided for payment of interest otherwise due. Upon surrender for any partial 
redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Bond or Bonds 
of like tenor, of authorized denominations, of the same maturity, and bearing the same rate of 
interest in the amount of the unpaid principal. If any Bond or portion of Bond called for 
redemption shall not be so paid upon surrender thereof for redemption, the principal shall, until 
paid or duly provided for, bear interest from the redemption date at the rate borne by the Bond or 
portion of Bond so called for redemption. All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be 
cancelled and destroyed by the Bond Registrar and shall not be reissued.  Upon the payment of 
the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each check or other transfer of funds issued for 
such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being 
redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. As part of its duties hereunder, the 
Bond Registrar shall prepare and forward to the City a statement as to notices given with respect 
to each redemption together with copies of the notices as mailed and published. 

REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 

The Bond Registrar will maintain a Bond Register for the registration, transfer and 
exchange of the Bonds.  Bonds may be transferred or exchanged only on the Bond Register 
maintained by the Bond Registrar upon compliance with the terms, conditions and limitations set 
forth in the Bond Ordinance and upon payment of any tax, fee or other governmental charge 
required to be paid with respect to any such registration, transfer or exchange. 
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BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as 
fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or 
such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One 
fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate 
principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of 
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” 
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” 
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act.  DTC holds and 
provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate 
and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s 
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  
Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding 
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its 
regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. 
and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations 
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or 
indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has an S&P Global Ratings rating of “AA+.”  The 
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the SEC.  More information about DTC 
can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest 
of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the 
Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written 
confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive 
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their 
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into 
the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries 
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, 
except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC 
are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as 
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and 
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their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any 
change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such 
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their 
customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by 
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may 
wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with 
respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the 
Bond documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the 
nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to 
Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and 
addresses to the Registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are 
being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct 
Participant in such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with 
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI 
Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as 
possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting 
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date 
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to 
Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  
DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and 
corresponding detailed information from the City or Registrar, on payable date in accordance 
with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with 
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and 
will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Registrar, or the City, subject to 
any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of 
redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the 
City or the Registrar, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the 
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the 
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at 
any time by giving reasonable notice to the City or the Registrar.  Under such circumstances, in 
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the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed 
and delivered. 

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and 
delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been 
obtained from DTC, and the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

The City will have no responsibility or obligation to any Securities Depository, any 
Participants in the Book-Entry System or the Beneficial Owners with respect to (a) the accuracy 
of any records maintained by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (b) the payment by the 
Securities Depository or by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in 
respect of the principal amount or redemption price of, or interest on, any Bonds; (c) the delivery 
of any notice by the Securities Depository or any Participant; (d) the selection of the Beneficial 
Owners to receive payment in the event of any partial redemption of the Bonds; or (e) any other 
action taken by the Securities Depository or any Participant. 

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers 
through DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates will be 
printed and delivered to DTC.  

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been 
obtained from sources that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for 
the accuracy thereof. 

REGISTRATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF BONDS UPON DISCONTINUANCE OF BOOK-ENTRY 
ONLY SYSTEM 

The Paying Agent will keep or cause to be kept the Bond Register at its principal 
payment office or such other office designated by the Paying Agent.  Upon surrender of any 
Bond at the principal payment office of the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent shall transfer or 
exchange Bonds as provided in the Resolution.   

Any Bond may be transferred upon the Bond Register by the person in whose name it is 
registered and shall be accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or 
authorization for exchange, in a form and with guarantee of signature satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent, duly executed by the Registered Owner thereof or by the Registered Owner’s duly 
authorized agent.  The Owner requesting such transfer or exchange will be required to pay any 
additional costs or fees that might be incurred in the secondary market with respect to such 
exchange.  No transfer or exchange of any Bond shall be required of the City and the Paying 
Agent after such Bond has been called for redemption after notice of such redemption has been 
mailed.  In the event any Registered Owner fails to provide a correct taxpayer identification 
number to the Paying Agent, the Paying Agent may make a charge against such Registered 
Owner sufficient to pay any governmental charge required to be paid as a result of such failure. 
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND ORDINANCE 

The following is a summary of certain terms and provisions of the Bond Ordinance.  The 
statements contained herein do not purport to be complete and this summary is qualified in its 
entirety by reference to the Bond Ordinance, copies of which may be obtained from the City.   

Certain series of the Currently Outstanding Bonds may have more restrictive covenants 
applicable to such series due to covenants made with municipal bond insurance providers.  In 
addition, with respect to the Currently Outstanding Bonds, Bondholders rights in the event of 
default of such series may be ceded to the respective bond insurer so long as the insurer is not in 
default (i.e., has been making payment on such bonds).   

References are made throughout this summary to the City, although in many provisions, 
it is the City acting through its Utility Commission. 

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 

Set forth below are certain definitions of certain terms used herein.  Other capitalized 
terms used herein are as defined in the Official Statement or the Bond Ordinance. 

“Bond Year” for a series of bonds means a twelve-month period beginning the day after 
principal of Outstanding Bonds of any series are annually to become due (such day of the year 
being the initial date) and ending on the day preceding the next initial date; e.g., for bonds with 
principal due on September 15 of various years, the Bond Year would be September 16 of a 
given year through September 15 of the next year. 

“Defeasance Obligations” means (i) direct full faith and credit obligations of the United 
States of America not subject to redemption by the issuer (“Directs”), (ii) certificates of 
participation in a trust comprised exclusively of Directs or cash, which certificates are 
noncallable and nonredeemable, or (iii) obligations the complete and timely payment of which is 
fully guaranteed by the United States of America, which obligations are noncallable and 
nonredeemable. 

“Fiscal Year” means a twelve-month period beginning June 1 of a given year and ending 
on May 31 of the following year, or such other fiscal year as the Utility Commission may select. 

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means an amount of money equal to the highest future 
principal and interest requirement of all Outstanding Bonds required to be deposited into the 
Sinking Fund continued and maintained by the Bond Ordinance in any Fiscal Year, including 
and subsequent to the Bond Year in which the computation is made; and, provided, that any 
Outstanding Bonds required to be redeemed pursuant to mandatory redemption from said 
Sinking Fund shall be treated as falling due on the date required to be redeemed (except in the 
case of failure to make any such mandatory redemption) and not on the stated maturity date of 
such Outstanding Bonds. 

“Net Revenues” means Revenues minus Operation and Maintenance Costs. 
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“Operation and Maintenance Costs” means all costs of operating, maintaining and 
routine repair of the System, including wages, salaries, costs of materials and supplies, taxes, 
power, fuel, insurance, purchase of water services (including all payments by the City pursuant 
to long term contracts for such services to the extent provided in such contracts); but excluding 
debt service, depreciation, or any reserve requirements; and otherwise determined in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles for municipal enterprise funds.   

“Outstanding Bonds” means the Currently Outstanding Bonds, the Bonds and Parity 
Bonds which are outstanding and unpaid; provided, however, such term shall not include any 
such Bonds or Parity Bonds (i) which have matured and for which moneys are on deposit with 
proper paying agents, or are otherwise properly available, sufficient to pay all principal thereof 
and interest thereon, or (ii) the provision for payment of which has been made by the City by the 
deposit in an irrevocable trust or escrow of funds, which may be invested in Defeasance 
Obligations, the principal of and interest on which will be sufficient, with any funds left 
uninvested, to pay at maturity or as called for redemption all the principal of and interest on such 
Bonds or Parity Bonds. 

“Parity Bonds” means a bond or bonds or any other obligation to be issued subsequent in 
time to the Bonds and which will share ratably and equally in the income and revenues of the 
System with the Outstanding Bonds. 

“Reserve Requirement” means an amount equal to the Maximum Annual Debt Service. 

“Revenues” means all gross revenues or income from whatever source derived from the 
System, including (i) investment income; (ii) connection, permit and inspection fees and the like; 
(iii) penalties and delinquency charges; (iv) capital development, reimbursement, or recovery 
charges and the like; (v) annexation or pre-annexation charges insofar as designated by the Board 
as paid for System connection or service; but excluding expressly (a) non-recurring income from 
the sale of property of the System; (b) governmental or other grants; (c) advances or grants made 
from the City; and as otherwise determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles for municipal enterprise funds. 

“System” means the complete waterworks and facilities of the City within and without 
the corporate limits of the City, and all waterworks properties of every nature hereafter owned 
and operated by the City, including all extensions and improvements made by the City while any 
of the Bonds remain Outstanding Bonds as defined, and including but not limited to all real and 
personal property of every nature comprising part of or used or useful in connection with the 
waterworks system, and including all appurtenances, contracts, leases, franchises and other 
intangibles. 

“Tax-exempt” means, with respect to the Bonds, the status of interest paid and received 
thereon as excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes 
and as not included as an item of tax preference in computing the alternative minimum tax for 
individuals and corporations under the Code.  
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“Term Bonds” means Bonds subject to mandatory redemption by operation of the 
Sinking Fund. 

“Utility Commission” means the Utility Commission of the City. 

“Water Fund” means the “Water Revenue Fund of the City of Owensboro.” 

REGISTRATION OF BONDS; PERSONS TREATED AS OWNERS 

The City shall cause books (the Bond Register) for the registration and for the transfer of 
the Bonds as provided in the Bond Ordinance to be kept at the office of the Bond Registrar 
maintained for the purpose.  The City is authorized to prepare, and the Bond Registrar shall keep 
custody of, multiple Bond blanks executed by the City for use in the transfer and exchange of 
Bonds.  Any Bond may be transferred or exchanged in the manner set forth in the Bond 
Ordinance.  Upon surrender for transfer or exchange of any Bond, the City shall execute and the 
Bond Registrar shall authenticate, date and deliver a new fully registered Bond or Bonds of like 
tenor, of the same maturity, bearing the same interest rate, of authorized denominations, for a 
like aggregate principal amount.  The Bond Registrar shall not be required to transfer or 
exchange any Bond during the period from the close of business on the Record Date for an 
interest payment to the opening of business on such interest payment date or during the period of 
15 days preceding the giving of notice of redemption of Bonds or to transfer or exchange any 
Bond all or a portion of which has been called for redemption.  The execution by the City of any 
fully registered Bond shall constitute full and due authorization of such Bond, and the Bond 
Registrar shall thereby be authorized to authenticate, date and deliver such Bond.  The person in 
whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 
thereof for all purposes, and payment of the principal or redemption price of or interest on any 
Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof or said owner’s 
legal representative.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No service charge shall be 
made for any transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the City or the Bond Registrar may require 
payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed 
in connection with any transfer or exchange of Bonds except in the case of the issuance of a 
Bond or Bonds for the unredeemed portion of a Bond surrendered for redemption. 

BONDS LIMITED OBLIGATIONS 

The Bonds shall be payable solely from the Revenues as derived from the operation of 
the System, and shall not constitute an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provision or limitation. 

FLOW OF FUNDS 

From and after the delivery of any Bonds, the Revenues shall be set aside into the Water 
Revenue Fund and used and apportioned each month as follows: 
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 A. Sinking Fund.  There shall be deposited to the Sinking Fund a fractional 
amount of the interest becoming due on the next succeeding interest payment date on 
Outstanding Bonds and also a fractional amount of the principal becoming due or subject 
to mandatory redemption on the next succeeding principal maturity or mandatory 
redemption date of Outstanding Bonds until there shall have been accumulated and held 
in the Sinking Fund an amount sufficient to pay such principal or interest, or both.  The 
fraction shall be so computed that a sufficient amount will be set aside in said Fund and 
will be available for the prompt payment of such principal of and interest on all 
Outstanding Bonds and shall be not less than 1/6th of the interest becoming due on the 
next succeeding interest payment date and not less than 1/12th of the principal becoming 
due or subject to mandatory redemption on the next succeeding principal payment or 
mandatory redemption date on all Outstanding Bonds until there is sufficient money in 
said Fund to pay such principal or interest, or both.  If different series of Outstanding 
Bonds have different Bond Years, the requirement of depositing 1/6th of interest and 
1/12th of principal shall be applied separately with respect to each series.  Credits to the 
Sinking Fund may be suspended in any relevant Bond Year at such time as there shall be 
a sufficient sum in said Fund to meet principal and interest requirements for the balance 
of such Bond Year, but such credits shall again be resumed at the beginning of the next 
Bond Year.  All moneys in said Fund (“Bond Moneys”) shall be used only for the 
purpose of paying interest on and principal of Outstanding Bonds as follows: 

 (1) Bond Moneys shall be applied to the payment of interest when due 
and principal or redemption price when due at maturity or as redeemed pursuant 
to mandatory redemption from the Sinking Fund, or 

 (2) On or before 65 days preceding any mandatory redemption date, 
Bond Moneys up to the amount of the redemption requirement on such mandatory 
redemption date plus interest due on related Term Bonds on such date may be 
applied (a) to the purchase of Term Bonds of the maturity for which such 
mandatory redemption requirement was established at prices (including 
commissions and charges, if any) not exceeding par and accrued interest to such 
mandatory redemption date or (b) to the redemption of such Bonds, without 
premium, pursuant to optional redemption provisions applicable thereto.  Upon 
the purchase or redemption of Term Bonds of any maturity, an amount equal to 
the principal amount of such Bonds shall be deducted from such mandatory 
redemption requirement thereafter to become due on such Bonds and any excess 
over the amount of such requirement shall be deducted from the future 
requirement for such Bonds as the City shall determine. 

 B. Bond Reserve Account.  A Bond Reserve Account within the Sinking Fund 
is established.  At the time of the delivery of any Bonds, there shall be deposited to the 
credit of the Bond Reserve Account an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement.  The 
Bond Reserve Account shall be maintained in said amount.  In the event of a withdrawal 
from the Bond Reserve Account resulting in the amount on deposit to the credit thereof 
being less than the required amount, the City covenants to replenish the Bond Reserve 
Account to the required amount at the rate of 1/60th of the Reserve Requirement each 
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month.  In the event Parity Bonds are issued, the City will accumulate to the credit of the 
Bond Reserve Account the amount of the Reserve Requirement at the rate of such 
amount per month such that in not less than 60 months after delivery and with credits 
each month in the amount of not less than 1/60th of the difference between Reserve 
Requirement and the amount on deposit to the credit of this Account at the time of such 
delivery.  Amounts to the credit of the Bond Reserve Account shall be used to pay 
principal of or interest on the Outstanding Bonds at any time when there are insufficient 
funds available within the Sinking Fund to pay the same. 

Credit Facility within the Bond Reserve Account.  The City, acting by and through 
the Utility Commission, may satisfy all or a portion of the Reserve Requirement in the 
Bond Reserve Account by causing to be so credited to the Bond Reserve Account a 
surety bond, a line of credit, an insurance policy or a letter of credit (a “Credit Facility”) 
in an amount which together with other moneys on deposit in such Bond Reserve 
Account is equal to the Reserve Requirement (or such lesser proportional amount prior to 
the date the full Reserve Requirement is met).  In the event the Bond Reserve Account is 
funded with both moneys and a Credit Facility, any withdrawals from such Bond Reserve 
Account pursuant to the provisions of the Bond Ordinance shall be made first from such 
moneys (or the liquidation of investments made therewith) and second from such Credit 
Facility.  The Credit Facility shall be payable (upon the giving of notice as required 
thereunder) on any date on which moneys will be required to be withdrawn from the 
Bond Reserve Account and applied to the payment of the principal of or interest on the 
Outstanding Bonds, the Bonds and Parity Bonds for which payments cannot be made by 
amounts credited to the Sinking Fund.  The insurer providing such surety bond, line of 
credit or insurance policy shall be an insurer whose municipal bond insurance policies 
insuring the payment of the principal of and interest on municipal bond issues results in 
such issues being rated in the highest rating category by any two of the three most widely 
used municipal ratings agencies (currently known as Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings, 
Fitch Ratings, and Moody’s Investors Service).  The letter of credit issuer shall be a bank 
or trust company, acceptable to any municipal bond insurance company which has 
insured a series of Bonds or Parity Bonds, and which is rated not lower than the second 
highest rating category by any two such agencies, and the letter of credit itself shall be 
rated in the highest category of either such rating agency.  The insurance policy, line of 
credit or surety bond must extend for the life of the Bonds and Parity Bonds and must be 
unconditional and irrevocable.  If a disbursement is made pursuant to a Credit Facility 
provided pursuant to this paragraph, the City, acting by and through the Utility 
Commission, shall be obligated either (i) to reinstate the maximum limits of such Credit 
Facility, or (ii) to deposit into the Bond Reserve Account cash or securities in the amount 
of the disbursement made under such Credit Facility, or a combination of such 
alternatives, as shall provide that the amount credited equals the Reserve Requirement 
within a time period not longer than one (1) year.  If a letter of credit is provided under 
the provisions of this paragraph, then not later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration 
date of any said letter of credit, (a) the City, acting by and through the Utility 
Commission, shall obtain another letter of credit, or (b) the City, acting by and through 
the Utility Commission, shall draw upon the letter of credit in order to fund the Reserve 
Fund with cash, or (c) the City, acting by and through the Utility Commission, shall fully 
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fund the Bond Reserve Account with cash.  The Utility Commission shall receive such 
opinions, including legal opinions, certificates and other documentation, as it shall deem 
appropriate, prior to receipt of any Credit Facility.  If the issuer of a Credit Facility 
credited to the Bond Reserve Account shall cease to have a rating as described above in 
this, the City shall use reasonable efforts to replace such Credit Facility with one issued 
by an issuer having a rating so described, and shall pay, or commit to pay, any increased 
fees, expenses or interest in connection with such replacement or to deposit “available 
revenues” in the Bond Reserve Account in lieu of replacing such Credit Facility with 
another.  “Available revenues” as used in this paragraph shall mean income and revenues 
of the System after provision has been made in any month for deposits in the Sinking 
Fund or other available cash from whatever source. 

In the event a series of Outstanding Bonds, Bonds or Parity Bonds is insured by a 
municipal bond insurance company, such company may from time to time review the 
bank or trust company providing a letter of credit under the provisions of the Bond 
Ordinance and if, in such review, the company finds such bank or trust company to be 
unacceptable, then: (i) the City, acting by and through the Utility Commission, shall 
obtain another letter of credit within forty-five (45) days of a notice to such effect; or 
(ii) the City, acting by and through the Utility Commission, shall draw upon the letter of 
credit in order to fund the Bond Reserve Account with cash; or (iii) the City, acting by 
and through the Utility Commission, shall fund the Bond Reserve Account with cash over 
the next immediately following eleven (11) months in substantially equal monthly 
payments. 

In the event the Bond Reserve Account has been funded with a Credit Facility and 
such instrument has been drawn upon, moneys available to repay such Credit Facility 
provider shall first be used to reinstate the Credit Facility to its original amount.  Any 
interest or fees due to the Credit Facility provider, other than reinstatement, shall be 
subordinate to any amounts payable upon the Bonds or Parity Bonds. 

In the event it is determined that a draw on the Credit Facility is necessary, a 
demand for payment thereon, in such form as may be provided by the reimbursement 
agreement between the Utility Commission and the provider of such Credit Facility, shall 
be given not less than three (3) days prior to the date on which funds are required. 

In the event a Credit Facility is credited to the Bond Reserve Account resulting in 
the stated amount of such Credit Facility plus moneys and securities in the Bond Reserve 
Account to be in excess of the Reserve Requirement, such moneys and securities (less 
any costs of procuring the Credit Facility) in an amount not exceeding such excess may 
be transferred to the Renewals and Replacement Fund and pending expenditure shall be 
invested as permitted by the Bond Ordinance and as will not cause any of the 
Outstanding Bonds, Bonds or Parity Bonds to be arbitrage bonds as set forth in an 
opinion of counsel of national reputation in matters under Section 148 of the Code 
relating to arbitrage bonds. 
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 C. Operation and Maintenance Fund.  After making the prescribed monthly 
payments referred to in the preceding paragraphs (A) and (B), there shall next be set apart 
and paid out of the Water Revenue Fund into the Operation and Maintenance Fund an 
amount considered necessary and sufficient to pay the reasonable Operation and 
Maintenance Costs for the current month.  In the event of a deficiency, further transfers 
may be made in like manner on any date to the extent necessary to pay the Operation and 
Maintenance Costs actually accrued and payable. 

 D. Renewals and Replacement Fund.  After making the prescribed monthly 
payments into the several funds as prescribed in the preceding subparagraphs (A), (B) 
and (C), if there is a balance in the Water Revenue Fund in excess of the amount 
estimated to be in like manner transferred and paid into said special funds during the 
succeeding one month, there shall then be set apart and paid into the Renewals and 
Replacement Fund in each year not less than: 

 (1) a sum equal to 10% of the net operating profits (defined in this 
paragraph to mean gross revenues, excluding interest income, less current 
operating expenses including salaries, wages, cost of materials and supplies) of 
the System for the preceding fiscal year; or 

 (2) an amount equal to 1.25% of the gross book value of System 
property, plant and equipment at the end of the preceding fiscal year; or 

 (3) the sum of $25,000; 

whichever is greater, unless the current balance in the Renewals and Replacement Fund is 
greater than 1.25% of the gross book value of System property, plant and equipment as of 
the end of the preceding fiscal year, at which time deposits may cease until this test is no 
longer met.  All accumulations in said fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other 
funds of the City and may be withdrawn solely and only for the purpose of paying the 
costs of renewals, replacements, maintenance and additions to the System, or at the 
option of the City, the fund may be used for the purpose of purchasing at market price 
any bonds which by their terms are payable from the Sinking Fund then outstanding, 
provided, that no such purchases of bonds shall be made by use of said fund to such 
extent as the balance remaining in such fund will be reduced to less than $50,000.  Said 
fund shall be regarded as a depreciation fund within the meaning of the Act. 

 E. Water General Reserve Fund.  Whenever all specified and required 
transfer payments into the special funds hereinbefore provided have been made, any 
balance remaining shall be deposited each month into the Water General Reserve Fund, 
and moneys in said fund may be used for any lawful purpose related to the System. 

RATE COVENANT 

While the Bonds or any of them remain Outstanding Bonds as defined, the rates for all 
service rendered by the System to the City and to its citizens, corporations or other consumers, 
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shall be reasonable and just, taking into account and consideration the cost and value of the 
System and the cost of maintaining and operating the same, and the proper and necessary 
allowances for depreciation thereof, and the amounts necessary for the retirement of all bonds 
and the accruing interest on all such Bonds as may be Outstanding Bonds as defined.  There shall 
be charged against all users of said System, including the City, such rates and amounts for water 
and water service (including fire hydrant rentals, if any) as shall be adequate to meet the 
requirements of the Bond Ordinance, including the funding of amounts to the Funds and 
Accounts described under “Flow of Funds,” above.  Compensation for services rendered to the 
City shall be charged against the City and payment for same from the corporate funds shall be 
apportioned as other income and revenues. 

GENERAL COVENANTS 

 A. Investments.  Moneys to the credit of the Water Fund prior to the monthly 
accounting and to the credit of the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the Renewals and 
Replacement Fund and the Water General Reserve Fund may be invested pursuant to any 
authorization granted to municipal corporations by Kentucky statute or court decision. Moneys 
to the credit of the Sinking Fund may be invested from time to time in (a) direct full faith and 
credit obligations of the United States of America, whether bonds, notes, bills or otherwise called 
(collectively referred to herein as “Directs”); (b) certificates of participation in a trust or trust 
receipts from a trust comprised solely of Directs; (c) shares in a money market or mutual fund 
comprised more than 95% at all times of Directs or agreements to repurchase such obligations; 
(d) obligations unconditionally guaranteed as to both principal and interest by the United States 
Government; (e) obligations which are tax-exempt under Section 103(a) of the Code but are not 
private activity bonds under Section 141(a) of the Code, if rated at the time of purchase “AA” or 
better by a nationally recognized ratings service for municipal bonds; (f) certificates of deposit or 
time deposits of any bank or trust company, provided such bank is insured by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation or a successor corporation to the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation, and provided further that the principal of such deposits in excess of the insured 
amount is secured by a pledge of obligations as described in clauses (a), (b), (c) or (d) above in 
the full principal amount of such excess.  Such investments must also be legal and proper 
investments for the City.  Such investments may be sold from time to time as funds may be 
needed for the purpose for which the Accounts have been created.  To the extent moneys in the 
Funds are held uninvested and on deposit in demand accounts, such amounts shall be added to 
the amount invested pursuant to clause (f) above, and the sum so derived subject to the 
limitations as set forth therein. 

 B. Accounts Excesses.  Any amounts to the credit of the Funds in excess of the then 
current requirements therefor may be transferred by the City to such other Fund of the Water 
Fund as it may designate. 

 C. Maintain System.  The City will maintain the System in good repair and working 
order, will operate the same efficiently and faithfully, and will punctually perform all duties with 
respect thereto required by the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and the 
United States. 
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 D. Rate Reductions.  The City further covenants and agrees that no schedule of rates 
and charges shall be reduced unless or until all payments into the special funds are current and 
there shall have been procured a statement by an independent engineer or firm of engineers 
approving such reduction in the schedule and stating that such revised schedule will produce 
revenues sufficient to provide for all expenses of operation, repair and maintenance of the 
System and leave a balance each year equal to at least 1.10 times the maximum amount of 
principal requirement and interest requirement in any succeeding Bond Year to pay, when due, 
all bonds and interest thereon for the payment of which such revenues have or shall have been 
pledged, charged or otherwise encumbered.  

 E. Statutory Mortgage Lien; Enforcement Provisions; Receiver.  A statutory mortgage 
lien upon the System is granted and created by Section 96.400 et seq. of the Kentucky Revised 
Statutes and takes effect immediately upon the delivery of any Bonds.  Any owner of the Bonds 
may protect the statutory mortgage lien and may enforce and compel performance by the City of 
all duties and obligations imposed or required by law or the Bond Ordinance in connection with 
the operation of the System, including the making and collecting of rates and segregation of the 
income and revenues.  If there be any default in the payment of the principal of or interest on any 
of the Bonds then, upon the filing of suit by any owner of the Bonds, any court having 
jurisdiction of the action may appoint a receiver to administer the System on behalf of the City 
and the Utility Commission with power to charge and collect rates sufficient to provide for the 
payment of any bonds or obligations outstanding against the System, and for the payment of the 
operating expenses, and to apply the income and revenues in conformity with the Bond 
Ordinance and the provisions of said statute laws of Kentucky. 

 F. Rules.  The Utility Commission will establish such rules and regulations for the 
control and operation of the System necessary for the efficient and economical operation thereof, 
and rates and charges shall be fixed and revised as may be necessary to provide funds sufficient 
for all purposes provided in the Bond Ordinance.  

 G. Accounting.  The Utility Commission will keep proper books and accounts (separate 
from all other records and accounts), in which complete entries shall be made of transactions 
relating to the System, and covenants in the Bond Ordinance that within 210 days following the 
close of each Fiscal Year it will cause the books and accounts of the System to be audited 
annually by independent certified public accountants.  Each such audit, in addition to whatever 
matters may be thought proper by the accountants to be included therein, shall include the 
following: 

 1. A statement of the income and expenditures of the system for such Fiscal 
Year, and including credits to the various accounts. 

 2. A balance sheet as of the end of such Fiscal Year. 

 3. The accountant’s comment regarding the manner in which the Utility 
Commission has carried out the accounting requirements of the Bond Ordinance, and the 
accountant’s recommendations for any changes or improvements in the operation of the 
System. 
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All expenses incurred in the making of the audit shall be regarded and paid as an 
Operation and Maintenance Cost.  

 H. No Sale, Etc.  Except for the statutory mortgage lien, neither the City or the Utility 
Commission will sell, lease, loan, mortgage, or dispose of or encumber the System (subject to 
the reserved right of the City to issue additional obligations); provided, however, that this 
covenant does not prevent the City or the Utility Commission from disposing of any property 
which in the jusdgment of the Utility Commission is no longer useful or profitable in the 
operation of the System.  The proceeds from the sale of any property shall be credited to the 
Renewals and Replacement Fund. 

 I. Contract; Enforcement.  The provisions of the Bond Ordinance shall constitute a 
contract between the City and the holders and registered owners of the Bonds, and after the 
issuance of the Bonds, no changes, additions or alterations of any kind shall be made hereto, 
except as herein provided for amendments hereto.  

 J. Insurance.  The Utility Commission will carry insurance on the System of the kinds 
and in the amounts which are usually carried by private parties operating similar properties.  
Alternatively, the Utility Commission shall self-insure or provide insurance by means of a 
self-insurance pool with other units of local government, provided that either private insurance is 
not available at a reasonable cost or the Utility Commission or the pool shall have assets or shall 
have created a self-insurance reserve fund in an amount as shall be determined by the Utility 
Commission to be not unreasonable in view of the risks insured.  

PARITY BONDS 

While any of the Bonds are Outstanding Bonds, the City will not issue any other bonds or 
obligations of any kind or nature having a pledge on the Revenues which is prior to the lien on 
the Revenues of the Bonds.  No obligations or bonds of any kind shall be issued which are 
payable from the Revenues except upon compliance with one of the options (A) through (D) set 
out below. 

 A. Parity Bonds may be issued for the purpose of paying the cost of repairs, 
replacements, renewals, improvements and extensions to the System, for any lawful 
System purpose, or for refunding Outstanding Bonds upon compliance with the following 
conditions: 

 1. The Net Revenues of the System, as evidenced by the statement of 
an independent certified public accountant not in the regular employ of the City 
for twelve (12) consecutive months out of the preceding fifteen (15) months, 
given for the months ending in any one of the three (3) months prior to the month 
of the date of issuance of the proposed Parity Bonds or the Adjusted Net 
Revenues of the System for such period (as defined herein) must equal not less 
than 110% of Maximum Annual Debt Service in each Fiscal Year or in each Bond 
Year, as may be selected by the City in its discretion, for all Outstanding Bonds as 
computed immediately after the issuance of the proposed Parity Bonds; but only 
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for those Fiscal Years or Bond Years, as may be applicable, in which the 
Outstanding Bonds immediately prior to any such issuance will continue to be 
Outstanding Bonds as provided herein. 

 2. Net Revenues may be adjusted for purposes of the forgoing 
computation to reflect any revision in the rates or charges being imposed at the 
time of the issuance of any additional Parity Bonds, and also to reflect any 
increase in such Revenues by reason of the extensions, improvements and 
betterments to the System, the cost of which is to be paid through the issuance of 
such additional Parity Bonds, but such latter adjustment will only be made if 
contracts for the immediate construction or acquisition of such extensions and 
improvements have been or will be entered into prior to the issuance of the Parity 
Bonds.  All such adjustments shall be based upon written certification by an 
independent consulting engineer or firm of consulting engineers, licensed in 
Kentucky and not employed by the City. 

 B. Parity Bonds may be issued to refund Outstanding Bonds if upon their 
issuance the principal and interest requirement for Outstanding Bonds for each Fiscal 
Year for which Outstanding Bonds immediately prior to such issuance will continue to be 
Outstanding Bonds as provided herein after the issuance of the Parity Bonds will not be 
greater than such requirement for each such Fiscal Year calculated immediately prior to 
the issuance of such Parity Bonds. 

 C. Parity Bonds may be issued to refund Outstanding Bonds in order to avoid 
or remedy default in the payment of principal of or interest thereon, but not earlier than 
three months prior to the due date of such principal or interest. 

 D. Bonds or any other obligations may be issued payable from the Revenues 
subordinate to the Outstanding Bonds.  Such subordinate bonds shall be payable from or 
out of the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the Renewals and Replacement Fund, or the 
Water General Reserve Fund in accordance with good accounting practices. 

 E. Parity Bonds may be issued payable on such payment dates as the City 
shall determine.  

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS 

The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be used as follows: 

 A. Accrued interest (if any) shall be credited to the Sinking Fund. 

 B. The amount necessary from the proceeds of the Bonds, together with such 
money in the Sinking Fund, if any, shall be used to provide for the refunding of the 
Refunded Bonds.  See the section herein captioned “PLAN OF FINANCE—Refunding of the 
Refunded Bonds.” 
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 C. Such amount, if any, as may be necessary to meet the Reserve 
Requirement shall be deposited to the credit of the Bond Reserve Account. 

 D. The remaining proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited into the 
“Waterworks Construction Fund Account (2018) of the City of Owensboro” (the 
“Project Fund”) and shall be held for the benefit of the City and for the benefit of the 
authorized registered owners of the Bonds as their interests may appear, and said funds 
shall be withdrawn upon duly approved procedures for the hereinafter defined Project.  
The costs of issuance of the Bonds, accomplishing the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, 
all engineering, legal and financing services, the costs of surveys, designs, soundings, 
borings, rights-of-way, and all other necessary and incidental expenses, shall be deemed 
items of cost of construction of the Project.  The moneys deposited into the Project Fund 
may be temporarily invested from time to time in lawful investments for City funds. All 
payments received as principal or interest derived from such investments will be credited 
to the Project Fund.  Said Fund may be closed by action of the Utility Commission upon 
its being fully depleted. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Continuing Disclosure Undertaking is authorized.  See the discussion under the 
heading “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.”  

MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE 

Pursuant to an ordinance adopted July 29, 1940, as amended, the management, control 
and operation of the System has been vested in the Utility Commission of the City; and so long 
as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the management, control and operation of the System 
will continue to be vested in and carried out by the Utility Commission created, appointed and 
functioning in accordance with the provisions of said ordinance aforesaid. 

TAX-EXEMPT BONDS 

The City covenants in the Bond Ordinance not to take any action or omit to take any 
action which would cause the Bonds not to be Tax-exempt.  See the discussion under the heading 
“TAX EXEMPTION” for a further description of the covenants made by the City and the Utility 
Commission.   

PERTAINING TO THE BOND REGISTRAR 

The City covenants with respect to the Bond Registrar (the “Bond Registrar”), and the 
Bond Registrar covenants and agrees as follows: (A) The City shall at all times retain a Bond 
Registrar with respect to the Bonds; it will maintain at the designated office(s) of such Bond 
Registrar a place or places where Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer or 
exchange; and it will require that the Bond Registrar properly maintain the Bond Register and 
perform the other duties and obligations imposed upon it by the Bond Ordinance in a manner 
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consistent with the standards, customs and practices of the municipal securities industry.  
(B) The City may remove the Bond Registrar at any time.  In case at any time the Bond Registrar 
shall resign, shall be removed, shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudicated a 
bankrupt or insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator, or conservator of the Bond Registrar or of the 
property thereof shall be appointed, or if any public officer shall take charge or control of the 
Bond Registrar or of the property or affairs thereof, the City and the Utility Commission 
covenant and agree in the Bond Ordinance that they will thereupon appoint a successor Bond 
Registrar.  The City shall give notice of any such appointment made by it to each registered 
owner of any Bond within twenty days after such appointment in the same manner, or as nearly 
the same as may be practicable, as for a redemption of Bonds.  Any Bond Registrar appointed 
under the provisions set out in the Bond Ordinance shall be a bank, trust company, or national 
banking association maintaining offices in Kentucky, Minnesota, Illinois or New York, and 
having capital and surplus and undivided profits in excess of $100,000,000. 

BOND ORDINANCE A CONTRACT 

The provisions of the Bond Ordinance shall constitute a contract between the City and the 
holder or holders of the Bonds to be issued, and after the issuance of any of the Bonds no 
change, variation or alteration of any kind in the provisions of the Bond Ordinance shall be made 
in any manner except as therein provided, until such time as there are no Outstanding Bonds 
remaining. 

AMENDMENT OF BOND ORDINANCE 

The owners of 51% in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds shall have the right 
from time to time to consent to and approve the adoption by the City of an ordinance or 
ordinances modifying or amending any of the terms or provisions contained in the Bond 
Ordinance; provided, however, that the Bond Ordinance may not be so modified or amended in 
such manner as to: 

 (a) Make any change in the maturity of the Bonds or in the rate of interest 
borne by any of the Bonds. 

 (b) Reduce the amount of the principal or redemption premiums on the Bonds 
or impose any conditions with respect to such payment. 

 (c) Modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on any of the 
Bonds or impose any conditions with respect to such payment. 

 (d) Materially affect the right of the owners of less than all of the Bonds then 
outstanding. 

 (e) Reduce the percentage of the principal amount of the Bonds the consent of 
the owners of which is required to effect a further amendment. 
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Notice of a proposed amendment shall be given by the Bond Registrar on behalf of the City by 
mailing the amendment notice by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each of the registered 
owners of the Bond or Bonds.  Consent may be given by proxy in fractional shares of ownership 
of Bonds, in accordance with approved procedures of the Depository. 

If the owners of at least 51% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds at 
the time of the adoption of such amendatory ordinance, or the predecessors in title of such 
owners, has consented to and approved the adoption thereof, no owner of any Bond whether or 
not such owner has consented to or has revoked any consent, will have any right or interest to 
object to the adoption of such amendatory ordinance or to object to any of the terms or 
provisions therein contained or to the operation thereof or to enjoin or restrain the City from 
taking any action pursuant to the provisions of the Bond Ordinance.  Any consent given by the 
owner of a Bond pursuant to the provisions of the Bond Ordinance will be irrevocable for a 
period of six months from the date of the instrument evidencing such consent and will be 
conclusive and binding upon all future owners of the same Bond during such period.  Such 
consent may be revoked at any time after six months from the date of such instrument by the 
owner who gave such consent or by a successor in title by filing notice of such revocation with 
the City Clerk, but such revocation will not become effective if the owners of 51% in aggregate 
principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and 
approved the amendatory ordinance referred to in such revocation. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

THE PROJECT 

A portion of the Bond proceeds will be used to provide funds for the Project, which 
includes making capital improvements to the System, including, specifically, (a) construction of 
approximately 14,250 feet of new 36 inch finished water transmission main from the Cavin Plant 
to tie into the existing distribution system and approximately 10,100 feet of new 8 inch waste 
sludge lines from the Cavin Plant to OMU’s existing sludge lagoons, (b) expansion of the 
capacity of the Cavin Plant by construction of two new 10 MGD treatment trains at the Cavin 
Plant including a new 2.5 million gallon clearwell, (c) miscellaneous improvements and 
modifications to the existing facilities at the Cavin Plant to accommodate the construction and 
operation of the two new 10 MGD treatment trains, and (d) miscellaneous improvements, repairs 
and replacements throughout the System.  The City expects to complete the portion of the Project 
that involves the expansion of the Cavin Plant by the fall of 2020 and the miscellaneous 
improvements, repairs and replacements throughout the System by 2023.  

A breakdown of the Project expenditures from the Bond proceeds is as follows: 
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
ESTIMATED AMOUNT PAID 

FROM BOND PROCEEDS 

Wells & wellfield development $2,979,753 
Storage tanks major maintenance 1,307,866 
Large main replacements 47,627 
Small main replacements 1,042,804 
Treatment plant improvements 264,700 
Cavin Plant 20 MGD expansion 42,990,551 

Total $48,600,000 

OMU expects to spend $63.2 million on routine capital improvements to the System in 
the five years from fiscal year 2019 through fiscal year 2023. It is expected that, of such amount, 
$8.9 million will be paid from operations and $54.3 million will be paid from bond proceeds.  Of 
the $54.3 million expected to be paid from bond proceeds, $5.7 million is expected to be paid 
from proceeds of the Series 2014 Bonds and the Series 2015 Bonds, and $48.6 million is 
expected to be paid from Bond proceeds.   

REFUNDING OF THE REFUNDED BONDS 

A portion of the Bond proceeds will be used to provide funds for the purposes of 
refunding the 2009 Bonds (the “Refunded Bonds”) to provide debt service savings for the City.   

Set forth below is a description of the Refunded Bonds: 

MATURITY  
DATE 

(SEPTEMBER 15) 

ORIGINAL  
PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

PREVIOUSLY 
REFUNDED 
PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

REFUNDED  
PRINCIPAL 
 AMOUNT 

EXPECTED 
REDEMPTION  

DATE 
REDEMPTION 

PRICE 

2019 $   505,000  $  160,000 $    345,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2020 530,000  170,000 360,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2021 560,000  175,000 385,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2022 585,000  185,000 400,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2023 615,000  195,000 420,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2024 990,000  310,000 680,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2025 1,040,000  330,000 710,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2026 1,095,000  345,000 750,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2027 1,150,000  360,000 790,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2029(1) 2,480,000  785,000 1,695,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2031(1) 2,740,000  865,000 1,875,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2033(1) 3,030,000  955,000 2,075,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 
2035(1)   3,365,000  1,060,000      2,305,000 9/27/2018 100.00% 

 TOTAL $18,685,000 $5,895,000 $12,790,000   
___________________________________ 
(1) Term Bonds 
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Certain proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds will be held in cash by the paying 
agent for the 2009 Bonds (the “Prior Paying Agent”), and said cash deposit will be sufficient to 
pay the principal of and interest on the Refunded Bonds up to and including the redemption date 
thereof. 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The proceeds of the Bonds and the sources and uses of funds are estimated to be applied 
as follows: 

ESTIMATED SOURCES OF FUNDS  
Par Amount of the Bonds $                      
Plus Original Issue Premium  
Less Original Issue Discount                        

Total Sources  $                     
  
ESTIMATED USES OF FUNDS  

Deposit to Project Fund $                      
Deposit with Prior Paying Agent  
Costs of Issuance(1)                        

Total Uses $                      
___________________________________ 
(1) Includes Underwriter’s Discount. 

RISK FACTORS 

The purchase of the Bonds involves certain investment risks.  Accordingly, each 
prospective purchaser of the Bonds should make an independent evaluation of the entirety of the 
information presented in this Official Statement and its appendices and exhibits in order to make 
an informed investment decision.  Certain of the investment risks are described below.  The 
following statements, however, should not be considered a complete description of all risks to be 
considered in the decision to purchase the Bonds, nor should the order of the presentation of such 
risks be construed to reflect the relative importance of the various risks.  There can be no 
assurance that other risk factors are not material or will not become material in the future. 

CONSTRUCTION RISKS 

There are potential risks that could affect the ability of the City to timely complete the 
Project.  While preliminary costs have been projected by the City’s consulting architects, not all 
of the construction contracts have been let by the City.  No assurance can be given that the cost 
of completing the Project will not exceed available funds. 

Completion of the Project involves many risks common to construction projects such as 
shortages or delays in the availability of materials and labor, work stoppages, labor disputes, 
contractual disputes with contractors or suppliers, weather interferences, construction accidents, 
delays in obtaining legal approvals, unforeseen engineering, archeological or environmental 
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problems and unanticipated cost increases, any of which could give rise to significant delays or 
cost overruns. 

SYSTEM OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES AND SYSTEM RATES 

The operation and maintenance expenses of the System may increase in the coming 
years.  Actual operation and maintenance expenses may be greater or less than projected.  
Factors such as changes in technology, regulatory standards, increased costs of material, energy, 
labor and administration can substantially affect System expenses.  Although the City has 
covenanted to prescribe, revise and collect rates and charges in amounts sufficient to pay debt 
service on the Bonds and other System obligations, there can be no assurance that such amounts 
will be collected.  Increases in System rates could result in a decrease in demand for System 
usage. 

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

Changes in the scope and standards for public agency water and wastewater systems, 
such as the System, may lead to increasingly stringent operating requirements and the imposition 
of administrative orders issued by Federal or State regulators.  Future compliance with such 
requirements and orders can impose substantial additional costs on the City.  In addition, claims 
against the System for failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations could be 
significant.  Such claims are payable from assets of the System or from other legally available 
sources.  No assurance can be given that the cost of compliance with such existing or future 
laws, regulations and orders would not adversely affect the ability of the System to generate Net 
Revenues sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds and other System obligations. 

RISKS RELATING TO THE WATER SUPPLY 

The ability of the System to operate effectively can be affected by the water supply 
available to the City.  If the water supply decreases significantly, whether by operation of 
mandatory supply restrictions, prohibitively high water costs, natural disasters or other physical 
calamities, including, but not limited to, earthquakes and tornadoes or otherwise, flow within the 
System will diminish and Net Revenues may be adversely affected. 

SECURITY OF THE SYSTEM 

Damage to the System resulting from vandalism, sabotage, or acts of terrorism or cyber 
terrorism may adversely impact the operations and finances of the System.  There can be no 
assurance that the City’s security, emergency preparedness and response plans will be adequate 
to prevent or mitigate such damage, or that the costs of maintaining such security measures will 
not be greater than currently anticipated.  The City has obtained appropriate insurance coverage, 
which may be used by the City, if other funds are not readily available and sufficient, to pay 
extraordinary and unexpected repair or replacement expenses of the System or liability claims 
related to the System. 
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UTILITY COSTS 

No assurance can be given that any future significant reduction or loss of power would 
not materially adversely affect the operations of the System.  The operations of the System on a 
daily basis require a significant amount of electrical power and natural gas.  Electricity is needed 
to run pumps, lights, computers, mechanical valves and other machinery.  Prices for electricity or 
gas may increase, which could adversely affect the System’s financial condition. 

IMPACT OF ECONOMIC CONDITIONS ON SYSTEM NET REVENUES 

Major economic disruptions and recession could adversely affect the economic activity of 
the region in general, in particular resulting in decreased economic activity, increased 
unemployment and a reduction in residential and commercial construction.  The City cannot 
predict the extent of the fiscal problems that will be encountered in any future economic 
downturn.  Reduction in System users’ ability to pay rates and charges, and reduction in the rate 
at which new customers are added to the System, can adversely impact Net Revenues. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The financial health of the City is in part dependent on the strength of the local economy.  
Many factors affect the local economy, including rates of employment and economic growth and 
the level of residential and commercial development.  It is not possible to predict to what extent 
any changes in economic conditions, demographic characteristics, population or commercial and 
industrial activity will occur and what impact such changes would have on the finances of the 
City. 

LOSS OR CHANGE OF BOND RATING 

The Bonds have received a credit rating from Moody’s Investors Service, New York, 
New York (“Moody’s”).  The rating can be changed or withdrawn at any time for reasons both 
under and outside the City’s control.  Any change, withdrawal or combination thereof could 
adversely affect the ability of investors to sell the Bonds or may affect the price at which they 
can be sold. 

SECONDARY MARKET FOR THE BONDS 

No assurance can be given that a secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale 
of the Bonds or, if a secondary market exists, that such Bonds can be sold for any particular 
price.  The Underwriter is not obligated to engage in secondary market trading or to repurchase 
any of the Bonds at the request of the owners thereof. 

Prices of the Bonds as traded in the secondary market are subject to adjustment upward 
and downward in response to changes in the credit markets and other prevailing circumstances.  
No guarantee exists as to the future market value of the Bonds.  Such market value could be 
substantially different from the original purchase price. 
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

A failure by the City to comply with the Undertaking for continuing disclosure (see 
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein) will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds.  Any 
such failure must be reported in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule 15c2-12”) adopted by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and may adversely affect the transferability and 
liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 

SUITABILITY OF INVESTMENT 

The interest rate borne by the Bonds is intended to compensate the investor for assuming 
the risk of investing in the Bonds.  Furthermore, the tax-exempt feature of the Bonds is currently 
more valuable to high tax bracket investors than to investors that are in low tax brackets.  As 
such, the value of the interest compensation to any particular investor will vary with individual 
tax rates and circumstances.  Each prospective investor should carefully examine this Official 
Statement and its own financial condition to make a judgment as to its ability to bear the 
economic risk of such an investment, and whether or not the Bonds are an appropriate 
investment for such investor. 

FUTURE CHANGES IN LAWS 

Various state and federal laws, regulations and constitutional provisions apply to the City 
and to the Bonds.  The City can give no assurance that there will not be a change in, 
interpretation of, or addition to such applicable laws, provisions and regulations which would 
have a material effect, either directly or indirectly, on the City, or the taxing authority of the 
City.  For example, many elements of local government finance, including the issuance of debt 
and the levy of property taxes, are controlled by the government of the Commonwealth.  Future 
actions of the Commonwealth may affect the overall financial conditions of the City, the taxable 
value of property within the City, and the ability of the City to levy property taxes or collect 
revenues for its ongoing operations. 

FACTORS RELATING TO TAX EXEMPTION 

As discussed under “TAX EXEMPTION” herein, interest on the Bonds could become 
includible in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, retroactive to the date the 
Bonds were issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the City in violation of its covenants 
in the Bond Resolution.  Should such an event of taxability occur, the Bonds are not subject to 
any special redemption. 

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States (“Congress”) 
legislative proposals relating to the federal tax treatment of interest on the Bonds, including some 
that carry retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could affect the market value of the Bonds.  
It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any such proposal might be enacted or whether, if 
enacted, it would apply to Bonds issued prior to enactment.  Finally, reduction or elimination of 
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the tax-exempt status of obligations such as the Bonds could have an adverse effect on the City’s 
ability to access the capital markets to finance future capital or operational needs by reducing 
market demand for such obligations or materially increasing borrowing costs of the City. 

The tax-exempt bond office of the Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) is 
conducting audits of tax-exempt bonds, both compliance checks and full audits, with increasing 
frequency to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt 
obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners thereof for Federal income tax 
purposes.  It cannot be predicted whether the Service will commence any such audit.  If an audit 
is commenced, under current procedures the Service may treat the City as a taxpayer and the 
Bondholders may have no right to participate in such proceeding.  The commencement of an 
audit with respect to any tax-exempt obligations of the City could adversely affect the market 
value and liquidity of the Bonds, regardless of the ultimate outcome. 

BANKRUPTCY 

The rights and remedies of the Bondholders may be limited by and are subject to the 
provisions of federal bankruptcy laws, to other laws or equitable principles that may affect the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to 
limitations on legal remedies against local governments.  The various opinions of counsel to be 
delivered with respect to the Bonds will be similarly qualified. 

THE CITY AND THE COUNTY   

LOCATION AND POPULATION 

The City, which is the county seat of Daviess County (the “County”), is Kentucky’s 
fourth largest city with an estimated population of approximately 57,605.  Located on the bank 
of the Ohio River in northwestern Kentucky, the City is 32 miles southeast of Evansville, 
Indiana; 109 miles southwest of Louisville, Kentucky; 123 miles north of Nashville, Tennessee; 
209 miles southeast of St. Louis, Missouri; and 209 miles southwest of Cincinnati, Ohio.   

The County covers a total land area of 462 square miles in the Western Kentucky Coal 
Field Region.  The Ohio River forms the northern boundary of the County and the Green River 
flows along part of the western border.  The City’s and County’s population growth is indicated 
below: 

 1970 CENSUS 1980 CENSUS 1990 CENSUS 2000 CENSUS 2010 CENSUS 

The City 50,329 54,450 53,549 54,067 57,265 
The County 79,486 85,949 87,189 91,545 96,656 

GOVERNMENT 

The City operates under a city manager form of government where an elected mayor and 
four elected city commissioners appoint a city manager.  The County is part of the 
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Commonwealth’s county fiscal court system and is represented by an elected judge/executive 
and three elected county commissioners. 

COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY 

The City is a regional hub for industry, retail trade, health care, education, culture, and 
agriculture and falls within the Owensboro Metropolitan Statistical Area (“MSA”).  The City’s 
local economy is comprised of a diverse mix of industries and, as a result, maintains a relatively 
stable revenue base. 

 NUMBER OF 
ESTABLISHMENTS 

AVERAGE MONTHLY 
WORKERS 

Natural Resources and Mining 36 371 
Construction 255 1,866 
Manufacturing 103 5,692 
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 652 9,635 
Information 20 426 
Financial Activities 273 3,514 
Professional and Business Services 371 3,655 
Education and Health Services 687 8,810 
Leisure and Hospitality 3,234 4,847 
Other Services 387 1,283 
Unclassified 8 8 
Government* 87 8,215 
____________________________________ 
Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), Daviess County, Kentucky, 2016 
*Government includes Public Administration, Education and Health Services and Trade, Transportation and Utilities. 

EMPLOYMENT  

The Kentucky Department for Employment Services, Labor Market Information and 
Labor Market Statistics LAUS (Local Area Unemployment Statistics) Program indicates the 
civilian labor force for the County to be 45,483 for December 2016, with employment of 43,556 
and unemployment of 1,927, or 4.2% rate (Monthly Not Seasonally Adjusted Labor Force, 
Employment and Unemployment data in the County).  The Bureau of Labor Statistics indicates 
in the preceding table that 32,178 people were employed by service providing establishments, 
while 7,929 people were reported to be employed by goods producing establishments, and 8,215 
people were reported to be employed by non-private establishments through local, state and 
federal governments in primarily the public administration, education and health services and 
trade, transportation and utilities industries.  The following table indicates recent unemployment 
rates for the County, the Commonwealth, and the United States as reported by the Kentucky 
Department for Employment Services. 
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UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 

 
THE COUNTY THE COMMONWEALTH  UNITED STATES 

2013 Annual 6.8% 8.3% 7.4% 
2014 Annual 5.7% 6.5% 6.2% 
2015 Annual 4.6% 5.4% 5.3% 
2016 Annual 4.2% 5.2% 4.7% 
2017 Annual 3.6%(1) 3.8% 4.1% 

____________________________________ 
Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics Data (http://www.bls.gov) 
(1) The 2017 Annual figure for the County reflects the preliminary December 2017 figure, which is the most recent data available.  

LARGEST EMPLOYERS 

The City serves as a major economic hub of Western Kentucky, attracting major 
manufacturing processors in industries such as aluminum, automobile parts, uniforms, paper, 
food and tobacco.  Locally produced goods include automobile frames and parts, electronics, 
plastics, wire, spaghetti sauce and various tobacco, food and paper products.  Biodiesel ethanol is 
locally produced from soybeans grown in the area and the City has emerged as an international 
leader in biotechnology research.  A large and expanding mortgage processing firm and two 
natural gas transmission corporations are located in the City.  The following is a list of the major 
employers in the City as of the City’s 2018 fiscal year end: 

COMPANY 
PRINCIPAL PRODUCT  

OR SERVICE 
NUMBER OF  
EMPLOYEES 

Owensboro Health Hospital 3,606 
US Bank Home Mortgage Mortgage Processing 1,950 
Owensboro Public Schools School System 767 
Toyotetsu Mid-America  Automotive Parts 723 
Wal-Mart Retail 718 
Glenmore Distilleries  Alcohol Distillery 444 
Audobon Area Community Services Nonprofit Community Services 441 
The City City Government 428 
Owensboro Community and Technical College Community College System 391 
Unifirst  Uniform Distribution 386 
____________________________________ 
Source:  Greater Owensboro Economic Development Corporation 

PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME 

The following table compares annual per capita personal income in the County and in the 
Commonwealth. 
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TRENDS IN PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME 
($ IN MILLIONS) 

 PER CAPITA INCOME CHANGE 
 

YEAR THE COUNTY THE COMMONWEALTH THE COUNTY THE COMMONWEALTH 
2012 36,841 35,586 +0.63% +3.18% 
2013 37,109 35,596 +0.73 +0.03 
2014 38,787 37,021 +4.52 +4.00 
2015 39,669 38,504 +2.27 +4.01 
2016 39,641 38,934 -0.07 +1.12 

____________________________________ 
Source:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (http://www.bea.gov) 

TRANSPORTATION 

The City has direct access via highway, 
rail, river and air.  The William H. Natcher 
Bridge provides a route to Interstate 64 in 
Indiana.  An improved section of U.S. Highway 
231 in southern Indiana and a recently expanded 
Owensboro bypass complete a four-lane link 
through Owensboro from Interstate 64 in 
Indiana to Interstate 65 in southern Kentucky.  
The Owensboro–Daviess County Regional 
Airport serves access to the national air 
transportation system and in 2017 received a $4.1 million Federal Aviation Administration 
infrastructure grant to construct an aircraft rescue and firefighting building. 

UTILITIES 

The City has the following public utilities to supply industrial, business and residential 
needs. 

Natural gas is distributed by Atmos Energy and is supplied by Texas Gas and Tennessee 
Gas. 

Electric power is supplied to the City and surrounding areas by Owensboro Municipal 
Utilities’ (“OMU”) Electric System, Kentucky Utilities Company and Kenergy Corporation. 

Water is supplied to both the City and the County by the System, as described herein.  

Sewage treatment is provided by the Regional Water Resource Agency (RWRA) to the 
entire City and portions of the County.  The City has separate sanitary sewer and storm sewer 
lines as well as a combined sewer system (which convey both sanitary and storm flows in the 
same pipes).  Its two treatment plants have a combined capacity of 49 million gallons per day. 
Average dry daily flow treated is approximately 10 million gallons per day. 
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Telecommunications broadband and base band services are distributed locally by OMU, 
AT&T, Windstream, Time Warner and several smaller local exchange carriers.  The City has 
several broadband technologies, including a SONET network, Digital Subscriber Line and Cable 
Modems. 

EDUCATION 

Quality education is a priority and education facilities in the area abound.  The 
Owensboro Public Schools and Daviess County Public Schools and parochial school systems 
provide elementary, middle and secondary school students with a quality education.  The average 
student-teacher ratio for the public schools is 20-and 25-to-1. 

Brescia University and Kentucky Wesleyan College are 
four-year education institutions offering Bachelor of Science 
and Arts degrees.  The University of Louisville School of 
Nursing facilitates a BSN program locally in conjunction with 
Owensboro Health System.  Owensboro Community and 
Technical College (“OCTC”) offers two-year Associate of Arts 
and Science degrees, several doctoral degree programs via 
telecommunications and vocational education. Graduate 
programs are offered through Brescia, Western Kentucky 
University and Murray State University.  Western Kentucky 
University-Owensboro offers undergraduate and graduate degree programs on their newly 
expanded Owensboro Campus.  These programs provide area residents with the opportunity to 
earn post-graduate degrees without leaving the city.  Each year more than 1,500 students 
participate in graduate programs for credit hours.  Another 500 students utilize short courses or 
adult education workshops each year. 

MEDICAL FACILITIES 

The City has an excellent hospital that in recent 
years has been rated among the top five percent for clinical 
excellence: Owensboro Health.  This organization serves 
eleven counties in Kentucky and southern Indiana.  The 
$385 million state-of-the-art hospital facility opened in June, 
2013.  Owensboro Health also leads two key initiatives for 
cancer research in the Owensboro region, and is accredited by the Commission on Cancer of the 
American College of Surgeons as a Comprehensive Cancer Center. 

ARTS, ENTERTAINMENT AND RECREATION  

The City offers a wide range of recreational and cultural activities.  The City has 
everything from fishing on a nearby lake to live performances of the Owensboro Symphony 
Orchestra, one of the finest in the Commonwealth.  Municipal parks provide areas for 
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picnicking, golf, tennis, softball, football and relaxing.  Water sport activities may be enjoyed on 
the Ohio River.  

The City operates the only municipal ice arena in Kentucky, Edge Ice Center.  The 
year-round facility features a 42,600 square foot arena and is the home to the Owensboro Youth 
Hockey Association and the Owensboro Figure Skating Club. During the summer months, the 
City maintains two swimming pools and three spray parks. 

 

The spray park addition to Legion Park was an enhancement to a beautiful park located in 
the center of the City that already features basketball courts, a walking trail, playground 
equipment, and covered shelters.  The City hosts many local, state, regional and national softball 
and baseball tournaments at the softball complex located at Jack C. Fisher Park.  The new 
Smothers Park on the riverfront features an all-access Lazy-Dayz playground with a spray park, 
concessions, music and signature fountains. 

Cultural activities play a major role in the everyday lives of City residents. Owensboro 
RiverPark Center, a performing arts and civic center, boasts a 1,500 seat multi-purpose 
auditorium, and experimental theatre, a riverfront plaza, an open-air courtyard and 
meeting/reception rooms.  Each year the RiverPark Center hosts over 150 performance events 
and 800 civic events.  Many cultural agencies are funded in part by the City.  The City is also 
home to the Owensboro Museum of Fine Arts, the Owensboro Museum of Science and History, 
and the Bluegrass Music Hall of Fame & Museum (formerly known as the International 
Bluegrass Museum and previously located at the RiverPark Center), a $15.3 million facility 
expected to be the worldwide destination for bluegrass music with a grand opening scheduled for 
October 18-20, 2018. 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENTS  

The City is participating with the Commonwealth in two tax increment financing (“TIF”) 
projects:  the Gateway Commons TIF (Gateway TIF) and the Downtown Riverfront 
Revitalization TIF (Downtown TIF).  For approved TIFs, the Commonwealth returns up to 80 
percent of incremental tax revenues created by the development to developers to pay for public 
infrastructure costs. The Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority approved a total 
of $24.5 million for the Downtown TIF and $20.5 million for the Gateway TIF in state tax 
incentive rebates over 20 years to cover public infrastructure costs.  The Downtown TIF project 
will continue revitalization of downtown through public and private investment expected to 
reach $142.5 million.  The 200-acre Gateway Commons is a mixed-use development including 
retail, office, restaurant and residential uses.  The City’s Department of Finance estimates the 
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project will support 2,200 jobs annually and generate $3.1 billion in total economic impact over 
the next 20 years.  Construction on the project began in the summer of 2017.  Malco Theaters, 
Tuesday Morning, Hobby Lobby, Kirklands’s and Shoe Show all announced plans to open stores 
in Gateway Commons in 2018, as well as a TownePlace Suites.   

The City recently completed a $99 million downtown redevelopment and revitalization 
project, partnering with Daviess County Fiscal Court in the development and financing of the 
project.  A $48 million convention and events center overlooking the Ohio River opened in 
January 2014.  It is flanked by two new privately developed hotel projects with 270 total rooms 
at a total cost of over $35 million and a third hotel project is in development.  Other new 
construction in the area includes a corporate headquarters and multiple residential buildings on 
available riverfront property, with additional property available for future development. 

The City is experiencing growth and increasing investment in the City’s infrastructure by 
both public and private funding.  The placemaking initiative launched by the City is expected to 
result in approximately $120 million in publicly funded infrastructure and amenities for the 
revitalization of the City’s riverfront.  The Glenmore Distillery and other local distillery 
expansions have combined for a $70 million investment in the City.  U.S. Bank is in the process 
of a $15.2 million expansion to its operations in the City.  The distillery and U.S. Bank 
expansions are expected to create over 425 new jobs.  Additionally, California-based Alorica 
Inc., a customer service company, announced plans to bring up to 840 jobs to downtown 
Owensboro.  Alorica began operations in its new downtown building in July 2017 and has 
indicated that it plans to have 500 employees in the City by the end of 2018.  Another 340 jobs 
are to be hired over the next two years.  Metalsa Structural Products, a Mexican frame 
manufacturer, started a $36.5 million expansion in the fall of 2017 and is preparing to add 
113 jobs and begin producing metal frames for the new Jeep truck at the Owensboro plant. 

THE SYSTEM 

ORGANIZATION AND MANAGEMENT 

The operation, management and control of the System is vested in the Utility 
Commission, which was established by ordinance of the City Board on July 29, 1940, as 
amended.  The Utility Commission is composed of five citizens who are residents of the City and 
are appointed by the Mayor on a non-partisan basis to serve staggered terms of three years each.  
The Bond Ordinance covenants that, so long as any Bonds are outstanding, the management, 
control and operation of the System will continue to be vested in and carried out by the Utility 
Commission through OMU.  The Utility Commission operates independently in managing the 
System on a day-to-day basis, and approval of the City must be obtained to issue bonds and to 
change rates charged for water service.  There are 29 employees that are divided between the 
production and delivery departments for the System.   
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The present members of the Utility Commission and their terms of office are as follows: 

NAME TERM EXPIRES 

Tony Cecil, Vice Chairman January 2020 
James A. Fulkerson, Chairman January 2019 
Ted Lolley, Secretary January 2021 
Dr. Tom Maddox January 2021 
Paul Martin January 2020 

Patrick D. Pace of Kamuf, Pace & Kamuf is counsel to the Utility Commission.  The System 
operations are supervised by the following individuals:   

Kevin D. Frizzell, P.E., Interim General Manager.  Mr. Frizzell was named interim 
General Manager on February 12, 2018.  The Utility Commission has indicated that the 
expectation is for Mr. Frizzell to remain in such position through the conclusion of the Project.  
After the Project concludes, it is expected that a search for a new General Manager will begin in 
due course.  Mr. Frizzell, previously OMU’s Director of Power Production, joined OMU in 1990 
at the company’s coal-fired generating station, the Elmer Smith Station (“ESS”), as the 
Technical Services Manager.  In this role, he was primarily charged with environmental 
compliance and had a key leadership role in the $150 million scrubber project completed in 
1995.  He has managed all of the plant’s environmental projects since then, including the 
installation of NOX controls in the early 2000s.  Mr. Frizzell was named Director of Power 
Production in January 2008 and charged with the management of OMU’s largest asset, ESS and 
its 100-plus employees.  In 2013, management of OMU’s water production facilities was added 
to Mr. Frizzell’s responsibilities.  Mr. Frizzell, a licensed Professional Engineer in the 
Commonwealth, is an Ohio County native and a graduate of the University of Kentucky where 
he earned his Bachelor of Science Degree in chemical engineering in 1985.  Mr. Frizzell worked 
as a permit reviewer for the Kentucky Department of Environmental Protection and a process 
engineer for MPD, Inc., prior to joining OMU.  

J. Lynn Holland, CPA, MBA, CGMA, Director Finance and Accounting.  Ms. Holland 
joined OMU in April 2013, after serving since December 2008 as a member and secretary of the 
Utility Commission.  She is a Certified Public Accountant and a Chartered Global Management 
Accountant, and has earned an MBA from the University of Phoenix. Ms. Holland, previously a 
Certified School Financial Officer, and has earned a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting, 
an Associate of Science degree in Computer Programming and an Associate of Science degree in 
Business Administration from Brescia University.  She has most recently served as Assistant 
Superintendent for Business Affairs with the Owensboro Public School System since 2002.  
Ms. Holland worked with Alexander and Co. CPAs from 1987 until 1989 before working with 
Kenergy from January 1989 through January 1997.  In 1997, she began working for the 
Kentucky Department of Education as a Financial Liaison for 23 Western Kentucky school 
districts.  She is a member of the AICPA (American Institute of Certified Public Accountants) 
and Kentucky Society of Certified Public Accountants. 
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Brad Howton, Acting Director of Production.  Mr. Howton was named to his current 
position on February 12, 2018. Mr. Howton, OMU’s Production Operations & Maintenance 
Manager, joined OMU in 2009 as the Plant Reliability Engineer.  He was a part of the 
Production Technical Services group through 2014 serving in reliability and plant engineering 
roles.  In 2015, Mr. Howton was named Production Maintenance Manager and in 2017 added 
Production Operations to his areas of responsibility.  He is responsible for providing leadership 
for the mechanical maintenance, electrical and instrumentation, and operations groups for power 
generation at the ESS and for water treatment at Plant A and Cavin Plant.  He is responsible for 
the safe and reliable operation and maintenance of these assets as well as overseeing the budget 
for these areas.  Mr. Howton received his Bachelor of Science Degree majoring in Mechanical 
Engineering from the University of Kentucky.  He came to OMU with fourteen years of 
engineering and management experience in the industrial environment with General Electric, 
Pratt & Whitney, Owens Corning, and Aleris. 

Tim Lyons, Director of Delivery.  Mr. Lyons was named to his current position as 
Director of Delivery in October 2013.  Prior to this position he was the Director of 
Engineering & Operations. He joined OMU as Transmission and Distribution Engineering 
Manager in 2007.  Mr. Lyons is responsible for directing the construction, operations, 
maintenance, and engineering of the electric and water OMU transmission and distribution 
system to provide safe, reliable energy & water to retail customers.  He has over 20 years of 
experience in the electric utility business, beginning his career with Kentucky Utilities Company 
in 1993, as an Electrical Engineer.  In 2000, he was promoted to the position of Team Leader of 
Line Construction and Maintenance where he managed KU line crews within western Kentucky.  
Mr. Lyons received his Bachelor of Science Degree majoring in Electrical Engineering from the 
University of Evansville.  In addition, he graduated from the LGE-Leadership class in 2002.  He 
currently serves as Chairman of the LGE/KU Transmission Stakeholder Planning Committee, 
serves on the Southeastern Reliability Corporation (SERC) Board of Directors, and is a graduate 
of Emerge Owensboro. 

Michael Moore, Director of Customer and Shared Services.  Mr. Moore was named to 
his current position as Director of Customer and Shared Service in August 2014. Prior to his 
appointment to this position, Mr. Moore was the Human Resource Manager at OMU, starting 
that role and his career with OMU in 2008.  The Director of Customer and Shared Services role 
directs the internal and external service delivery for all utility support functions, including 
customer service, communications and public relations, procurement, information technology, 
human resources and safety.  Mr. Moore is an Owensboro native and moved back to his 
hometown in 2007. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Rose-Hulman 
Institute of Technology and MBA degree from Indiana University.  Mr. Moore has over 19 years 
of experience in the energy and utility industries, beginning his career with General Electric in 
1999 as part of their Human Resources Leadership Program. 

David Blank, Acting Director of Power Marketing.  Mr. Blank was named to his current 
position on June 22, 2018. As Acting Director of Power Marketing, he oversees the selling and 
risk mitigation of excess generation from the ESS into the wholesale power market, establishes 
agreements with counterparties and aligns OMU’s interests with those of other Commonwealth 
municipal utilities   He began his career at OMU in 2011 as a Power Market Financial Analyst 
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supporting the Director of Power Marketing.  In 2014 he assumed the role of Manager of Risk 
and Special Projects, ensuring that the Power Marketing Department complied with all OMU 
Energy Risk Management policies.  Having developed OMU’s in-house dispatch model, he 
provided modeling support as a team member of the 2013 – 2018 Integrated Resource Plans, 
2017 Unit 2 Shutdown Study and 2017-2018 Power Supply effort that ultimately recommended a 
power purchase agreement (PPA) for the years 2020-2026.  Mr. Blank began his career at the 
Chicago Board Options Exchange, trading as an independent options market maker from 1991 – 
1998.  In 1998 he transitioned to trading options and securities as an off-floor trader until 2010.  
He obtained his Bachelor of Science degree in Finance from the Rochester Institute of 
Technology. 

Christopher Poynter, Superintendent of Telecommunications.  Mr. Poynter joined OMU 
in October 2013 as Superintendent of Telecommunications. In this role, he leads OMU’s efforts 
to provide extremely reliable, fiber optic based, internet, voice, and data services to area 
businesses. He also leads the company’s Fiber-To-The-Home initiative, working to provide area 
residences with affordable, ultrahigh speed internet access. Mr. Poynter has an extensive 
background in the cable and telecommunications industry with more than 20 years of progressive 
leadership experience including General Manager, Vice President of Customer Care, and 
Director of Technical Operations with organizations including Time Warner Cable, Comcast, 
Frontier Communications, Lightyear Communications, and Global Crossing Ltd. His leadership 
experience also includes military service as an enlisted soldier, non-commissioned officer, cadet, 
and commissioned officer in The United States Army National Guard. Mr. Poynter has an MBA 
in Telecommunications & Information Systems from the Rochester Institute of Technology, a 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from the University of Southern Mississippi, 
and an Associate Degree in Applied Science from Monroe Community College. Mr. Poynter is 
very active in the telecommunications industry and in the community. He is currently a Rotary 
Assistant Governor, Kentucky Colonel, Board member of The Cliff Hagan Boys & Girls Club, 
and a Board member of The Owensboro Rotary Foundation. He has served on numerous Boards 
in the past including The Midwest Chapter of The Cable & Telecommunications Association for 
Marketing, Greater Owensboro Chamber of Commerce, Spencer County Regional Chamber of 
Commerce, Owensboro Symphony Orchestra, and Owensboro Parks Department Advisory 
Board. 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTION  

The original waterworks system in the City was started in 1878 by a private company and 
made use of the Ohio River as a supply source.  In 1900, a referendum for a municipally owned 
water system supplied by wells received a favorable response.  The wells in the area produced a 
clear water which was hard and high in iron content.  In 1911, the City installed softening 
facilities in order to better compete with the private company.  This plant, which reduced both 
the objectionable iron content and hardness, was probably the third such plant in the United 
States.  In 1923, the private company ceased operations and the City assumed responsibility for 
providing water service to the entire community.  The present System is wholly owned by the 
City and in conjunction with a municipally owned electric power plant is operated as OMU, 
which is governed by the Utility Commission.  Day-to-day operations are managed by a general 
manager and supporting staff.   
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The City’s water supply is drawn from the alluvium formation of the Quaternary System 
by 39 wells typically 100-140 feet deep.  The alluvium formation is an excellent aquifer about 
100 feet thick extending from 40 feet below the ground surface.  As an aquifer, the alluvium is 
capable of yields of 750 gallons per minute for single wells.  The water level in the aquifer is 
dependent to some degree upon the stage of the Ohio River; however, the minimum stage of the 
river is controlled by a series of 21 locks and dams.  Normal pool elevation of the river at the 
City is about 358 feet above mean sea level (MSL), as controlled primarily by the Newburgh 
Locks and Dam located downstream.  The elevation of the City is 390-400 MSL.   

OMU currently maintains two water production and purification plants: the “Original 
Treatment Facility” (Plant A) which was built around 1904 and the “New Treatment Facility” 
(the Cavin Plant) which went on-line in October of 1994.  The Original Treatment Facility has 
been significantly modernized and has the capacity to produce 18 MGD.  The New Treatment 
Facility currently has the capacity to produce 10 MGD and is designed for expansion to a 
maximum output of 40 MGD.  A portion of Bond proceeds will be used to expand the New 
Treatment Facility to 30 MGD.  The 20 MGD addition, consisting of two new treatment trains, is 
the “Expanded Treatment Facility”.  After completion of the Project, the Original Treatment 
Facility will stop operation, and OMU’s combined treatment plant capacity is anticipated to be 
30 MGD. 

Both Plant A and the Cavin Plant’s processes consist of aeration, flash chemical mixing, 
flocculation, primary clarification, secondary clarification, filtration, chlorination and 
fluoridation.  The process effectively removes iron and lowers the hardness to a recommended 
level.   

Most of the wells are located in the vicinity of the Original Treatment Facility and 
eastwardly for about two miles along State Route 144.  A new well field has been developed 
south of State Route 144 near the New Treatment Plant.  Wells are maintained on a routine and 
regular basis, including rehabilitation and chemical treatment.  Most of the 39 wells are 25 years 
old or younger, with the five newest wells installed in fiscal year 2015.  Currently, OMU’s 
combined water supply capacity is approximately 25 MGD and is expected to remain at 25 MGD 
for the first few years following completion of the Project.   

At the present time, there are approximately 25,500 residential, commercial and public 
users in the City.  The total water produced for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2018, was 
607,152,142 cubic feet, and OMU purchased cubic feet for a total pumped and purchased of 
608,134,495 cubic feet.  

WHOLESALE WATER DISTRICTS  

OMU currently supplies water on a wholesale basis to two water districts and one 
association located in Daviess County (the “Districts”).  Because ground elevations in the 
Districts are generally higher than the OMU service area, the Districts are supplied through 
pumping stations that are owned and operated by the respective Districts.   
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West District:  The West Daviess County Water District serves the west half of the 
County including the communities of Griffith, Stanley, Newman, Sorgho, West Louisville, 
St. Joseph, Curdsville, Delaware, Rome, Pettit, Tuck, Sutherland, Mosleyville, Panther, 
Handyville, Browns Valley, and Utica.  The West District also supplies water to the Beech 
Grove Water Association and the North McLean County Water District.   

Southeast District:  The Southeast Daviess County Water District serves an area 
immediately east and south of Owensboro including the communities of Thruston, Ensor, 
Dermont, Oak Ridge, Philpot, Habit, and Masonville.  The Southeast District also sells water to 
the City of Whitesville.   

East Association:  The East Daviess County Water Association serves the northeast 
portion of the County including the communities of Maceo, Yelvington, Spice Knob, Scythia, 
Gatewood, Knottsville, and St. Lawrence.  The East Association also supplies water to a large 
portion of Hancock County, and the northwest portion of Ohio County.   

SUMMARY OF WHOLESALE WATER DISTRICT CONTRACTS  

Contracts for wholesale supply of water with each of the Districts OMU serves were 
dated  May 14, 1992, and approved on May 28, 1992 (the “Contracts”).  The Contracts for the 
West District and the Southeast District were originally in effect for 30 years from the date 
approved; however, those contracts have been amended to extend their termination dates to 
May 31, 2050.  The Contract for the East Association, originally in effect for 50 years from the 
date approved, has now been extended to May 31, 2068.   

The source of the water to the Districts includes all of OMU’s existing water supply, 
treatment, and transmission facilities and any future additions or improvements thereto.  Except 
as provided in the Contracts, OMU agrees to furnish each of the Districts, and each District shall 
purchase from OMU, all of the Districts’ water requirements during the entire term of the 
Contracts.*  The Districts agree to limit the rate at which they take water from the System at each 
delivery point to not more than the amounts specified in the Contracts.  These amounts may be 
modified by mutual agreement of each District and OMU.  OMU shall own, operate, and 
maintain the water metering devices at the points of delivery.  No billing adjustments shall be 
made unless a test shows that the metering is inaccurate by more than three percent slow or fast. 

OMU and the Districts have agreed in the Contracts that the basis of charges to the 
Districts for water service is an allocation of the costs incurred by OMU in owning and operating 
the respective water facilities based upon use of availability of water as follows:   

 (a) A portion of the fixed costs (the “Fixed Costs”) of the Original Treatment 
Facility shall be paid by each District in proportion to the actual peak water demand by 

                                                
* See “THE SYSTEM—Summary of System Operations and Debt Service Coverage” and “—Water Usage” herein.  

Water revenues from the Districts totaled approximately $2,344,208 and $2,020,163 for Fiscal Years ended 
May 31, 2017, and May 31, 2016, respectively. 
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each District relative to the peak demand of the System during the Fiscal Year ending 
May 31, 1989.  

 (b) A portion of the Fixed Costs of the New Treatment Facility shall be paid 
by each District in proportion to each District’s effective utilization of the capacity of the 
New Treatment Facility relative to the total capacity of the New Treatment Facility. 

 (c) A portion of the Fixed Costs of the Expanded Treatment Facility shall be 
paid by each District in proportion to each District’s effective utilization of the capacity 
of the Expanded Treatment Facility relative to the total capacity of the Expanded 
Treatment Facility. 

 (d) A portion of the Fixed Costs of the Transmission Facilities shall be paid 
by each District in proportion to each District’s peak water demand relative to the total 
OMU system peak of water demand.   

 (e) A portion of the combined variable expenses the (“Variable Expenses”) of 
all OMU treatment facilities shall be paid by each District in proportion to water sales to 
each District, plus transmission losses, relative to total water produced and delivered to 
the Transmission Facilities.   

In consideration for OMU’s undertaking to supply water to the Districts, each District 
will make payments to OMU for such use as set forth in the Contracts.  In summary, the 
payments by each District will consist of six separately determined elements consisting of the 
following:   

 (a) the Fixed Costs associated with the Original Treatment Facility, 

 (b) the Fixed Costs associated with the New Treatment Facility, 

 (c) the Fixed Costs associated with the Expanded Treatment Facility, 

 (d) the Fixed Costs associated with Transmission Facilities, 

 (e) Variable Expenses, such as chemicals and electric power, and 

 (f) Contract administration costs.   

The total amount charged to each District shall be equal to the sum of the charges set 
forth by the Contracts but not less than each District’s annual quantity times the rate billed to 
each District at the end of the first full Fiscal Year of operation of the Extended Treatment 
Facility. 

OMU shall determine or estimate and calculate the total charges to be allocated to each 
District on or before March 16 of each year.  Adjustments shall be made by OMU to reconcile 
any differences between the estimated revenues and expenses and the actual revenues and 
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expenses from the previous Fiscal Year.  The total charges shall be divided by the total gallons of 
water estimated by OMU to be sold to each District during the following Fiscal Year and the 
result will be the proposed rate to be charged to each District. 

The Districts will have 15 days to review and comment on the proposed rates before 
OMU may establish the actual rate to be charged to each District.  The effective date, as to the 
Districts, of any increases above the rate floors shall be June 1 of each Fiscal Year following the 
calculation in March.  This delay allows each District time to apply to the Kentucky Public 
Service Commission  (the “Service Commission”) for a purchase water adjustment, so that the 
Districts can pass through the increased rates to their customers.   

After the sale of the revenue bonds that are issued to fund the Fixed Costs for the 
Expanded Treatment Facility (said revenue bonds being the Bonds) and before the next annual 
rate calculation (on or before March 16), OMU has the authority to increase the Fixed Costs for 
the Expanded Treatment Facility to reflect inclusion of the Debt Service expense for the 
Expanded Treatment Facility in the amount and at the time necessary to ensure payment by each 
District of each District’s allocated share of the first payment of the Debt Service on the 
Expanded Treatment Facility.  The effective date of this increase shall be at least 60 days after 
the increased Fixed Costs amount has been established by OMU. This delay allows each District 
time to apply to the Service Commission for a purchase water adjustment, so that the Districts 
can pass through the increased rates to their customers. 

In the event OMU proposes to further expand the capacity of water supply, treatment or 
transmission facilities beyond the capacity provided by the existing Transmission Facilities and 
the New and Expanded Treatment Facilities, each District shall share the cost of such additional 
facilities in proportion to the anticipated and actual utilization of such facilities by each District.  
OMU may choose to expand the capacity of the water supply, treatment or transmission facilities 
at any time after the System Maximum Day Quantity reaches or exceeds 90% of the then 
existing system capacity; or if OMU determines, after consultation with the Districts, that 
prudent utility practice requires that any portion of the New Treatment Facility or the Expanded 
Treatment Facility, must be abandoned, or that production from either Treatment Facility must 
be reduced because of any risks associated with any settlement of, or other damage to, either 
Treatment Facility, and that the resulting lost treatment capacity should be replaced through the 
expansion of the Treatment Facilities.   

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial records of the City, including the System, are audited annually by a firm of 
independent certified public accountants in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards.  In recent years, the annual audit has been performed by Riney Hancock CPAs PSC, 
Owensboro, Kentucky (the “Auditor”).  The audited financial statements of OMU for fiscal 
years ended May 31, 2016, and 2017 (the “2017 Audit”) and the draft audited financial 
statements for OMU for the System for fiscal years ended May 31, 2017, and 2018 (the 
“2018 Draft Audit”) are attached as APPENDIX A.   
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SUMMARY OF SYSTEM OPERATIONS AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE  

The summary set forth below is unaudited.  Copies of the audited general purpose financials of the System for the years 2013-2017 are 
available upon request from the Director of Finance and Accounting.  The revenues and expenses for 2018-2023 are estimated based on the 
2018 Draft Audit and projections.  In the table that follows, water usage is presented in cubic feet.  A factor of 7.4805 may be used to convert 
cubic feet to gallons. 

SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
Fiscal Years Ended May 31  

 

HISTORICAL BUDGETED 
2018 DRAFT 

AUDIT PROJECTED(4) 
 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
REVENUES:             

Water Sales Revenues             
Wholesale $2,102,849 $2,004,710 $  1,938,608 $  2,020,163 $  2,344,208 $  2,111,200 $  2,322,086 $  2,308,427 $  2,808,300 $  3,411,300 $  3,791,200 $  3,817,400 
Residential(2) 3,596,626 3,331,432 3,782,632 4,190,006 4,118,555 4,539,500 4,095,678 4,735,700(5)  5,635,300  5,605,700  5,605,700  5,605,600  
Commercial(2) 3,392,550 3,285,868 3,540,692 3,838,455 3,882,440 4,176,000 4,003,927 4,422,000(5)  5,289,700  5,310,800  5,332,100  5,353,400  
Other(1)      630,422      665,165        810,030         868,206        895,858         945,200        843,953 971,400 1,174,900 796,500(6) 799,100  803,200  

Total Water Sales 
Revenues 

 
$9,722,447 

 
$9,287,175 

 
$10,071,962 

 
$10,916,830 

 
$11,241,061 

 
$11,771,900 

 
$11,265,644 $12,437,527  $14,908,200  $15,124,300  $15,528,100 $15,579,600  

Water Service 
Revenues 

 
225,908 

 
182,221 

 
181,236 

 
258,819 

 
281,928 

 
247,200 

 
310,807 

 
265,600 

 
265,600 

 
265,600 

 
265,600 

 
265,600 

Other Revenues        27,223        41,592          93,038        142,778        173,992        293,000        190,323        178,600        166,600        179,100        179,000        181,700 
Total Revenues $9,975,578 $9,510,988 $10,346,236 $11,318,427 $11,696,981 $12,312,100 $11,766,774 $12,881,727 $15,340,400 $15,569,000 $15,972,700 $16,026,900 

OPERATING EXPENSES:             
Production and 

Purification 
 

$2,664,555 
 

$2,750,733 
 

$  2,666,738 
 

$2,687,840 
 

$  3,537,744 
 

$  3,492,000 
 

$ 3,793,470 
 

$  4,005,200 
 

$  3,923,800 
 

$  4,518,900 
 

$  4,560,700 
 

$  4,641,300 
Transmission and 

Distribution 
 

951,011 
 

862,382 
 

922,390 
 

989,454 
 

1,318,956 
 

1,404,400 
 

1,331,834 
 

1,449,200 
 

1,461,200 
 

1,509,900 
 

1,567,600 
 

1,612,300 
Customer Service 

and Information 
 

549,087 
 

594,840 
 

602,550 
 

602,164 
 

783,930 
 

792,300 
 

790,278 
 

800,100 
 

822,200 
 

845,000 
 

868,300 
 

892,200 
General and 

Administrative(3) 
 

  2,356,066 
 

  2,363,823 
 

    1,992,607 
 

  2,478,448 
 

    1,819,627 
 

    1,888,600 
 

   1,550,507 
 

   1,777,200 
 

   1,868,400 
 

   1,924,500 
 

   1,982,200 
 

    2,041,600 
Total Operating 

Expenses 
 

$6,520,719 
 

$6,571,778 
 

$  6,184,286 
 

$6,757,906 
 

$  7,460,257 
 

$  7,577,300 
 

$ 7,466,089 
 

$  8,031,700 
 

$ 8,075,600 
 

$ 8,798,300 
 

$ 8,978,800 
 

$ 9,187,400 

Net Revenues $3,454,859 $2,939,210 $  4,161,950 $4,560,521 $  4,236,724 $  4,734,800 $ 4,300,685  $ 4,850,027   $ 7,264,800   $ 6,770,700   $ 6,993,900  $ 6,839,500  

Annual Debt Service $1,771,915 $1,773,239 $  1,822,185 $2,044,329 $  2,055,096 $  2,827,500 $ 2,169,626 $3,974,800 $ 4,630,600 $ 4,652,300 $ 4,655,700 $ 4,657,300 

Annual Debt Service 
Coverage 

 
1.95 

 
1.66 

 
2.28 

 
2.23 

 
2.06 

 
1.67 

 
1.98 

 
1.22 

 
1.57 

 
1.46 

 
1.50 

 
1.47 ________________________________________________ 

(1)  Other water sales revenues include ESS, Electric System, City, and Fire Protection. 
(2)  Rate increases in FY 2015 and FY 2016 account for the increase in Water Sales Revenues from Residential and Commercial customers. 
(3)  General and Administrative costs decreased in FY 2015 due to recording pension liability under GASB 68.  The pension costs paid were more than the actuarial expenses for the year, resulting in reclassifying a portion of the expenses to Deferred Outflows. 
(4)  Assumptions are based on the projected debt service on the Bonds, the debt service savings produced by the refunding of the Refunded Bonds and a revised schedule of rates as set forth in “THE SYSTEM—Water Usage” and “—Water Charges”, all as set forth in the Consulting Engineer’s Report. 
(5) Based on water rate increase that will take effect October 1, 2018. 
(6)  Decrease in other water sales revenues in FY 2021 is due to the loss of ESS revenue upon shutdown in FY 2020.  Such shutdown is expected to result in the loss of approximately $300,000 in revenue to OMU annually beginning in fiscal year 2021.  Total annual retail revenue in 

the five years from fiscal year 2019-2023 averages $11.5 million, which includes the proposed water service rate increases. An annual $300,000 ESS revenue reduction would represent approximately 2.6% of the $11.5 million annual total.  The projection upon which the proposed 
water service rate increases are based factors in such ESS revenue reduction.
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2018 DRAFT AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Shown below is a summary of revenues, expenditures and changes in net position of the 
System for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2018 (draft audit).  See the 2018 Draft Audit attached 
as APPENDIX A.  The audited financial statements for the System for said fiscal year are 
anticipated to be final and received by the Utility Commission on September 20, 2018, and will 
be posted to EMMA (as hereinafter defined) upon receipt by the Utility Commission. 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2018, DRAFT AUDIT 

OPERATING REVENUES:  
Charges for services:  
Residential $4,095,678 
Commercial 4,003,927 
Water districts 2,322,086 
Fire protection 263,104 
The City 317,317 
Electric Light and Power System 263,531 
Service revenues      310,807 

Total operating revenues 11,576,450 

OPERATING EXPENSES:  
Production and purification 3,793,470 
Transmission and distribution 1,331,834 
Customer service and information 790,278 
General and administrative 1,550,507 
Depreciation  2,801,750 

Total operating expenses 10,267,839 

Operating income 1,308,611 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):  
Interest and debt expense (1,422,174) 
Interest income on investments 190,323 
Gain on sale of utility plant - 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of 
investments 

(104,178) 

Deferred net change in fair value of 
investments 

104,178 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1,231,851) 

Income before contributions and transfers 76,760 

Capital contributions 110,948 
Transfers out-dividends to the City (317,565)* 

Change in net position    (129,857) 

Net position, beginning of year 29,396,761 

Net position, end of year $ 29,266,904 
________________________________________________ 
*OMU transfers a Water System Payment in Lieu of Tax to the City based on the number of water hydrants (currently 2,324) and water usage 
(currently 74 metered water connections and 9 fire protection connections) valued at retail rates. 
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TEN LARGEST WATER CUSTOMERS  

The ten largest retail customers (excluding customers in the Districts) served by the 
System based on sales for fiscal year ended May 31, 2018, are set forth in the table below: 

CUSTOMER AMOUNT 
USAGE 

(cubic feet) 

Mizkan America, Inc. $1,003,896 71,405,900 
Dart Polymers 292,588 20,547,500 
Specialty Foods Group 176,205 12,453,000 
The Glenmore Distillery 185,966 11,971,400 
Owensboro Grain Company 122,969 7,240,900 
Regional Water Resource Agency 94,488 7,145,200 
City of Owensboro(1) 98,124 3,898,300 
Housing Authority 64,325 3,665,500 
Daviess County Fiscal Court 76,586 3,178,000 
Swedish Match 71,968 3,036,700 

____________________________________ 
Source:  OMU. 
(1) Does not include OMU’s Electric System or hydrant charges. 

WATER SALES  

The following table summarizes water sales from 2008 to present: 

FISCAL YEAR 
WATER SALES 

REVENUES 
USAGE 

(cubic feet) 

2018* $11,265,644 564,439,335 
2017 11,241,061 556,910,127 
2016 10,916,830 550,085,090 
2015 10,071,962 562,650,680 
2014 9,287,175 563,943,685 
2013 9,722,447  572,369,703  
2012 9,299,592  572,832,079  
2011 8,726,995  568,044,500  
2010 8,166,286  530,683,714  
2009 7,765,126  538,897,806  
2008 7,577,668  554,649,193  

____________________________________ 
Source:  OMU. 
* Unaudited numbers. 
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WATER RETAIL CUSTOMERS  

The following table summarizes retail customers of the system from 2008 to present: 

FISCAL 
YEAR RESIDENTIAL(1) 

COMMERCIAL/ 
INDUSTRIAL/OTHER1 TOTAL 

2018* 22,229 3,202 25,431 
2017 22,228 3,201 25,429 
2016 22,217 3,190 25,407 
2015 22,167 3,183 25,350 
2014 22,097 3,175 25,272 
2013 23,286  1,896  25,182  
2012 23,248  1,886  25,134  
2011 23,188  1,862  25,050  
2010 23,135  1,829  24,964  
2009 23,125  1,804  24,929  
2008 22,971  1,796  24,767  

____________________________________ 
Source:  OMU. 
(1) In Fiscal Year 2014, OMU began using a new billing system, which resulted in the reclassification of water customers. 
* Unaudited numbers. 

WATER USAGE  

The following table summarizes water usage (in cubic feet) for the System from 2008 to 
present: 

FISCAL 
YEAR 

WHOLESALE 
(cubic feet)(1) 

% OF TOTAL 
PUMPED 

RESIDENTIAL & 
COMMERCIAL 
(cubic feet) 

% OF 
TOTAL 

PUMPED 

TOTAL OMU 
PUMPED/PURCHASED 

(cubic feet)(2) 
% 

CHANGE 

2018* 192,786,400 31.7 349,975,500 57.5 608,134,495 +2.9 
2017 190,073,500 32.2 341,365,500 57.8 590,953,522 +1.8 
2016 182,776,700 31.5 341,929,190 58.9 580,254,472 -5.2 
2015 179,773,200 29.4 346,967,580 56.7 611,862,278 +1.5 
2014 176,755,721 29.3 357,274,677 59.2 603,092,861 -1.7 
2013 179,930,481  29.3  364,766,609  59.5 613,415,332  +0.2  
2012 181,819,841  29.7  378,830,954  61.9  612,240,668  +1.1  
2011 181,089,081  29.9  377,336,607  62.3  605,488,533  +7.7  
2010 163,770,280  29.1  356,245,788  63.4  562,179,333  -3.9  
2009 172,224,202  29.5  355,009,802  60.7  584,740,800  -3.6  
2008 174,807,949  28.8  366,413,218  60.4  606,810,800  +5.8  

____________________________________ 
Source:  OMU. 
(1) Represents sales to the Districts. 
(2) In Fiscal Year 2014, OMU began purchasing water from a wholesale district due to pressure issues in the area. 
* Unaudited numbers. 
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WATER CHARGES  

The following schedule presents approved charges applicable to all metered domestic, 
commercial and industrial customers, including rate increases effective as of October 1, 2018, 
and June 1, 2019: 

WATER SERVICE RATES 
(Effective October 1, 2018, and June 1, 2019) 

Volume Charges 

MONTHLY WATER USAGE 

INSIDE CITY 
($/100 cu. ft.) 

(Effective 10/1/18) 

INSIDE CITY 
($/100 cu. ft.) 

(Effective 6/1/19) 

First 40,000 cubic feet $1.87 $2.09 
Next 460,000 cubic feet 1.65 1.85 
Over 500,000 cubic feet 1.55 1.74 

 
 

MONTHLY WATER USAGE 

OUTSIDE CITY 
($/100 cu. ft.) 

(Effective 10/1/18) 

OUTSIDE CITY 
($/100 cu. ft.) 

(Effective 6/1/19) 

First 40,000 cubic feet $2.81 $3.14 
Next 460,000 cubic feet 2.48 2.77 
Over 500,000 cubic feet 2.33 2.60 

 
Customer Service Charge 

 
 

METER SIZE (INCHES) 

INSIDE CITY* 
($/bill) 

(Effective 10/1/18) 

INSIDE CITY* 
($/bill) 

(Effective 6/1/19) 

5/8” and 3/4” $     8.40 $     9.40 
1” 14.30 16.00 
1 1/4” 28.60 32.00 
1 1/2” 47.80 53.50 
2” 76.30 85.50 
3” 143.30 160.50 
4” 229.20 256.70 
6” 458.30 513.30 
8” 859.30 962.40 
10” 1,623.20 1,818.00 
12” 3,532.80 3,956.70 

____________________________________ 
*Outside City Rates are approximately 1.5x Inside City Rates. 
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CURRENT SPECIAL RATES 
(Effective October 1, 2018) 

1. Owensboro Municipal Utilities Electric Generating Plants—The rate as determined under 
the above schedules.  

2. Southeast Daviess Water District 
 The rate as determined under the provisions of the Agreement between the Utility 

Commission and the Southeast Daviess County Water District dated May 14, 1992, and 
approved by the Board by Ordinance 32-92, as amended by Amendment to Agreement 
Dated May 14, 1992, dated December 1, 2008 and approved by the Board by 
Ordinance 45-2008, as amended by Amendment No. 2 to Agreement Dated May 14, 
1992, dated March 1, 2014 and approved by the Board by Ordinance 16-2014, and as 
amended by Amendment No. 3 to Agreement Dated May 14, 1992, dated June 1, 2018. 

3. East Daviess County Water Association 
 The rate as determined under the provisions of the Agreement between the Utility 

Commission and the East Daviess County Water Association dated May 14, 1992, and 
approved by the Board by Ordinance 31-92, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to 
Agreement Dated May 14, 1992, dated March 1, 2014 and approved by the Board by 
Ordinance 16-2014, and as amended by Amendment No. 2 to Agreement Dated May 14, 
1992, dated June 1, 2018. 

4. West Daviess County Water District 
 The rate as determined under the provisions of the Agreement between the Utility 

Commission and the West Daviess County Water District dated May 14, 1992, and 
approved by the Board by Ordinance 33-92, as amended by Amendment to Agreement 
Dated May 14, 1992, dated December 1, 2008 and approved by the Board by 
Ordinance 46-2008, as amended by Amendment No. 2 to Agreement Dated May 14, 
1992, dated March 1, 2014 and approved by the Board by Ordinance 16-2014, and as 
amended by Amendment No. 3 to Agreement Dated May 14, 1992, dated June 1, 2018. 
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5. Fire Protection District 

MONTHLY CHARGE 

 
 

CONNECTION 
SIZE 

INSIDE CITY 
LIMITS 

(EFFECTIVE 
10/1/18) 

INSIDE CITY 
LIMITS 

(EFFECTIVE 
6/1/19) 

OUTSIDE CITY 
LIMITS 

(EFFECTIVE 
10/1/18) 

OUTSIDE CITY 
LIMITS 

(EFFECTIVE 
6/1/19) 

2”  $ 25.30 $ 28.30 $ 38.20 $ 42.80 
3”  36.60 41.00 54.10 60.60 
4”  44.50 49.80 66.70 74.70 
6”  65.20 73.00 97.00 108.60 
8”  90.60 101.50 136.70 153.10 

10”  108.00 121.00 162.10 181.60 
12”  146.30 163.90 219.20 245.50 

TAPPING FEES 

5/8” and 3/4” tap Charged at average cost of installation, including labor, material and 
overhead, established annually. 

1” tap and larger Charged at actual cost of installation, including labor, material and 
overhead. 

OMU most recently increased rates for the fixed charges and the volume charge in 2014. 
OMU expects to do the same in fiscal years 2019 and 2020, as proposed below. Previously, the 
fixed charges (and not the volume charges) had been increased since 2003 as follows: 

FISCAL  
YEAR 

RATE 
INCREASE 

EFFECTIVE  
DATE 

2009 9.76% January 2009 
2010 7.11% March 2010 
2012 3.32% June 2011 
2015 12.00% June 2014 
2016 9.00% June 2015 

     2019* 20.00% October 2018 
        2020* 12.00% June 2019 

____________________________________ 
Source:  OMU 

*Approved pursuant to a water rate ordinance adopted by the City August 21, 2018. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  

The System capital improvements are paid from the Renewals and Replacement Fund.  
The Renewals and Replacement Fund is funded by transfers from the Water Revenue Fund per 



 

-50- 

the Bond Ordinance, as described under “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE BOND 
ORDINANCE.”  Payments for routine capital improvements have historically required no 
additional cash funding, other than the required transfers from the Water Fund. 

Major capital improvements are paid by the issuance of bonds by the City, such as the 
Project, which is funded with certain proceeds of the Bonds.  The City does not currently 
anticipate issuing any other System debt in 2018 or 2019.  See “MISCELLANEOUS—Future Debt” 
herein.  
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS  

The following table sets forth the estimated debt service on all of the Outstanding Bonds 
payable from Revenues of the System following the issuance of the Bonds and the refunding of 
the Refunded Bonds.     

FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED MAY 31 

OUTSTANDING 
BONDS(1) THE BONDS 

TOTAL 
REQUIREMENTS 

ALL OUTSTANDING 
BONDS 

  PRINCIPAL INTEREST  

2019 $     308,822.50 $              $               $                  
2020 1,181,795.00    
2021 1,189,488.75    
2022 1,186,070.00    
2023 1,186,563.75    
2024 1,190,795.00    
2025 956,345.00    
2026 960,354.38    
2027 955,623.76    
2028 955,465.01    
2029 964,074.38    
2030 961,277.50    
2031 957,871.25    
2032 958,427.50    
2033 962,840.00    
2034 956,790.00    
2035 955,365.00    
2036 963,327.50    
2037 2,219,627.50    
2038 2,221,842.50    
2039 2,219,785.00    
2040 2,218,862.50    
2041 2,223,600.00    
2042     
2043     
2044     
2045     
2046     
2047     
2048     
2049                                

 $31,024,640.04 $              $               $                  
____________________________________ 
(1) Includes the Series 2014 Bonds, Series 2015 Bonds and Series 2016 Bonds.  Excludes the September 15, 2018, payments in the aggregate 

amount of $1,540,906.88. 
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RETIREMENT PLANS 

INTRODUCTION 

The City maintains two pension plans which are funded and administered by the City: the 
City Employees’ Pension Fund (“CEPF”) and the Police and Firefighters’ Retirement Fund 
(“PFRF”).  The City also participates in the state-wide County Employees’ Retirement System 
(“CERS,” or the “Pension Plan”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
administered by Kentucky Retirement Systems, for its full-time employees, as well as employees 
of the City’s component units.  For more information regarding CEPF, PFRF and CERS (the 
portion pertaining to the City’s employees who are not employees of the System) see the City’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  The System, being 
a component unit of the City, contributes to CERS.  The System prepares independent financial 
statements apart from the City’s financial statements.  The System makes certain contributions to 
CERS on behalf of its employees, as further described in this section.  The operation of CERS, 
including the contributions to be made to CERS, the benefits provided by CERS, and the 
actuarial assumptions and methods employed in generating the liabilities and contributions of 
CERS, are governed by the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended.  The authority to establish 
and amend benefit provisions lies with the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement 
Systems. 

The following summarizes certain provisions of CERS and the funded status of CERS, as 
more completely described in Note 6 to the 2017 Audit for the System attached hereto as 
APPENDIX A. 

COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The System contributes to CERS, which is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by Kentucky Retirement Systems that covers all regular full-
time members employed in nonhazardous positions of each participating county, city, and school 
board, and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in CERS. 

CERS provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to system members through 
its pension fund (the “Pension Account”).  Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries 
of members under certain circumstances.  CERS also provides for retiree medical benefits 
through its insurance fund (the “Insurance Account”). 

CERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information which may be viewed at www.kyret.ky.gov. 

See Note 6 to the 2017 Audit for the System for additional information on the CERS’ 
actuarial methods and assumptions, including information regarding the Discount Rate and the 
sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the Discount Rate. 



 

-53- 

Contributions 

Both employers and employees contribute to CERS.  At present, members who began 
participating in CERS prior to September 1, 2008, are required to contribute 5% of their annual 
creditable compensation to the Pension Account.  For members who began participating in 
CERS on or after September 1, 2008, the contribution rate is 6%, of which 1% is contributed to 
the Insurance Account.  The System’s actuarially determined contribution rate as of May 31, 
2018, was 19.18% of annual creditable compensation, of which 14.48% and 4.70% was 
contributed to the Pension Account and Insurance Account within CERS, respectively.  
Contributions to the Pension Account by the System were $642,130 for the fiscal year ended 
May 31, 2018 (said amount representing 18% of total System expenditures).   

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2015 through May 31, 2018, the System contributed 
the following amounts to CERS: 

FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED MAY 31 CERS CONTRIBUTIONS 

2015 $500,154 
2016 488,839 
2017 545,771 
2018* 642,130 

______________________________ 
Source: The audited financial statements of the System for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2015, through May 31, 2017.  The 2018 Draft Audit 

for fiscal years ended May 31, 2017, and 2018. 
* Unaudited amounts. 

Measures of Financial Position 

The System’s proportion of the net pension liability (the “Net Pension Liability”), and 
net other post retirement employee benefits (OPEB) as described in the 2018 Draft Audit, of 
CERS was based on a projection of the System’s long-term share of contributions relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined.  A separate report 
listing the System’s total pension liability and OPEB relating to CERS is not provided to the 
System.  The System reported a Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB for its proportionate share 
of the Net Liabilities as follows: 

FISCAL YEAR 
ENDED MAY 31 CERS LIABILITY 

2015 $4,101,776 
2016 5,199,116 
2017 6,095,910 
2018* 9,630,092(1) 

 
* Unaudited amounts. 
(1) Reflects $2,461,933 of OPEB Liability. 
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See Note 6 to the 2017 Audit for the System, and the related required supplementary 
information disclosures, for a description of CERS, the System’s funding policy, information on 
the assumptions and methods used by the Actuary, and the financial reporting information 
required by the New GASB Standards. 

Effective with the 2019 actuarial valuation, the amortization period for CERS was reset 
to a new thirty year period for purposes of calculating the actuarially accrued liability 
contribution required under the Kentucky Revised Statutes. In the 2018 Kentucky General 
Legislative Assembly, the Kentucky Legislature overrode the Governor’s veto and passed a law 
(House Bill 362) governing the pension and post-retirement health insurance requirement on 
employer contributions.  The actuarially determined contribution rate is set by the Kentucky 
Retirement Systems Board for each fiscal year.  Under the new law, employer contributions 
payable on or after July 1, 2018, and until June 30, 2028 cannot increase by more than 12% in 
terms of projected dollars paid by participating employers over the prior fiscal year as 
determined by the system’s consulting actuary.  While employers’ pension contributions may 
increase each year in order to reduce pension liabilities over the Pension Plan’s 30 year 
amortization period, the new law allows for increased pension costs to be phased-in by limiting 
year-on-year increases in employer contributions to 12% in terms of projected dollars paid by 
participating employers. 

Ramifications for Delinquencies in Contributions to CERS 

If the System became delinquent in making required contributions to CERS, the System 
could be held liable in court for the amount of the delinquent contributions plus interest.  In 
addition, the amount owed by the System to CERS could be deducted from other monies owed to 
the System from any department or agency of the Commonwealth.  If the System is delinquent in 
the payment of contributions, CERS is authorized to suspend payments to CERS members 
deriving their pension based on time served for the System until the delinquent contributions, 
with interest, have been paid to CERS. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Utility Commission will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the 
“Undertaking”) for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds to send certain information 
annually and to provide notice of certain events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(the “MSRB”) through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system (“EMMA”) pursuant to 
the requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12.  The form of the Undertaking is attached 
hereto as APPENDIX C, which sets forth the information to be provided on an annual basis, the 
events which will be noticed on an occurrence basis and a summary of other terms of the 
Undertaking, including termination, amendment and remedies.  Such annual information will be 
provided by not later than 210 days after the end of each of the Utility Commission’s fiscal years 
(presently, each May 31), commencing with the fiscal year ended May 31, 2018.  The 
Undertaking will be made by the Utility Commission in order to assist the Underwriter in 
complying with Rule 15c2-12. 
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The Utility Commission believes that it has complied in all material respects with its 
previous undertakings under Rule 15c2-12 (the “Prior Undertakings”) during the last five years.  
In the last five years, the outstanding obligations consist of the City’s Currently Outstanding 
Bonds (the “Water Revenue Bonds”).  The City’s electric debt consisted of Electric Light and 
Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 1991-B, Electric Light and Power System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2002-A, Electric Light and Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2010-A, 2010-B 
and 2010-C, Electric Light and Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013-A and 2013-B and 
Light and Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (the “Electric Revenue Bonds,” together 
with the Water Revenue Bonds, the “Prior Obligations”).  The Utility Commission did not file 
certain material event notices in connection with the rating changes of the issuer and bond 
insurers on its Prior Obligations.  The Utility Commission believes that information was 
disseminated or available through other sources.  The operating data filed for the City’s Electric 
Revenue Bonds for fiscal year ended 2013 was missing the Average Electric Rate table.  The 
missing operating data was provided in the fiscal year ended 2014 filing.  The Utility 
Commission has taken steps to ensure compliance with the Undertaking and the Prior 
Undertakings and now requires that the audited financial statements be posted on EMMA within 
30 days of them becoming available, typically in September of each year. 

A failure by the Utility Commission to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute 
an event of default under the Bond Ordinance and beneficial owners of the Bonds are limited to 
the remedies described in the Undertaking.  See “APPENDIX C—FORM OF CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.”  A failure by the Utility Commission to comply with the 
Undertaking must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any 
broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the 
Bonds in the secondary market.  Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the 
transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price. 

NO LITIGATION 

There is no litigation pending or threatened which, in the opinion of counsel to the City, 
would have a material adverse effect on the operations or financial condition of the System.  
There is not now pending against the City any litigation restraining or enjoining the issuance or 
delivery of the Bonds, questioning or affecting the validity of the Bonds or the proceedings and 
authority under which they are to be issued or questioning or affecting the obligations of the City 
under the Bond Ordinance. 

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are 
subject to the approving legal opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois (“Chapman 
and Cutler”), Bond Counsel, who has been retained by, and acts as, Bond Counsel to the City.  
Chapman and Cutler has also been retained by the City to serve as Disclosure Counsel to the 
City with respect to the Bonds.  Although as Disclosure Counsel to the City, Chapman and 
Cutler has assisted the City with certain disclosure matters, Chapman and Cutler has not 
undertaken to independently verify the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any of the 
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statements contained in this Official Statement or other offering material related to the Bonds 
and does not guarantee the accuracy, completeness or fairness of such information.  Chapman 
and Cutler’s engagement as Disclosure Counsel was undertaken solely at the request and for the 
benefit of the City, to assist it in discharging its responsibility with respect to this Official 
Statement, and not for the benefit of any other person (including any person purchasing Bonds 
from the Underwriter), and did not include any obligation to establish or confirm factual matters, 
forecasts, projections, estimates or any other financial or economic information in connection 
therewith.  Further, Chapman and Cutler makes no representation as to the suitability of the 
Bonds for investment by any investor.  Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City by 
its counsel. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

Federal tax law contains a number of requirements and restrictions which apply to the 
Bonds, including investment restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United 
States, requirements regarding the proper use of bond proceeds and the facilities financed 
therewith, and certain other matters.  The City and the Utility Commission (the Utility 
Commission’s covenants referred to in this “TAX EXEMPTION” section being set forth in the “Tax 
Exemption Certificate and Agreement” executed in connection with the issuance of the Bonds) 
have covenanted to comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in order for the interest 
on the Bonds to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to 
comply with certain of such covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to become includible in 
gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. 

Subject to the City’s and the Utility Commission’s compliance with the above-referenced 
covenants, under present law, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is 
excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, and is 
not included as an item of tax preference in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for 
individuals and corporations, but Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to whether the interest 
on the Bonds is taken into account in computing adjusted current earnings, which is used in 
determining the federal alternative minimum tax for certain corporations.  The alternative 
minimum tax for corporations is repleased for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017. 

In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon certifications of the City and the 
Utility Commission with respect to certain material facts within the City’s and the Utility 
Commission’s knowledge.  Bond Counsel’s opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its 
review of the law and the facts that it deems relevant to render such opinion and is not a 
guarantee of a result. 

Ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to 
certain taxpayers, including, without limitation, corporations subject to the alternative minimum 
tax, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, financial institutions, certain insurance 
companies, certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad 
Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) 
indebtedness to purchase or carry tax-exempt obligations.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds 
should consult their tax advisors as to applicability of any such collateral consequences. 
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The issue price for original issue discount (as further discussed below) and market 
discount purposes (the “OID Issue Price”) for each maturity of the Bonds is the price at which a 
substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is first sold to the public (excluding bond 
houses and brokers and similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, 
placement agents or wholesalers).  The OID Issue Price of a maturity of the Bonds may be 
different from the price set forth, or the price corresponding to the yield set forth, on the inside 
cover page hereof. 

If the OID Issue Price of a maturity of the Bonds is less than the principal amount 
payable at maturity, the difference between the OID Issue Price of each such maturity, if any, of 
the Bonds (the “OID Bonds”) and the principal amount payable at maturity is original issue 
discount. 

For an investor who purchases an OID Bond in the initial public offering at the OID Issue 
Price for such maturity and who holds such OID Bond to its stated maturity, subject to the 
condition that the City complies with the covenants discussed above, (a) the full amount of 
original issue discount with respect to such OID Bond constitutes interest which is excludable 
from the gross income of the owner thereof for federal income tax purposes; (b) such owner will 
not realize taxable capital gain or market discount upon payment of such OID Bond at its stated 
maturity; (c) such original issue discount is not included as an item of tax preference in 
computing the alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations under the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), but owners of OID Bonds should consult their 
own tax advisors as to whether such original issue discount is taken into account in computing 
adjusted current earnings, which is used in determining the federal alternative minimum tax 
liability for certain corporations under the Code, as described above; and (d) the accretion of 
original issue discount in each year may result in an alternative minimum tax liability for 
corporations or certain other collateral federal income tax consequences in each year even 
though a corresponding cash payment may not be received until a later year.  Owners of OID 
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences 
of original issue discount on such OID Bonds. 

Owners of Bonds who dispose of Bonds prior to the stated maturity (whether by sale, 
redemption or otherwise), purchase Bonds in the initial public offering, but at a price different 
from the OID Issue Price or purchase Bonds subsequent to the initial public offering should 
consult their own tax advisors. 

If a Bond is purchased at any time for a price that is less than the Bond’s stated 
redemption price at maturity or, in the case of an OID Bond, its OID Issue Price plus accreted 
original issue discount (the “Revised Issue Price”), the purchaser will be treated as having 
purchased a Bond with market discount subject to the market discount rules of the Code (unless a 
statutory de minimis rule applies).  Accrued market discount is treated as taxable ordinary 
income and is recognized when a Bond is disposed of (to the extent such accrued discount does 
not exceed gain realized) or, at the purchaser’s election, as it accrues.  Such treatment would 
apply to any purchaser who purchases an OID Bond for a price that is less than its Revised Issue 
Price.  The applicability of the market discount rules may adversely affect the liquidity or 
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secondary market price of such Bond.  Purchasers should consult their own tax advisors 
regarding the potential implications of market discount with respect to the Bonds. 

An investor may purchase a Bond at a price in excess of its stated principal amount.  
Such excess is characterized for federal income tax purposes as “bond premium” and must be 
amortized by an investor on a constant yield basis over the remaining term of the Bond in a 
manner that takes into account potential call dates and call prices.  An investor cannot deduct 
amortized bond premium relating to a tax-exempt bond.  The amortized bond premium is treated 
as a reduction in the tax-exempt interest received.  As bond premium is amortized, it reduces the 
investor’s basis in the Bond.  Investors who purchase a Bond at a premium should consult their 
own tax advisors regarding the amortization of bond premium and its effect on the Bond’s basis 
for purposes of computing gain or loss in connection with the sale, exchange, redemption or 
early retirement of the Bond. 

There are or may be pending in Congress legislative proposals, including some that carry 
retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred 
to above or affect the market value of the Bonds.  It cannot be predicted whether or in what form 
any such proposal might be enacted or whether, if enacted, it would apply to bonds issued prior 
to enactment.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors 
regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion 
regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation. 

The Service has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine 
whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the 
gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.  It cannot be predicted 
whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds.  If an audit is commenced, 
under current procedures the Service may treat the City as a taxpayer and the Bondholders may 
have no right to participate in such procedure.  The commencement of an audit could adversely 
affect the market value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the 
ultimate outcome. 

Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of, tax-exempt 
obligations, including the Bonds, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service.  
Additionally, backup withholding may apply to any such payments to any Bond owner who fails 
to provide an accurate Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, 
or a substantially identical form, or to any Bond owner who is notified by the Service of a failure 
to report any interest or dividends required to be shown on federal income tax returns.  The 
reporting and backup withholding requirements do not affect the excludability of such interest 
from gross income for federal tax purposes. 

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that the Bonds are exempt from Commonwealth 
ad valorem taxation and interest on the Bonds is exempt from present Commonwealth income 
taxes.  Ownership of the Bonds may result in other state and local tax consequences to certain 
taxpayers.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences 
arising with respect to the Bonds.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax 
advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 

The general purpose financial statements of OMU for the Fiscal Years ended May 31, 
2016, and 2017, included in this Official Statement as APPENDIX A have been audited by the 
Auditor, as stated in their report appearing in APPENDIX A of this Official Statement.  The Utility 
Commission has not requested the Auditor to update information contained in the 2017 Audit or 
the 2018 Draft Audit nor has the Utility Commission requested that the Auditor consent to the 
use of the 2017 Audit or the 2018 Draft Audit in this Official Statement.  Other than as expressly 
set forth in this Official Statement, the financial information contained in the 2017 Audit and the 
2018 Draft Audit has not been updated since the respective dates of the 2017 Audit and the 
2018 Draft Audit.  The inclusion of the 2017 Audit and the 2018 Draft Audit in this Official 
Statement in and of itself is not intended to demonstrate the fiscal condition of the Utility 
Commission since the respective dates of the 2017 Audit and the 2018 Draft Audit.  Specific 
questions or inquiries relating to the financial information of the Utility Commission since the 
respective dates of the 2017 Audit and the 2018 Draft Audit should be directed to Ms. J. Lynn 
Holland, Director of Finance and Accounting of OMU. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

BOND RATING 

Moody’s has assigned the Bonds a rating of “A1”.  This rating reflects only the views of 
Moody’s and any explanation of the significance of such rating may only be obtained therefrom.  
Certain information concerning the Bonds and the City not included in this Official Statement 
was furnished to Moody’s by the City.  There is no assurance that the rating will be maintained 
for any given period of time or that such rating may not be changed by Moody’s if, in such rating 
agency’s judgment, circumstances so warrant.  Any downward change in or withdrawal of the 
rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

Except as may be required by the Undertaking described below under the heading 
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE,” neither the City nor the Underwriter undertakes responsibility to 
bring to the attention of the owners of the Bonds any proposed change in or withdrawal of the 
rating or to oppose any such revision or withdrawal. 

FUTURE DEBT 

Except for the Bonds, the City does not currently anticipate issuing any System debt in 
2018 or 2019. 

DEFAULT RECORD 

The City has no record of default and has met its debt repayment obligations promptly. 
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FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, St. Louis, Missouri, is employed as Financial 
Advisor to the City to render certain professional services, including advising the City on a plan 
of financing in connection with the sale of the Bonds.  Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, 
Incorporated, in its capacity as Financial Advisor, has read and supervised the compilation of this 
Official Statement.  Under the terms of its engagement, the Financial Advisor is not obligated to 
undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent verification of, or to assume 
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information contained in this 
Official Statement, other than this section. 

The Financial Advisor’s duties, responsibilities and fees in connection with this issuance 
arise solely from the services for which it is engaged to perform as financial advisor on the 
Bonds.  Stifel’s compensation for serving as the Financial Advisor on the Bonds is conditional 
on the successful closing of the Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

____________________________ (the “Underwriter”) has agreed, subject to certain 
conditions, to purchase the Bonds from the City at a purchase price equal to $___________ 
(which is equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, plus original issue premium of 
$________, less original issue discount of $___________, less an underwriting discount of 
$__________).  The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers (including dealers 
depositing such Bonds into investment trusts, accounts or funds) and others at prices different 
than the initial public offering price.  After the initial public offering, the public offering price of 
the Bonds may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter. 

OTHER MATTERS  

All information contained in this Official Statement is subject, in all respects, to the 
complete body of information contained in the original sources thereof and no guaranty, 
warranty or other representation is made concerning the accuracy or completeness of the 
information herein.  In particular, no opinion or representation is rendered as to whether any 
projection will approximate actual results, and all opinions, estimates and assumptions, whether 
or not expressly identified as such, should not be considered statements of fact.   

Simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds, the Director of Finance and Accounting 
of OMU, acting on behalf of the City, will furnish to the Underwriter a certificate which shall 
state, among other things, that to the best knowledge and belief of such officer, this Official 
Statement (and any amendment or supplement hereto) as of the date of sale and as of the date of 
delivery of the Bonds does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements herein, in light of 
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any material respect. 

Information set forth in this Official Statement has been furnished or reviewed by certain 
officials of the City, certified public accountants, and other sources, as referred to herein, which 
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are believed to be reliable.  Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of 
opinion, estimates or projections, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not 
as representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates or projections 
will be realized. 

The form of this Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriter, has 
been approved by the City.  Neither the City nor any of its officers, directors or employees, in 
either their official or personal capacities, has made any warranties, representations or guarantees 
regarding the financial condition of the City or the City’s ability to make payments required of it; 
and further, neither the City nor its officers, directors or employees assumes any duties, 
responsibilities or obligations in relation to the issuance of the Bonds other than those either 
expressly or by fair implication imposed on the City by the Bond Ordinance. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Additional information regarding the City or the Bonds may be obtained from J. Lynn 
Holland, Director of Finance and Accounting at P.O. Box 806, Owensboro, Kentucky 42302 
(270-926-3200). 

CITY UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

By:  ___________________________________  
Interim General Manager 

Owensboro Municipal Utilities 

September __, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

City Utility Commission 
City of Owensboro, Kentucky 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Owensboro Municipal 
Utilities Electric Light and Power System (Electric System) of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, as 
of and for the years ended May 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Owensboro Municipal Utilities Electric Light and Power 
System of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, as of May 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in 
financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America . 
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City Utility Commission 
Page Two 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Electric System, an 
enterprise fund of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, and do not purport to, and do not, present 
fairly the financial position of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, as of May 31, 2017 and 2016, the 
changes in its financial position or, where applicable, its cash flows, for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages:3 through 6, the Schedule of Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability on page 36, and the Schedule of Contributions on page 37, be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements .. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers 
it to be an essential. part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Out audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
as a whole. The schedule of revenues and expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the financial statements. 

The Schedule of Revenues and Expenses is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the schedule of revenues and expenses is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole. 

Owensboro, Kentucky 
September 7,2017 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Owensboro Municipal Utilities Electric Light and Power 
System (Electric System) financial performance provides an overview of the Electric System's 
financial activities for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with 
the Electric System's financial statements, which begin on page 7. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of three parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis, Financial 
Statements, and Supplementary Information. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the basic 
financial statements and supplementary information. The MD&A represents management's 
examination and analysis of the Electric System's financial condition and performance, 

The financial statements report information using accounting methods similar to those used by 
private sector companies. The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position; a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position; a Statement of Gash. 
Flows; and Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Electric System and thus 
provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations atyear-end, , 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the 
business activities over the course of the fiscal year and information asto how the net position 
changed during the year .. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow; 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from 
operational, financing and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash 
disbursements information, without consideration of the earnings event or when an obligation 
arises. 

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that 
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes 
present information about the Electric System's accounting policies, significant account 
balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and 
subsequent events, if any. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

Financial Summary 

The following table summarizes the financial condition and operations of the Electric System for 
2017 and 2016. 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 2017 2016 

Utility plant, net $ 175,221,640 $ 187,514,699 
Restricted assets 99,383,755 101,281,782 
Current assets 52,822,451 52,893,448 
Other noncurrent assets 14,392,124 12,977,099 
Deferred outflows of resources 12,071,027 12,375,170 

$ 353,890,997 $ 367;04:2,198 
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and 
Net Position 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets $ 7,929,669 $ 7,652,971 
Restricted 70,338,515 68,620,816 
Unrestricted 26,478,211 19,674,740 

Total net position 104,746,395 95,948,527. 

Long-term debt 173,404,723 189,212,814 
Current liabilities 38,433,377 41,676,030 
Other noncurrent liabilities 31,393,460 26,842,~64 
Deferred inflows of resources 5,913,042 13;361,863 

$ 353,890,997 $ 36],042,198 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position 

Operating revenues $ 147,495,908 $ 140,804,689 

Operating expenses 120,196,927 117,976,641 

Operating income 27,298,981 22,828,048 

Interest and debt expense (11,149,966) (11,527,656) 
Interest and other income 1,770,169 133,616 

Net nonoperating expenses (9,379,797) (11,394,040) 

Income before transfers 17,919,184 11,434,008 

Transfers out - dividends to City of Owensboro (9,121,316) (8,817,687) 

Change in net position $ 8,797,868 $ 2,616,321 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Total net position increased $8.8 million in 2017, or 9.2%, versus an increase of $2.6 
million in 2016 as the result of changes in operating revenues, operating expenses, 

. nonoperating revenues/expenses and transfers as discussed below. 

• Operating revenues increased $6.7 million, or 4.8%, in 2017 when compared to 2016. 
Wholesale revenues increased $4.3 million, or 9.3%, in 2017 as a result ofincreased 
wholesale energy sales volumes and a slight increase in average wholesale market 
prices. Additionally, retail revenues increased $2.1 million, or 2.3%, in 2017 primarily 
due to increased recovery of environmental cost, as a result of additional cost incurred 
to comply with new mercury reduction standards that became effective near the end of 
fiscal 2016. Environmental costs are passed on to customers through the 
environmental control cost adjustment, which provides for the Electric System to 
adjust charges to its retail customers for increases in environmental compliance cost. 
Finally, telecommunication revenues were up $277,398, or 22.1%, due to increases in 
commercial telecommunication services, as well as additional residential services 
through the new Fiber-to-the-Home pilot program. 

• Operating expenses in 2017 increased $2.2 million, or 1.9%, versus 2016, largely-the 
result of depreciation which increased $2.3 million, or 14.1%, as aresult of plant 
additions as discussed below and accelerating deprecation on production plant assets. 
General and administrative expense declined $3,9 million, or 28.2%, as the Electric 
System began allocating payroll overhead cost, including taxes, retirement and other 
benefits, consistent with how wages were. charged in 2017. Previously payroll 
overhead costs were included in general and administrative expense. Partially 
offsetting this reduction was an increase in retirement expense of $1.5 million in 2017, 
largely due to adjustments resulting from the most recent CERS annual pension . 
actuarial valuation. The payroll overhead. shift is also largely responsible for. the 
increase in transmission and distribution expense of $1.4 million, or 16.44%. Finally; 
this shift also contributed to an increase in overall production costs, however 
production fuel cost increased $7.4 million, largely the result of increased generation 
and additional environmental costs incurred to comply with new mercury reduction 
standards as discussed above. Offsetting much of that increase was a reduction in other 
production costs, which resulted from a scheduled outage at Elmer Smith Generating 
Station (ESGS) in 2016 versus no scheduled outage in 2017. 

• Net nonoperating expenses decreased by $2 million, or 17.7%, in 2017 when compared 
to 2016. Interest expense decreased by $377,690, or 3.3%, primarily the result of 
scheduled principal payments on debt. Also in 2016 the Electric System incurred a 
loss on investment derivatives of $1.7 million, primarily due to cancellation of various 
fuel hedge position. The cancellations were necessary following the Electric System's 
negotiation of price reductions on existing fuel contracts, projected to reduce fuel cost 
by $6.3 million in calendar 2016 and 2017. The new contracts included modified 
diesel fuel clauses as the result of declining market prices. There were no similar 
losses incurred in 2017. 

• Dividend transfers to the City of Owensboro increased by $303,629 in 2017, or 3.4%, 
due partially to an increase in actual cash transfers to the City and to increased rates for 
the free electric service provided to the City. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of2017, the Electric System had $175.2 million invested in a broad range of assets, 
including power plant facilities and equipment, substation facilities and equipment, 
transformers, poles, wiring, street lighting, traffic signal equipment, communication 
equipment, fiber optic cable and equipment, buildings and other equipment. This represents a 
decrease of $12.3 million over 2016 due to depreciation which exceeded capital asset 
additions. In addition to other routine capital additions during 2017, the Electric System 
incurred $770,000 on routine pole change-outs, $758,000 on the Fiber ... to-the-Home pilot 
program to deliver highspeed internet service to residential customers and $581,000 to replace 
faulty underground wiring in targeted areas. The following table summarizes capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation, at theend of2017 and 2016: 

Production plant 
Transmission plant 
Distribution plant 
General plant 
Unclassified plant and construction in progress 

2017 

$ 97,729,914 s 
13,006,573 
37,652,576 
7,791,166 
19,041,411 

$ 175,221,640 $ 

Debt 

2016 

108,966,661 
13,789,168 

. 35,953,781 
8,219,469 

20,585,620 

187,51'4,699 

At the end of 20J 7, the Electric System had $191. 7 million in bonds outstanding Versus $207.3 
million in 2016, for a decrease of$15.6 million, or 7.5%. As there was no debt issued in2017, 
the decrease is due to scheduled bond payments. 

Outlook 

We expect the 2018 net operating results to decline somewhat from 2017 results, with overall 
cost increases anticipated to outpace increased revenues. Revenues from retail customers are 
expected to increase as additional energy costs are anticipated to be passed on to retail 
customers, due to reduced energy cost recovery from wholesale customers, resulting from 
continuing inadequacy of wholesale market prices. Costs are also expected to increase due to 
an anticipated increase in power production at ESGS, as well as other general cost increases. 
Furthermore, the Electric System will continue to research future power supply options, as a 
result of the recent decision to switch from coal production to alternative power sources. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM. 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

May31,2017 and 2016 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Utility plant, net 

Restricted assets 

$ 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables: 

Retail accounts receivable, less allowance for 
doubtful accounts of $41,251 for 2017 
and $54,904 for 2016 

Wholesale accounts receivable 
City of Owensboro 
Other 

Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 
Other 

Total current assets 

Other noncurrent assets: 
, Unamortized debt expense 
Energy cost to be recovered 
Other noncurrent assets 

Total other noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging 

derivatives 
Deferred pension outflows 
Unamortized loss on debt refunding 
Net unrealized loss on investments 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

See Noles 10 Financial Statements 
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2017 

175,221,640 s 
99,383,755 

28,142,820 
6,039,228 

9,428,215 
2,144,123 
222,420 
327,742 

3,281;502 
394,326 

2,842,075 

1,244,861 
n,521,754 
1,625,509 

14,39;2,124 

341,819,970 

2,285,656 
7,668,097 
1,835,148 
282,126 

12,071,027 

$ 353,890,997 

2016 

187,514,699 

101,281,782 

27,426,580 
1,899,203 

9,333,059 
1,829,482 
148,035 
650,847 

3,315,511 
.373,364 

7,917,367 

52,893,448 ' 

1,454,232 
8,011,523 
3,511,344 

12,977,099 

354,667,028 

4,338,276 
5,483,103 
2,545,528 

8,263 

12,375,170 

$ 367,042,198 



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 2017 2016 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 7,929,669 $ 7,652,971 
Restricted for capital projects, net of related debt 5,318,510 5,622,502 
Restricted for debt service 13,782,076 12,487,762 
Restricted for other purposes 51,237,929 50,510,552 
Unrestricted 26,478,211 19,674,740 

Total net position 104,746,395 95,948,527 

Long-term debt 173,404,723 189,212,814 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets): 
Current maturities of long-term debt 18,251,851 18,066,845 
Accrued interest payable 2,93'1,410 3,009,471 
Accounts payable 4,057,888 4,784,763 

25,241,149 25,861,079 

Current liabilities (payable from current assets): 
Accounts payable 4,914,914 5,755,257 
Other 8,277,314 10,059,694 

13,192,228 15,814,951 

Total current liabilities 38,433,377 41,676,030 

Other noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 30,858,179 26,254,442 
Other 535,281 588,522 

Total other noncurrent liabilities 31,393,460 26,842,964 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 1O) 

Total liabilities 243,231,560 257,731,808 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging 

derivatives 4,485,606 11,295,112 
Deferred pension inflows 354,685 589,339 
Deferred revenue 1,072,751 1,477,412 

Total deferred inflows of resources 5,913,042 13,361,863 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position $ 353,890,997 $ 367,042,198 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 
Operating revenues: 

Charges for services: 
Residential $ 31,097,720 $ 30,131,855 
Commercial 7,116,947 7,005,427 
Industrial 52,944,090 52,603,819 
Water Works System 1,101,570 999,908 
City of Owensboro and Schools 2,825,192 2,195,241 
Supplemental power 1,405,095 1,199,388 
Other wholesale 48,981,965 44,907,850 

Build America Bond subsidy 538,954 539,243 
Other 1,484,375 1,221,958 

Total operating revenues 147,495,908 140,804,689 

Operating expenses: 
Production: 

Fuel for electric generation 56,664,811 49,267,137 
Purchased power 6,758,909 6,847,091 
Other 16,221,380 21,792,325 

Transmission and distribution 9,6.90,171 8,321,746 
Customer service and Information 1,922,102 1,475,606 
General and administrative 9,898,923 13,786,217 
Telecommunications 805,939 510,46.9 
Depreciation 18,234,692 15,976,050 

Total operating expenses 120,196,927 117,976,641 

Operating income 27,298,981 22,828,048 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest and debt expense (11,149,966) (11,527,656) 
Interest income on investments 1,752,055 1,739,614 
Loss on investment derivatives (l,691,427) 
Other, net 18,114 85,429 
Net increase in fair value of investments (273,862) 181,369 
Deferred net change in fair value of investments 273,862 (181,369) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (9,379,797) (11,394,040) 

Income before transfers 17,919,184 11,434,008 

Transfers out ~ dividends to City of Owensboro (9,121,316) (8,817,687) 

Change in net position 8,797,868 2,616,321 

Net position, beginning of year 95,948,527 93,332,206 

Net position, end of year $ 104,746,395 $ 95,948,527 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers, including collections 

as agent for third parties 
Customer remittances to third parties 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from non capital flnanelng actiVities: 
Transfers out - dividends to. City of Owensboro 

Cash flows from capital and related flaanelng activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Payments on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 

Net cash used in capital and related 
financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of 

investments 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Included in the following balance sheet captions: 
Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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$ 169,275,518 
(25,392,395) 
(85,797,852) 
(13,729,573) 

44;355,698 

(9,121,316) 

(6,936,122) 
(18,680,000) 
(7,251,361 ) 

(32,867,483) 

$ 150,418,582 
(22,909,643) 
(92,540,756) 
(13,252,322) 

21,715,861 

(8,817,687) 

(16,337,146) 
(2,780,000) 
(7,424,589) 

(26,541,735) 

(34,150,289) (25,400,927) 

24,318,334 12,200,000 
.1,672,408 1,693,136 

(8,159,547) (11,507,791) 

(5,792,648) (25,151,352) 

78,518,847 103,670,199 

$ 72,726,199 $ 78,518,847 

$ 44,583,379 $ 51,092,267 
28,142,820 27,426,580 

$ 72,726,199 $ 78,518,847 



OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Concluded 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Other revenues 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in assets: 
Restricted assets: 

Fuel inventory 
Other 

Receivables 
Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 
Other current assets 
Other noncurrent assets 
Deferred outflow of resources 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Other current liabilities 
Othernoncurrent liabilities 
Deferred inflow. of re$ource$ 

$ 27,298,981 $ 22,828,048 

18,502,615 
18,114 

16,243,973 
85,429 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

854,520 (5,216,217) 
20,906 20,853 

(125,203) 1,662,784 
34,009 143,644 
(20,962) 19,609 

5,075,292 (369,087) 
,(1,624,396) (7,986,146) 

(132,374) (3,174,138) 

(865,099) 451,167 
(1,782,380) 386,113 < 

4,550,496 5,733,499 
(7,448,821) (9,n3,670~ 

$ 44,355,698 $ 21,715,861 

$ 3,413,709 $ 3,613,549 

$ 562,957 $ 562,956 

$ 2,199,950 $ 6,956,836 

Noncash investing, capital and final1cing activities: 
Accretion of interest expense on long-term debt 

Amortization of debt premium and expense 
and deferred loss on debt defeasance 

Deferred gain (loss) on hedging derivatives 

See NOles 10 Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

General Information 

In 1940, the City of Owensboro, Kentucky (City), established the City Utility Commission 
to manage, control and operate Owensboro Municipal Utilities (OMU). City officials 
appoint the five individuals who comprise the City Utility Commission. OMU consists of 
the Electric Light and Power System (Electric System) and the Water Works System (Water 
System), which are separate enterprise funds of the City. Accordingly, the Electric System 
and the Water System are part of the financial reporting entity of the City. The 
accompanying financial statements present only the Electric System and are not intended to 
present fairly the financial position Of the City and the changes in its financial position or, 
where applicable,. its cash flows, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The Electric System is subject to regulation by 
the City, including approval of rates charged for utility services, as set forth in applicable 
City ordinances. 

The Electric System provides electric power to approximately 26,000 residential, 
commercial and industrial customers in Owensboro, Kentucky. The Electric Sysremalso 
sells electric power into regional wholesale power markets and to other wholesale 
customers. 

The Electric System consists of the original generating station, the transmission and 
distribution plant and the Elmer Smith Generating Station (ESGS). ESGS is operated, 
including subsequent additions, as a separate division. 

System of Accounts and Basis of Accounting 

The Electric System's accounts are maintained substantially in accordance with the Uniform 
System of Accounts of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America using the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, including the 
application of Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 980, Regulated Operations, as the standard relates to the deferral of 
revenues and expenses to future periods in which the revenues are earned or the expenses 
are recovered through the rate-making process. 

The Electric System considers electric and telecommunications revenues and costs that are 
directly related to generation, purchase, transmission, and distribution of electricity and 
telecommUnications services to be operating revenues and expenses. Revenues and 
expenses related to financing and other activities are reflected as nonoperating. 

12 



OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

System of Accounts and Basis of Accounting, Continued 

The Electric System accrues revenues as services are rendered to utility customers, In 
addition, the Electric System's present electric rate ordinance provides for an energy cost 
adjustment and environmental control cost adjustment to be made to customer bills, except 
bills rendered to the City; to reflect changes in the price of fuel and maintenance costs and 
environmental compliance costs to generate electricity. The Electric System estimates and 
records amounts to be billed or refunded under the energy cost adjustment on a monthly 
basis. 

Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes the cost of contracted services, 
materials, labor, and Iabor-related expenditures, administrative and .general costs, and an 
allowance for borrowed funds used during construction. 

Replacements of depreciable property units, except minor replacements, are charged to 
utility plant, Properly units replaced or retired; including cost of removal net of any salvage, 
are charged to accumulated depreciation. Routine maintenance, repairs and minor 
replacement costs. are charged to expense as incurred. 

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction includes capitalized interest' during 
the construction period less any interest income on construction fund investments from bond 
proceeds during such period. Capitalization of interest is discontinued when the project is 
completed and the related utility plant is placed in service. 

Depreciation of utility plant ~nd unclassified plant in service is provided using the straight­ 
line composite rate method over the estimated service lives of the depreciable assets of the 
Electric System, excluding ESGS, and on the sinking fund method for ESGS depreciable 
assets. Estimated service lives of assets depreciated using the composite method range from 
5 to 60 years. The sinking fund method was adopted for ESGS as a result of the terms of a 
power sale contract. Depreciation expense during 2017 and 2016 was approximately 4.1 % 
and 3.7%, respectively, of the average original cost of depreciable utility plant in service. 

Restricted Assets 

The City ordinances that authorized the Electric Light and Power Revenue Bonds require 
that certain amounts from bond proceeds and payments by customers for services provided 
be deposited into designated funds and be used only for the specified purposes of the funds. 
The Electric System's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Cash and Investments 

Cash deposits are reported at carrying amounts. Certificates of deposit and long-term 
repurchase agreements are reported at cost. The Electric System categorizes the fair value 
measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles. U.S. government obligations and agency securities are stated at fair 
values based upon externally developed models that use rates and prices of similar 
securities. 

The Electric System considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with 
a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Unrestricted 
investments with initial maturities exceeding three months, consisting of certificates of 
deposit and U.S. agency securities, are classified as temporary investments. 

Inventories 

Inventories consisting of materials and supplies and fuel inventory (included in restricted 
assets) are valued at the lower of weighted average cost or market. Fuel for electric 
generation is charged to expense asused, 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Premiums and discounts arising from various bond issues are deferred and amortized using 
the straight-line method over the lives of the bond issues. 

The Electric System's rate making methodology allows for future recovery of debt costs, 
including bond issuance costs, in its rate making process. Accordingly, under F ASB ASC 
980, Regulated Operations, debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized using the 
straight-line method over the lives of the bond issues. 

The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of defeased bond 
issues has been deferred and is being amortized using the straight-line method over the lives 
of the refunding bond issues. 

Pensions 

. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the County Employees Retirement System (CERS) and 
additions to/deduction from CERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

IncomeTaxes 

The Electric System is exempt from federal and state income taxes and, accordingly, the 
financial statements include no provision for such taxes. 

Estimates 

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Hedgi,ngDerivative Instruments 

The Electric System has adopted GASB Statement No. 53, "Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Derivative Instruments" (GASB 53). GASH 53 requires that hedging 
derivative instruments (Hedging Transactions) be recorded at fair value and establishes 
certain requirements for revenue recognition, measurement and disclosure related to 
Hedging "Iransactions. The Electric System's Hedging Transactions have been tested for 
effectiveness under the guidelines prescribed by GASB 53. The Electric System utilized 
one of the three quantitative methods required by GASB 53, the synthetic instrument 
method. This method evaluates the effectiveness of a hedge transaction by comparing the 
relationship of the variable cash flows of the potential hedging item and the hedgeable item. 
The effectiveness testing of the Electric System's Hedging Transactions demonstrated that 
the hedges are effective as defined by GASB 53. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND 'pOWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

2. Utility Plant 

Electric utility plant activity for the year ended May 31,2017, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Relirems;nts Balance 

Utility planJ: 

Production plant s 314,676,990 s 2,348,087 s (204,113) s 316,820,964 
Transmission plant 31,628,550 214,941 (19,556) 31,823,935 
Distribution plant 80,910,630 4,530,598 (673,602) 84,767,626 
General plant 21,123,368 663,824 (104,318) 2),682,874 
Unclassified plant in service 16,026,926 (3,935,352) 12,091,574 

Total..at original cost 464,366,464 3,822,098 (I,OQ1,5892 467;186,973 

Accumulated depreciation: 
P1'Qdl,lctipD pIiUlt (205,710,329) (1.3,584,834) 204,1}3 (219,091,050) 
Transmission plant (17,839,382) (997,536) 19,556 (18,817,362) 
Dlstribution plant (44,956,849) (2,824,967) 666,766 (47,115,050) 
Genc,'.ral plant 02,903,8992 {1,095,2772 107,468 {13z891,7082 

'T9tal accumulat¢d depreciMion (281,410,4592 (18,502,p142 997,903 (298,915,170) 

ConStruction in progress 4,558,694 2,391,143 6z949,837 

Utility plant, net $ 187,514,699 $ (12,289,373) s (3,686) $ 175,221,640 

Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31 was as-follows: 

2017 2016 

Electric utility plant $ 18,059,961 $ 15,798,581 
Telecommunications 174,731 177,469 

18,234,692 15,976,050 
Transportation and stores depreciation charged to 
construction activities or other operating 
expenses 267,922 267,923 

$ 18,502,614 $ 16,243,973 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES' 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

3. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets at May 31 consists of the following: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued interest receivable 
Fuel and other inventories, at cost 
Other. 

2017 

$ 44,583,379 $ 
42,841,842 

463,476 
10,808,057 

687,001 

2016 

51,092,267 
37,427,652 

391,379 
11,662,577 

707,907 

$ 99,383,755 s 101,281,782 

The above balances are contained in the following funds: 

Operation and Maintenance Fund 
Construction Fund 
Depreciation Fund 
Sinking Funds 
Facility Charge Fund 
Reserve and Contingency Fund 

2017 
13,177,786 $ 
7,035,731 
4,971,208 
31,145,787 
7,937,837 

35,115,406 

99,383,755 $ 

$ 

$ 

2016 
14,021,740 
7,956.,499 
5,325,505 

31,253,257 
7,856,374 

34,868,407 

101,281,782 

The terms of the City ordinances authorizing the Electric System's Electric Light and Power 
Revenue Bonds require all investment income to be credited to the various restricted asset 
funds. 

OMU follows GASB Statement No. 31, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investments Pools" (GASB 31), which requires certain 
investments to be carried at fair value in the balance sheets and changes in the fair value of 
investments to be reported in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net 
position. In accordance with GASB 31, OMU recorded unrealized gains (losses) of 
($273,862) and $181,369 for the years ended May 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. OMU's 
rate making methodology does not consider unrealized gains or losses on marketable 
securities in its rate making process. Accordingly, under F ASH ASC 980, Regulated 
Operations, the unrealized gains for the years ended May 31, 2017 and 2016, have been 
deferred. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

3. ,. Restricted Assets, Continued 

The net increase in the fair value of investments consists of the following: 

(273,862) 

$ . (273,862) 

2016 

s 
181,369 

$ 181,369 

Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 

$ 

The calculation of realized gains or losses on sales of investments is independent of the 
calculation of the net change in the fair value of investments. Realized gains or losses on 
investments that were held in more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year were 
included as a net change in the fair value of investments reported in prior years and the 
current year. 

4. Cash Deposits and Investments 

At May 31, the carrying amounts of the Electric System's deposits in financial institutions 
and investments other than deposits were: 

Deposits in financial institutions 
Investments other than deposits 

2017 2016 

$ 73,735,944 $ 78,518,847 
47,.871,325 39,326,855 

$ 121,607,269 s 117,845,702 

These amounts are reflected in the statements of net position as: 

2017 2016 

Cash and cash equivalents s 28,142,820 s 27,426,580 
Temporary investments 6,039,228 1,899,203 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 44,583,379 51,092,267 
Investments 42,841,842 37,427,652 

s 121,607,269 s 117,845,702 

Deposit and Investment Policy. The Electric System's deposit and investment policy 
prescribes to the prudent-person rule: Investments shall be made with applicable law and 
under prevailing circumstances which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence 
exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of their capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

4. Cash Deposits and Investments, Continued 

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the 
Electric System's deposits may not be returned to it. The Electric System's deposit and 
investment policy permits uncollateralized deposits only if issued by institutions ranked in 
one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. As of May 31, 
2017, $73,734,589 of the Electric System's bank balance of $73,957,155 was exposed to 
custodial credit risk as follows: 

Uninsured and uncollateralized 
Uninsured with collateral held by pledging bank's agent 

Total 

$ 

$ 

73,734,589 

73,734,589 

Investments are measured at fair value. on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value 
measurements are those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statements require Or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting 
period. Fair value .measurements are. categorized based .on the valuation inputs used to 
measure an asset's fair value: Levell inputs are quoted prices in active.markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. The Electric System's investments consist primarily of U.s. agency 
securities, which utilize Level 2 inputs for fair value measurements. Fair value is based 
upon externally" developed models that use rates and prices of similar securities, due to the 
limited market activity of the securities. 

As of May 31, 2017, the Electric System had the following investments, which are reported 
at fair value, with the exception of repurchase agreements, which are reported at cost. 

Investments 
Repurchase agreements 
Federal Farm Credit Bank - Callable 

Maturities 
12/3112019 
03/19/2018 

thru 
12/15/2025 
12/2812018 

thru 
06/29/2022 
06/29/2018 

thru 
05/24/2022 

s 8,900,000 

19,862,005 

Federal Home Loan Bank - Callable 

19,109,320 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 

1,009,745 
s 48,881,070 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

4. Cash Deposits and Investments, Continued 
Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
rising interest rates, the Electric. System's deposit and investment policy limits investment 
maturities based upon provisions of bond ordinances. The bond ordinances limit 
investments contained in the Operation and Maintenance Fund to five years and limit 
investments in the Depreciation Fund, Sinking Funds, and Facility Charge Fund to ten years. 

Credit Risk. The Electric System's deposit and investment policy authorizes the investment 
of funds in any manner permitted by bond ordinances and the Kentucky Revised Statutes 
and does not further limit its investment choices. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. .Other than the prudent-person rule, the Electric System's 
deposit and investment policy places no limit on the amount the Electric System may invest 
in anyone issuer. The Electric System's investments, other than deposits, are in U.S. 
agency securities and repurchase agreements at May 31, 2017. 

5. Hedging Transactions 
The Electric System is exposed to market price fluctuations on its sale of surplus electricity 
and to market price fluctuations on the price of diesel fuel, due to its Iong-term coal 
contracts, many of which contain diesel fuel adjustment clauses. To protect itself from 
wholesale electricity price fluctuations and diesel fuel price fluctuations, the Electric System 
periodically enters into electricity price and fuel swap and futures contracts (hedging 
transactions). Hedging transactions are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The 
Electric System utilizes Level 2 inputs (see investment footnote for definition of fair value 
inputs) for fait value measurements of hedging transactions. 

The Electric System enters into electricity and fuel hedging transactions at various fixed 
prices and notional amounts. Each electricity short hedging transaction provides for the 
Electric System to pay a floating price and for the contract counterparty to pay a fixed price, 
and each fuel hedging transaction provides for the Electric System to pay a fixed price and 
the contract counterparty to pay a floating price for the notional amount of each type of 
contract. Furthermore, the Electric System from time to time will remove an electricity 
short hedge position by entering into a long hedging transaction to pay a fixed price, and for 
the contract counterparty to pay a floating price for a like notional amount as the original 
hedging transaction. The notional amount of each electricity and. fuel hedging transaction is 
measured in megawatt hours (MWh) and gallons, respectively, with the floating price based 
on a specific published index (spot price) for the relevant contract month. 

The Electric System entered into electricity hedging transactions with notional amounts 
totaling 1,752,765 and 4,304,145 MWh in 2017 and 2016, respectively. Hedging 
transactions with notional amounts totaling 3,563,755 and 3,259,980 MWh were settled in 
2017 and 2016, respectively, with a resulting gain of $5,977,726 and $6,814,041 in 2017 
and 2016, respectively, which are reflected in other wholesale revenue. At May 31, 2017, 
the Electric System's outstanding electricity hedging swap transactions were as follows: 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

5. Hedging Transactions, Continued 

Execution 
Date Range Maturity Date 

Notional 
Amount 
(MWh) 

Fair Market 
Value 

Short Hedge 
Positions: 

Fiscal 2015-2016 

Fiscal 2016 

Fisca12018 1.005,850 s 1.064.501 

Fiscal 2019 571,020 l,lO8,165 

1,576,870 2,ln,66~ 

Long Hedge 
Positions: 
Fiscal 2015-2016 

Fiscal 2016 

Fiscal 2018 

Fiscal 2019 

165.655 26.446 
15,680 838 

181.335 27,284 

1,758,205 $ 2,199,950 --"""----- 
The Electric System entered into fuel hedging transactions with notional amounts totaling 
924,000 gallons in 2016 and did not enter into any fuel hedging transactions in 2017. 
Hedging transactions with notional amounts totaling 336,000 and 4,284,000 gallons were 
settled in 2017 and 2016, respectively, with resulting losses of $5,120 and $2,471,107 in 
2017 and 2016, respectively. The above losses resulted primarily from significant declines 
in the price of diesel, which led to corresponding price reductions on coal shipments that 
partially offset the losses, as well as allowing the Electric System to negotiate price 
reductions on existing fuel contracts in 2016. The resulting losses, which were offset by 
significant reductions in fuel costs, are reflected in the statements of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net position as follows: 

Fuel for electric generation (effective hedges) 
Loss on hedging derivatives (ineffective hedges) 

2017 2016 

. (5,120) $ (779,680) 
(1,691,427) 

$ (5,120) $ (2,471,107) 

$ 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

5. Hedging Transactions, Continued 

The electricity and fuel hedging transactions are settled by cash payments that are equal to' 
the difference between the contract price and the settlement price (financially settled). 
These financially settled hedging transactions are hedging derivative instruments as defined 
by GASB 53. Accordingly, the Electric System's unrealized gains and losses on its 
outstanding hedging transactions are reported at fair value in other current assets, other 
noncurrent assets, other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities in its May :H, 2017 
and 2016 statements of net position. The fair market value for each of the Electric System's 
hedging transactions have been determined by computing the difference between the 
contractual forward price and the published forward price at the respective market's 
settlement point at market closing as of May 31, 2017 and 2016. The Electric System's 
electricity hedging transactions settle and are valued at the AEP-Dayton Hub, the PJIvI West 
Hub and the Indiana Hub, which are settlement hubs in the PJM and MISO energy markets, 
respectively. The heating oil hedging transactions settle and are valued at the heating oil 
futures index of the New York Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX) and the diesel hedging 
transactions settle and are valued at the NYMEX Energy Information Administrations (EIA) 
Flat Tax On-Highway Diesel Futures index. The outstanding electricity hedging 
transactions had a fair value of $2,199,950 and $7,408,05} at May 31, 20178.11<1 2016, 
respectively. The fuelhedging transactions had a fair value 0[$6,146 at May 31, 20l6and 
there Were no outstanding fuel hedging positions at May 31, 2017. 

Credit Risk: The Electric System is exposed to credit risk on hedging transactions that are 
in ail asset position. To minimize the Electric System's exposure to loss related to credit 
risk, the Electric System requires certain counterparties to post collateral equal to all or a 
portion of the fair value of hedging transactions in asset positions (net of the effect of 
applicable netting arrangements) should the fair value of the netted contracts exceed 
contractually agreed upon parameters or if the credit rating of a certain counterparty or, an 
affiliated guarantor of the counterparty, is at, or falls below, contractually agreed-upon 
levels. Collateral posted is in the form of a letter of credit or US dollars held by the Electric 
System. At May 31, 2017, the Electric System's rated counterparties, or affiliated 
guarantors, had credit ratings ranging from A to BBB+ as established by a nationally 
recognized rating organization. The Electric System also had two counterparties that were 
not rated but had provided a letter of credit for the purpose of establishing credit. 

It is the Electric System's practice to enter into netting arrangements whenever it has entered 
into more than one financially settled forward swap contract transaction with a counterparty. 
If one party becomes insolvent or defaults on its obligations, closeout netting provisions 
permit the non-defaulting party to accelerate and terminate all outstanding transactions and 
net the transactions' fair values so that a single sum will be owed to, or owed by, the non­ 
defaulting party. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

5. Hedging Transactions, Continued 

The aggregate fair value of outstanding Hedging Transactions in asset positions with 
counterparties that the Electric System had a net asset position with at May 31, 2017, was 
$4,199,726. The asset positions represent the maximum loss that would be incurred. at the 
reporting date if all counterparties failed to perform as contracted. This maximum exposure 
is reduced by $497,650 of collateral held and $1,985,609 of outstanding fledging 
Transactions in a liability position included in netting arrangements with those 
counterparties, resulting in a netexposure to credit risk of$1,716,467. 

Basis Risk: The Electric System is exposed to basis risk on its hedging transactions because 
the price of the expected physical commodity sale being hedged will be priced at pricing 
points (South Import PJM Interface or LG&E MISO Interface), which are different than the 
pricing points at which the hedging transactions will settle (AEP .. Dayton. Hub, PJM West 

. Hub or Indiana Hub). Management believes this risk is not material based on quantitative 
analysis. 

Termination Risk: The Electric System is exposed to termination risk on its' hedging 
transactions because a counterparty may fail to perform under the terms of one or more 
contracts resulting in the termination of the aggregate contracts with that eounterparty, To 
minimize the Electric System's exposure to loss related to termination risk, the Electric 
System requires counterparties to post collateral equal to the fair value of hedging 
transactions in asset positions (net of the effect of applicable netting arrangements) should 
the fair value of the netted contracts exceed contractually agreed upon parameters or if the 
credit rating of a certain counterparty, or an affiliated guarantor of the counterparty, is at, or 
falls below, contractually agreed-upon levels. If at the time of termination the net position of 
financially settled power contracts with a terminating party is in an aggregate liability 
position, the Electric System would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the 
aggregate liability position, subject to netting arrangements. 

Commitments: Hedging transactions provide that the Electric System post collateral in the 
event that 1) OMU's credit profile falls below contractually agreed-upon parameters or 2) 
the fair value of the Electric System's hedging transactions are in a liability position (net of 
the effect of applicable netting arrangements) should the fair value of the netted contracts 
exceed contractually agreed-upon parameters. When collateral is posted, it is in US dollars 
in the amount of the fair value of the hedging derivative instruments in liability positions 
(net of the effect of applicable netting arrangements). If the Electric System does not post 
collateral, the aggregate outstanding hedging transactions may be terminated by the 
counterparty. If the collateral posting requirements related to OMU's credit profile had been 
triggered at May 31, 2017, the Electric System would have been required to post collateral 
with its counterparties in the amount $14,167. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

6. Long-Term Debt 
Long-term debt activity for the year ended May 31, 2017, was as follows: 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Bonds. payable: 
Series of 1991-B $ 54,718,792 $ 3,413,709 $ (15,725,000) $ 42,407,501 $ 15,lll,851 
Series of2002-A 12,985,000 (2;955;000) 10,030,000 3,140,000 
Series of2010-A 10,070,000 10,070,000 
Series of2010-B 31,425,000 31,425,000 
Series of2010-C 8,935,000 8,935,000 
Series of20I3-A 8,875,000 8,875,000 
Series of2013-B 77,100,000 77,100,000 

204,108,792 3,413,709 (18,680,000) 188,842,501 18,251,851 
Add unamortized 
debt premium 3,170,867 ~356,794~ 2,814,073 

Total long-term debt $ 207,279,659 $ 3,4IJ,709 $ (19,036,794) $ 191;65Q,574 $ 18,251,851 

Long-term debt at May 31 consists of the following Electric Light and Power Revenue 
Bonds: 

Series of 1991-B: 
Deferred interest bonds including 
interest compounded semi-annually 
at 6.70% to 6.95%, principal and 
interest due from 2017 to 2020 
(original principal of outstanding bonds 
at May 31,2017, was $4,767,499) $ 42,407,501 $ 54,718,792 

Series of2002-A: 
6.34% due 2020, subject to annual pro rata 
sinking fund redemption from 2017 to 2020 

Series of2010-A: 
Current interest bonds, 4.88% to 5.03%, 
due from 2021 to 2022 

Series of2010-B: 
Current interest bonds, 4.88% to 5.58%, 
due from 2021 to 2025 

Series of2010-C: 
Current interest bonds, 5.00%, 
due from 2021 to 2022 

10,030,000 12,985,000 

10,070,000 10,070,000 

31,425,000 31,425,000 

8,935,000 8,935,000 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

6. Long-Term Debt, Contfnued 

Series of2013-A: 
Current interest bonds, 3.40% to 3.65%, 
due from 2021 to 2022 8,875,000 8,875,000 

Series of2013-B: 
Current interest bonds, 3.00% to 5.00%, 
due from 2022 to 2027 . 77,100,000 

188,842,501 

77,100,000 

204,108,792 Total long-term debt 

Less current maturities (18,25J,85J) 

2,814,073 

$173.404.723 

( 18,066,845) 

Add unamortized debt premium 3,170,867 

$189,212,814 

Sinking fund. requii .. ements and scht;:duled aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as 
follows: 

Year Ending May 31 : PrinciJ;!al Interest Total 
2018 $ 18,865,000 s 7,035,383 $ 25,900,383 
2019 19,065,000 6,836,307 25,901,307 
2020 1.9,275,000 6,624,551 25,899,551 
2021 18,550,000 6,399,481 24,949,481 
2022 19,385,000 5,561,233 24,946,233 
2023 -2027 98,470,000 12,958,949 111,428,949 

$ 193,610,000 s 45,415,904 s 239,025,904 

The scheduled principal maturities include $4,767,499 of interest scheduled to be incurred in 
future years on deferred interest bonds, which will be compounded and added to the original 
principal amounts. 

The Electric System is subject to certain debt covenants, compliance with which is required 
by the ordinances authorizing its bond issues. Such ordinances require revenue to be first 
applied to the Sinking Funds, second to the Operations and Maintenance Fund, third to the 
Additions and Replacements Fund, fourth to the Depreciation Fund, fifth to the Reserve and 
Contingency Fund, and, finally, to the Facility Charge Fund. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

6. Long-Term Debt, Continued 

On December 6, 1991, the City issued $62,474,359 of Electric Light and Power System 
Revenue Bonds, 1991~B series, dated December 6, 1991. These deferred interest bonds bear 
interest at rates ranging from 6,70% to 6.95% which, when compounded semi-annually and 
added to the original principal amount, will result in compounded amounts at scheduled 
maturities. in 2005 to 2020 of $25,000 per bond. 

The 1991-B Bonds were issued to provide construction funds for certain pollution control 
facilities and equipment, certai~ solid waste disposal facilities and equipment and related 
purposes. 

The 1991-B series is not subject to redemption prior to maturity. 

On February 27, 2002, the City issued $34,905,000 of Electric Light and Power System 
Revenue Bonds, Taxable 2002-A Series and $12,205,000 of Electric Light and Power 
System Revenue Bonds, Tax-Exempt 2002~B Series, each dated February 1,2002. 

The 2()()2-A and B Bonds were issued to provide construction funds for certain pollution 
control Iacilitic;Js and equipment. 

The 2002-A series is subject to scheduled redemption prior to maturity based upon annual 
pro rata sinking fund redemptions. In addition, the 2002-A series is subject to early 
redemption, in whole or in part, at any time, at terms specified in the 2002 Official 
Statement. 

On November 18,2010, the City issued $10,070,000 of Electric Light and Power System 
Revenue Bonds, Taxable 2010-A Series, $31,425,000 of Electric Lightand Power System 
Revenue Bonds, Taxable 2010-13 Series (Build America Bonds) and $8,935,000 of Electric 
Light and Power System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Tax-Exempt 201O-C Series, each dated 
November 4, 2010. The 2010 Bonds were issued to fund various capital improvement 
expenditures for the Electric System and to refund the 2002-B series bonds. The in­ 
substance defeasance of the 2002-B Bonds was accomplished by placing approximately 
$9,274,976 in proceeds from the 2010-C Bonds and $170,826 in funds from the 2002-B 
Bond Sinking Fund in an irrevocable escrow fund to be used solely for satisfying scheduled 
debt service payments of the 2002~B Bonds. Accordingly, the 2002-B Bonds in the amount 
of $9,230,000, net of unamortized discount and issuance costs of $123,543 and accrued 
interest payable of $164,248, were extinguished resulting in the accounting recognition of a 
loss from defeasance of $175,097, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a 
reduction of long-term debt. The City advance refunded the 2002-B bonds to extend the 
repayment period of the bond, reduce its near term annual debt payments and reduce the 
effective rate on the debt. The advance refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference 
between the present value of the debt service payment on the old and new debt) 0[$558,382. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

6. Long-Term Debt, Continued 

The 2010-B Series bonds (Build America Bonds - Direct Payment) were issued in 
connection with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Act). Under the 
Act, state and local governments were authorized. to issue taxable bonds to finance capital 
expenditures for which they could otherwise issue tax-exempt bonds, and receive from the 
IRS a direct interest subsidy totaling 35% of the total coupon interest paid to investors. Due 
to current federal budget sequestration, the direct interest subsidy is currently reduced to 
33% of the total coupon interest. Interest subsidy received for fiscal years 2017 and 2016 
was $538,954 and $539,243, respectively. Remaining interest subsidies scheduled through 
maturities of the bonds, before budget sequestration reductions, ate as follows: 

Year Ending May 31 : 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 -2027 

s 578,846 
578,846 
578,846 
578,846 
503,779 
868,069 

s 3,687,232 

The 20W-A, a and C series are subject to redemption prior to maturity in whole or in part 
on any date on or after January 1, 2020, at the redemption price (expressed as a percentage 
of principal amount to be redeemed) of 100%, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 
Furthermore, the 20 I O-B series (Build America Bonds) may be subject to redemption prior 
to maturity in whole or in part upon the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event, as defined in 
the Official Statement. As discussed above, Build America Bonds involve a payment to the 
issuer from the United States Treasury for a portion of the interest payable on such bonds. If 
the associated payment from the United States Treasury is reduced or eliminated through no 
fault of the issuer (Extraordinary Event), the bonds will become redeemable, at the option of 
the issuer, at a potentially reduced redemption price, as defined in the Official Statement. 

On June 25, 2013, the City issued $8,875,000 of Electric Light and Power System Revenue 
Bonds, Taxable 2013-A Series and $77,100,000 of Electric Light and Power System 
Revenue Bonds, Tax-Exempt 2013-B Series, each dated June 25, 2013. The 2013 Bonds 
were issued to fund various capital improvement expenditures for the Electric System and to 
refund certain 1991-B series bonds. The in-substance defeasance of the 1991-B Bonds was 
accomplished by placing $40,325,905 in proceeds from the 2013-B Bonds and $6,552,083 
in funds from the 1991-B Bond Sinking Fund in an irrevocable escrow fund to be used 
solely for satisfying scheduled debt service payments of the 1991-B Bonds. Accordingly, 
the 1991-B Bonds in the amount of $42,597,295, net of unamortized discount and issuance 
costs of $211,974, were extinguished resulting in the accounting recognition of a loss from 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

6. Long-Term Debt, Continued 

defeasance of $4,492,667, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred 
outflow. The City advance refunded the 1991 .. B bonds to extend the repayment period of 
the bond and reduce its near term annual debt payments. The advance refunding resulted in 
an economic loss (difference between the present value of the debt service payment. on. the 
old and newdebt) of$2,993,589. 

The 2013-A and B series are subject to redemption prior to maturity in whole or in part on 
any date on or after January 1,2020, at the redemption price (expressed as a percentage of 
principal amount to be redeemed) of 100%, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 

All bonds are secured by a pledge of, and are payable from, the gross revenues derived from 
the operation of the Electric System and are secured by a statutory mortgage lien as provided 
and authorized by the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

7. Dividends - City of Owensboro 

Under the tenus of City ordinances authorizing the Electric ,System bonds, whenever all 
specified or required transfers and payments have been set aside and paid into the restricted 
asset funds and there is a. balance in excess of the amount to be set aside and paid into the 
restricted asset funds during the next succeeding two months (approximately $23,496,000 at 
May 31, 2017), the City Utility Commission may withdraw and transfer from such excess to 
the general fund of the City in any fiscal year an amount not to exceed 10% of the value of 
the City's ownership (net assets) exclusive of interest accumulated on deposits in the 
Reserve and Contingency Fund ($11,189,710 at May 31,2017) and amounts in the Facility 
Charge Fund ($7,937,837 at May 31, 2017) as shown on the Electric System's books on the 
first day of the fiscal year. The Ordinance also allows for the transfer to the City of a sum 
equal to the dollar value of services purchased by the City from the Electric System in the 
fiscal year, not to exceed, however, $700,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1985, and 
thereafter increasing at a compound rate of 5% per annum; Transfers to the City under this 
ordinance and agreement were $9,121,316 and $8,817,687 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

8. Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The Electric System contributes to the County Employees Retirement System (CERS), 
which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by 
Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS) that covers all regular full-time members employed in 
nonhazardous positions of each participating county, city, and school board, and any 
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Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

8. Pension Plan, Continued 

Plan Description, Continued 

additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in CERS. Kentucky Revised Statute 
Section 61.645 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit. provisions to the Board 
of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems (Board). eERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that can be obtained at www.kyret.ky.gov. 

Benefits Provided 

CERS provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to system members through its 
pension fund. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of members under 
certain circumstances. Retirement benefits ate determined using a formula which considers 
the member's final compensation; benefit factors set by statute Which vary depending upon 
the type I amount of service, participation date, and retirement date; and years of service. 
Plan members with a participation pate prior to September 1, 2008, are eligible to retire with 
full benefits at any time with 27 or more years of service credit, or at age 65 with at least 48 
months of service credit. Plan members with a participation date on or after September 1, 
2008, ate eligible to retire with full benefits at age 57 if the member's age .and years of 
service equal 87, or at age 65 with at least 60 months of service credit. Plan members with a 
participating date on or after January 1, 2014, ate eligible for retirement benefits under the 
provisions established for a hybrid Cash Balance Plan. 

CERS also provides for retiree medical benefits through its insurance fund. Generally 
accepted accounting and financial reporting principles do not currently require recognition 
and reporting of the liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, 
and expense associated with this postemployment benefit. Therefore, such information has 
not been reflected in these financial statements. 

Contributions 

Per Kentucky Revised Statues Section 78.545(33), contribution requirements of the active 
employees and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the KRS 
Board. Plan members who began participating in CERS prior to September 1, 2008, are 
required to contribute 5% of their annual creditable compensation to the pension fund. For 
Plan members who began participating in CERS on or after September 1, 2008, the 
contribution rate is 6%, of which 1 % is contributed to the insurance fund. The Electric 
System's actuarially determined contribution rate as of May 31,2017, was 18.68% of annual 
creditable compensation, of which 13.95% and 4.73% was contributed to the pension and 
insurance funds within CERS, respectively. Contributions to CERS pension fund by the 
Electric System were $2,062,855 for the year ended May 31, 2017. 
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8. Pension Plan, Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At May 31, 2017,' the Electric System reported a liability of $30,858,179 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Electric System's proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the Electric System's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating 
entities, actuarially determined. At the. June 30, 2016, measurement date, the Electric 
System's proportion was 0.626738%, an increase of 0.016102% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2015, 0[0.610636%. 

For the year ended May 31, 2017, the Electric System recognized pension expense of 
$4,246,945. At May 31,2017, the Electric System reported deferred.outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences, between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes ofassumptions 
Changes in proportion and differences 

between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments 

Pension contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources .' 

$ 134,719 $ 
1,634,701 

424,910 354,685 

2,900,984 

2,572,783 
$ 7,668,097 $ 354,685 -_ ........ _- 
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8. Pension Plan, Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions. Continued 

The $2,572,783 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the Electric System's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the year ending May 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows (inflows) of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending May 31, 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

$ 1,676,242 
1,217,156 
1,202,742 
644,489 

$ 4,740,629 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate 
of return. 

3.5% 

4.0 average, including inflation 

7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For 
healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 
Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back one year for females). 
For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with 
Scale BB to 2013 (set back four years for males) is used for the period after disability 
retirement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1,2008 - June 30, 2013. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%, which was 
unchanged from the prior year rate. The discount rate does not use a municipal bond rate. 
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8. Pension Plan, Continued 

Projected Cash Flows 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local 
employers would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected 
compensation over the remaining 27 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. The actuarial determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase 
in of anticipated gains on actuarial value ofassets over the first four years of the projection 
period. 

Long-Tenn Rate of Return 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience 
studies prepared" every five years for CERS. The most recent analysis, performed for the 
period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30,2014. 
Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption 
including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log­ 
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by the 
investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce 
the long .. term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital market 
assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 10-year 
horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding pension 
plans which covers a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a long-term 
assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset allocation, 
a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters 
expected returns in future years. 

Periods of Projected Benefit Payments 

Projected future benefit payments for all current plan members were projected through 2117. 
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8. Pension Plan, Continued 

Assumed Asset Allocation 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Combined equity 
Combined fixed income 
Real return (diversified inflation strategies) 
Real estate 
Absolute return (diversified hedge funds) 
Private equity 
Cash equivalents 

Total 

Target 
Allocation 

44% 
19 
10 
5 
10 
10 
2 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

5.40% 
1.50 
3.50 
4.50 
4.25 
8.50 
-0.25 

100% 

Sensitivity of the Electric System's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to 
Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Electric System's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what the Electric System's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or l-percentage-point higher (8.50%) 
than the current rate: 

1% decrease 
Current discount rate 
1% increase 

Discount rate 
6.5% 
7.5% 
8.5% 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Electric System's 
proportionate share 
of net pension 

liability 
$38,454,288 
$30,858,179 
$24,346,801 

Detailed information about the CERS fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued Kentucky Retirement Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
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2018 
2019 
2020 

$ 59,483,841 
41,098,871 
11,932,958 

$ 112,515,670 
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10. Commitments and Contingencies, Continued 

OMU is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. OMU manages 
its risks through coverages provided by private insurance carriers for various risks of losses 
to which it is exposed, including directors and officers, employee dishonesty, boiler and 
machinery, workers' compensation, and other property risks. The boiler and machinery 
policy contains a deductible of $500,000 and excludes acts of terrorism from its coverage, 
OMY is self-insured for group health and limits its risks of loss by purchasing reinsurance 
coverage. 

OMU has been identified by the United States Environmental Protection Agency as one of 
numerous parties that may be liable for damages under federal law with respect to a 
superfund hazardous waste site. Through May 31,2017, OMU has paid $57,500, plus legal 
costs, related to this matter. Based upon the opinion of its outside legal counsel, 
management does not anticipate additional costs to be material, however, the ultimate 
resolution of this matter and the related financial impact on OMU, if any, cannot be 
determined at this time, . 

There are a humber of other pending legal actions involving OMU. Management believes 
that the outcome of such legal actions and claims will not have a material effect on OMU's 
financial position or results of operations. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last 10 Fiscal Years '" 

2017 2016 2015 

Electric System's proportion of the net pension liability 0.626738% 0.610636% 0.632508% 

$ 30,858,179 $ 26,254,442 s 20,520;943 

$ 15,035,975 $ 14,221,628 s 14,612,052 

205.23% 184 .. 61% 140044% 

55.50% 59.97% 59.31% 

Electric System's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Electric System's covered-employee payroll 

Electric System's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension. liability 

'" Presented for those years for which the information is available. 

36 



OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Last 10 Fiscal Years * 

2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contributions $ 2,062,855 $ 1,908,105 $ 1,820,510 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contributions (2,062,855) (1,908,105) (1,820,510) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ 
===== 

Electric System's covered-employee payroll $ 14,889,969 $ 15,097,888 $ 14,199,426 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 13.85% 12.64% 12.82% 

* Presented for those years for which the information is available. 



Changes of Benefit Tenns 

None 

Changes of Assumptions 

None 

OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITmS 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Year Ended May 31,2017 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

Year Ended May 31, 2017 (with comparative totals for 2016) 

Retail Electric Wholesale Power 
System Marketing 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services: 

Residential $ 31,013,549 $ 
Commercial 5,926,398 
Industrial 52,944,090 
Water Works System 1,075,310 
City of Owensboro and Schools 2,775,201 
Supplemental power ·1,405,095 
Other wholesale 49,019,933 
Electric Light and Power System 

Build America Bond subsidy 394,806 
Other 1,588,365 

Total operating revenues 95,717,719 50,425,028 

Operating expenses: 
Production: 

Fuel for electric generation 
47,435;440 Purchased power 59,146,111 

Other , . 
Transmission and distribution 5,963,890 3,7.62,767 
Customer service and information 1,852,452 
General and administrative 4;88J,552 1,585;658 
Telecommunications 
Depreciation 3,889,260 

Total operating expenses 64,022,594 64,494,536 

Operating income (loss) 3),695,125 (14,069,508) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest and debt expense (1,741,307) 
Interest income on investments 755,008 11,295 
Interest income on Elmer Smith Generating Station 

investments allocated to: 
Electric System 987,833 

Loss on investment derivative instruments 
Other, net 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (2,810) 
Deferred net change in fair value of investments 2,810 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 1,534 11,295 

Income before transfers 31,696,659 (14,058,213) 

Transfers out - dividends to City of Owensboro (9,121,316) 

Change in net position $ 22,575,343 $ (14,058,213) 

39 



Elmer Smith 
Generating 2016 
Station Telecommunications Eliminations Total Total 

$ s 84,171 $ $ 31,097,720 s 30,131,855 
1,190,549 7,116,947 7,005,427 

52,944,090 52,603,819 
26,260 1,101,570 999,908 
49,991 2,825,192 2,195,241 

1,405,095 1,199,388 
(37,968) 48,981,965 44,907,850 

99,814,541 184,096 (99,998,637) 
144,148 538,954 539,243 

(103,990~ 1,484,375 1,221,958 

99,958,689 1,535,067 (l OQ, 140,595) 147,495,908 140,804,689 

56,664,811 56,664,811 49,267,137 
29,867 (99,852,5Q9) 6,758,909 6,847,091 

16,233,560 (12,180) 16,221,380 21,792,325 
76,848 (1l3,?34) 9,690,171 8,321,746 

69,650 1,922,102 1,475,606 
3,401,291 147,868 (U7,446) 9,898,923 13.,786,217 

851,065 (45,126) 805,939 510,469 
14,170,701 174,731 18,234,692 15,976,050 

90,577,078 1,243,314 (lOQ,140,595) 120,196,927 117,976,641 

9,381,611 291,753 27,298,981 22,828,048 

(9,408,659) (11,016) 11,016 (11,149,966) (11,527,656) 
996,767 I (11,016) 1,752,055 1,739,614 

(987,833) 
(1,691,427) 

18,114 18,1l4 85,429 
(271,052) (273,862) 181,369 
271,052 273,862 (181,369! 

~9,381,61 Q (11,015) (9,379,797) (11,394,040) 

280,738 17,919,184 11,434,008 

{9,121,316) (8,817,687) 

$ $ 280,738 $ $ 8,797,868 $ 2,616,321 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

City Utility Commission 
City of Owensboro, Kentucky 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Owensboro Municipal 
Utilities Water Works System (Water System) of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, as of and for 
the years ended May 31,2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed 
in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 
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City Utility Commission 
Page Two 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Owensboro Municipal Utilities Water Works System of the 
City of Owensboro, Kentucky, as of May. 31, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in financial position 
and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with. accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements present only the 
Water System, an enterprise fund of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, and do not purport to,. and 
do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, as of May 31, 2017 
and 2016, the changes in its financial position or, where applicable, its cash flows, for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. . 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 43 through 46, the Schedule of Proportionate 
Share of the Net Pension Liability on page 69,. and the Schedule of Contributions on page 70, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements .. Such information; although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required' by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part offinancial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency With 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Owensboro, Kentucky 
September 7, 2017 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Owensboro Municipal Utilities Water Works System 
(Water System) financial performance provides an overview of the Water System's financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the Water 
System's financial statements, which begin onpage 47. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of two parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis and the 
Financial Statements. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the basic 
financial statements. The MD&A represents management's examination and analysis of the 
Water System's financial condition and performance. 

The financial statements report information using accounting methods similar to those used by 
private sector companies. The financial statements include a Statement of Net Position; a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position; a Statement of Cash 
Flows; and Notes to the. Financial Statements. 

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Water System and thus 
provides information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at year-end'. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the 
business activities over the course of'the fiscal year and information as to how the net position 
changed during the year.. All changes in net position ate reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow. 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from 
operational, financing and investing activities. This statement presents cash receipts and cash 
disbursements information, without consideration of the earnings event or when an obligation 
arises. 

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide required disclosures and other information that 
are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes 
present information, about the Water System's accounting policies, significant account 
balances and activities, material risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and 
subsequent events, ifany. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

Financial Summary 

The following table summarizes the financial condition and operations of the Water System 
for 2017 and 2016. 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Utility plant, net 
Restricted assets 
Current assets 
Other noncurrent assets 
Deferred outflow of resources 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and 
Net Position 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Long-term debt 
Current liabilities 
Other noncurrent liabilities 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 

Operating income 

Interest expense 
Interest and other income 

Net nonoperating expenses 

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 
Capital contributions 
Transfers out - dividends to City of Owensboro 

Change in net position 
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2017 

$ 45,973,223 
9,857,786 
7,134,248 
1,074,073 
2,281,764 

$ 66,321,094 

$ 21,631,568 
1,149,286 
1,964,817 

24,745,671 

32,929,079 
2,139,30,5 
6,214,089 
292,950 

$ 66,321,094 

$ 11,522,989 
10,215,665 

1,307,324 

(1,525,999) 
173,992 

(1,352,007) 

(44,683) 
300,711 
(310,382) 

$ (54,354) 

2016 

$ 45,939,585 
11,616,260 
6,082,987 
1,188,283 
1,259,350 

$ 66,086,465 

$ 23,014,448 
984,200 
801,377 

24,800,025 

33,163,477 
2,264,113 
5,330,028 
528,822 

$ 66,086,465 

$ 11,175,649 
9,418,420 

1,757,229 

(1,520,179) 
142,778 

(l,3 77,401) 

379,828 
143,222 
(296,038) 

$ 227,012 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• Net position decreased $54,354 in 2017, and the income (loss) before contributions and 
transfers was,$(44,683) in 2017 versus $379,828 in 2016, as a result of changes in 
operating revenues, operating expenses and interest as discussed below. 

• Operating revenuesincreased by $347,3;40 in 20J7 when compared to 2016, or3.1%. 
The increase in revenues in 2017 is primarily attributable to an increase in revenue 
from the three rural water districts for whom the Water System supplies wholesale 
water. The cost-based revenues provided in the water district contracts increased as a 
result of increased operating costs as discussed below. 

• Operating expenses increased $797,245 in 2017 when compared to 2016, or 8.5%, 
largely due to an increase in production and purification cost of $849,904, or 31.6%. 
General and administrative expense declined $658,821, or 26.5%, as the Water System 
began allocating payroll overhead cost, including taxes, retirement and other benefits, 
consistent with how wages were charged in 2017. Previously payroll overhead costs 
were included in general.and administrative expense. Partially offsetting this reduction 
was an increase in retirement expense of $286,000 in 2017, largely due to adjustments 
resulting from the most recent CERS annual pension actuarial valuation. The payroll 
overhead shift also contributed to the increase in production and purification cost, as 
well as increased electricity cost and additional planned maintenance of wells. 
Transmission and distribution cost increased by $329,502 in 2017, or 33.3% and 
customer service and information cost increase $181,766, or 30.2%, primarily due to 
the additional payroll overhead allocations. 

• Interest expense increased slightly by $5,820 in 2017, or 0.4%, due to a full year of 
interest incurred on the 2015 Series bonds, which were issues during fiscal 2016. 
Partially offsetting the 2015 bond interest mcrease were reductions in interest due to 
scheduled debt repayments, as well as savings from the debt refunding, as discussed 
below. Interest income increased $29,048, or 25.8%, primarily due to higher rates 
received on bank balances and investment balances. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2017, the Water System had $46 million invested in a broad range of assets, 
including wells, treatment facilities and equipment, storage tanks, buildings and water mains. 
This amount represents a slight increase from 2016 due to capital asset additions. The 
following table summarizes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, at the end of 2017 
and 2016. 

2017 2016 

Source of supply plant $ 3,015,671 $ 3,152,205 
Pumping plant 369,327 398,557 
Water treatment plant 13,577,778 14,327,428 
Transmission and distribution plant 21,707,764 21,889,750 
General plant 1,158,230 1,360,079 
Unclassified plant and construction in progress 6,144,453 4,811,566 

$ 45,973,223 $ 45,939,585 
45 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION, CONTINUED 

Capital Assets, Continued 

In addition to. the Water System's routine additions and replacement of distribution plant, the 
Water System incurred $782,000 for design services related to. expansion of the Water 
System's Cavin water treatment plant, to. allow for abandonment of its treatment' Plant "A" as 
a result of.foundation settlement issues at the aging facility. 

Debt 

At the end, of 2017, the Water System had $33.8 million in bonds outstanding versus $33.9 
million in 2016, for a slight decrease of 0.4%. In fiscal 2017, $6.6 million in 2016 Series 
bonds were issued to. advance refund $5.9 million o.f2009 Series bonds at a.lowerinterest rate. 
The additional debt which resulted from the refunding was slightly less than the scheduled 
debt repayments, which resulted in the overall decline in outstanding bonds. The Water, 
System's bonds are insured and as a result Standard and Poor's Rating Services has assigned a 
rating of "AN' (Stable) and Moody's Investors Service has assigned an underlying rating of 
"AI" to. the bonds. 

Outlook 

In 2018, the Water System will be finalizing plans to. expand the treatment capability at the 
Cavin Water Treatment Plant, as mentioned above, The Water System is anticipating 
adjusting rates arid issuing additional debt in 2018 to. fund the treatment plant expansion. As a 
result, we expect the 2018 results to. improve as compared to. 2017, largely as a result of this 
anticipated water rate adjustment which will increase retail operating revenues, while overall 
costs are expected to increase only slightly. . 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

May 31,2017 and 2016 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Utility plant, net $ 45,973,223 

Restricted assets 9,857,786 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for 

doubtful accounts of $4,579 for 2017 and 
$6,196 for .2016 

Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 

1,256,269 
3,269,581 

1,988,594 
499,550 
120,254 

Total current assets 7,134,248 

Other noncurrent assets 1,074,073 

Total assets 64,039,330 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred pension outflow 
Unamortized loss on debt refunding 
Net unrealized loss on investments 

1,514,887 
723,289 
43,588 

Total deferred outflows of resources 2,281,764 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources s 66,321,094 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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$ 45,939,585 

11,616,260 

2,084,825 
1,370,862 

2,002,207 
510,274 
114,819 

6,082,987 

1,188,283 

64,827,115 

1,058,374 
200,838 

138 

1,259,350 

$ 66,086,465 



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for capital projects, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Long-term debt 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets): 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable 

Current liabilities (payable from current assets): 
Accounts payable 

Total current liabilities 

Other noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 
Customers' advances for construction 

Total other noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Deferred pension inflows 
Deferred revenues 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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2017 2016 

$ 21,631,568 $ 23,014,448 
393,915 323,675 
755,371 660,525 

1,964,817 801,377 

24,745,671 24,800,025 

32,929,079 33,163,477 

860,000 770,000 
274,466 304,342 
700,923 578,189 

1,835,389 1,652,531 

303,916 611,582 

2,139,305 2,264,113 

6,095,910 5,199,116 
118,179 130,912 

6,214,089 5,330,028 

41,282,473 40,757,618 

70,067 116,706 
222,883 412,116 

292,950 528,822 

$ 66,321,094 $ 66,086,465 



OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services: 

Residential $ 4,118,555 $ 4,190,006 
Commercial 3,882,440 3,838,455 
Water districts 2,344,208 2,020,162 
Fire protection 265,020 258,514 
City of Owensboro 310,382 296,038 
Electric Light and Power System 320,456 313,655 
Service revenues 281,928 258,819 

Total operating revenues 11,522,989 11,175,649 

Operating expenses: 
Production and purification 3,537,744 2,687,840 
Transmission and distribution 1,318,956 989,454 
Customer service and information 783,930 602,164 
General and administrative 1,819,627 2,478,448 
Depreciation 2,755,408 2,660,514 

Total operating expenses 10,215,665 9,418,420 

Operating income 1,307,324 1,757,229 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest and debt expense (1,525,999) (1 ;520, 179) 
Interest income on investments 141,477 11~,429 
Gain on sale of utility plant 32,515 30,349 
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (43,450) 47,647 
Deferred net change in fair value of investments 43,450 (47,647) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (l,352,007) (1,377,401) 

Income before contributions and transfers (44,683) 379,828 

Capital contributions 300,711 143,222 
Transfers out - dividends to City of Owensboro (310,382) ~296,038) 

Change in net position (54,354) 227,012 

Net position, beginning of year 24,800,025 24,573,013 

Net position, end of year $ 24,745,671 $ 24,800,025 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

Cash flows (rom operating activities: 
Receipts from customers $ 11,330,269 $ 11,036,718 
Payments to suppliers (4,510,937) (3,930,411) 
Payments to employees (2,751,157) (2,598,059) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,068,175 4,508,248 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfers out - dividends to City of Owensboro (310,315) (285,337) 

Cash flows from capital and related finandng 
activities: 
Capital expenditures (2,428,355) (2,647,203) 
Payments on long-term debt (770,000) (725,000) 
Interest.paid on long-term debt (1.,285,117) (1,319,329) 
Proceeds from bond issuance 6,511,882 5,300,652 
Payment to refunded bond agent (6,521,094) 
Reimbursements of customers' advances (7,465) (8,864) 
Debt issuance cost (44,050) (111,203) 

Net cash provided bycapital and related 
financing activities (4,544,199) 489,053 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments (4,911,067) (1,819,400) 
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments 3,004,000 
Interest on investments 128,726 110,230 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,778,341 ) (1,709,170) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,564,680) 3,002,794 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,472,305 8,469,511 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 8,907,625 $ 11,472,305 

Included in the following balance sheet captions: 
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted $ 1,256,269 $ 2,084,825 
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 7,651,356 9,387,480 

$ 8,907,625 $ 11,472,305 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Concluded 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 

Reconciliation of operating income to. net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Operating income s 1,307,324 s 1,757,229 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 2,845,408 2,750,514 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in assets: 
Accounts receivable 13,546 (175,707) 
Materials and supplies 10,724 (4,270) 
Prepayments (5,435) 7,400 
Other noncurrent assets (136) 1,195 
Deferred outflows of resources (456,513) (596,852) 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable (307,665) (37,92p) 
Other current liabilities 
Other noncurrent liabilities 896,794 1,097,340 
Deferred inflows (235,872) (290,675) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $' 4,068,175 $ 4,508,248 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities: 
Noncash contributions in aid of construction $ 295,443 $ 80,948 

Unrefunded customers' advances credited to 
contributions in aid of construction $ 5,268 $ 62,274 

Amortization of debt discount and expense and 
deferred loss on debt defeasance s 201,624 $ 162,574 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
51 



OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May31, 2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

General Information 

In 1940, the City of Owensboro, Kentucky (the City), established the City Utility 
Commission to manage, control, and operate Owensboro Municipal Utilities (OMU). City 
officials appoint the five individuals who comprise the City Utility Commission. OMU 
consists of the Electric Light and Power System (Electric System) and the Water Works 
System (Water System), which are separate enterprise funds of the City. Accordingly, the 
Electric System and the Water System are part of the financial reporting entity of the City. 
The accompanying financial statements present only the Water System and are not intended 
to present fairly the financial position of the City and changes in its financial position or, 
where applicable, its cash flows, in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, The Water System is subject to regulation, 
including approval of rates charged for utility services, by the City; as set forth in the 
applicable city ordinances. 

The Water System provides water to approximately 24,000 residential, commercial and 
industrial customers in Owensboro, Kentucky. The Water System also furnishes water to 
three rural water districts in Daviess County, Kentucky, under Wholesale supply agreements. 

System of Accounts and Basis of Accounting 

The Water System's accounts are maintained substantially in accordance with the Uniform 
System of Accounts for water companies developed by the National Association of 
Regulatory Utility Commissioners and in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Water System considers water revenues and costs that are directly related to production, 
purification, transmission, and distribution of water to be operating revenues and expenses. 
Revenues and expenses related to financing and other activities are reflected as 
nonoperating. The Water System accrues revenues as services are rendered to utility 
customers. 

Utility Plant and Depreciation 

Utility plant is stated at original cost, which includes the cost of contracted services, 
materials, labor, labor-related expenditures, general and administrative costs and an 
allowance for borrowed funds used during construction. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Utility Plant and Depreciation, Continued 

Replacements of depreciable property units, except minor replacements, are charged to 
utility plant. In addition, the costs of refurbishments of water tanks are charged to utility 
plant. Property units replaced or retired, including cost of removal net of any salvage, are 
charged to accumulated depreciation. Routine maintenance, repairs and minor replacement 
costs are charged to expense a~ incurred. 

Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction includes capitalized interest during 
the construction period less any interest income on construction fund investments from bond 
proceeds during such period. Capitalization of interest is discontinued when the project is 
completed and the related utility plant is placed in service. 

Depreciation of utility plant and unclassified plant in service is provided using the straight­ 
line composite rate method oyer the estimated service lives of the depreciable assets. 
Estimated service lives ofassets range from 5 to 80 years. Depreciation expense during 
2017 and 2016 was approximately 3.4% of the average original cost of depreciable utility 
plant in service. 

Restricted Assets 

The City ordinances that authorized the Water Revenue Bonds require that certain amounts 
from bond proceeds and payments by customers for services provided be deposited into 
designated funds and be used only for the specified purposes of the funds. The Water 
System's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for 
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available. 

Cash and Investments 

Cash deposits are reported at carrying amounts. The Water System categorizes the fair 
value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. U.S. government obligations, agency securities and 
negotiable certificates of deposit are stated at fair values based upon externally developed 
models that use rates and prices of similar securities. 

The Water System considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Unrestricted 
investments with initial maturities exceeding three months, consisting of us. agency 
securities and negotiable certificates of deposit, are classified as temporary investments. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Inventories 

Inventories consisting of materials and supplies are valued at the lower of weighted average 
cost or market. 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Premiums and discounts arising from various bond issues are deferred and amortized using 
the straight-line method over the lives ofthe bond issues. 

The Water System's rate making methodology allows for future recovery of debt costs, 
including bond issuance costs, in its rate making process. Accordingly, under FASS ASC 
980, Regulated Operations, debt issuance costs are deferred and amortized using the 
straight-line method over the lives of the bond issues. 

The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of defeased bond 
issues has been. deferred and is being amortized using the straight-line method over the lives 
of the refunding bond issues. 

Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred, inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the County Employees Retirement System (CERS) and 
additions to/deduction from CERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are. recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit. terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Customers' Advances for Construction 

Customers' advances for construction are refundable to depositors over a to-year period. 
Refund amounts under the contracts are based on annual revenues from the extensions. 
Unrefunded balances at the end of the contract period are credited to contributions in aid of 
construction and are no longer refundable. 

Contributions of Contributed Property and Equipment 

The donor cost or appraised value of contributed property and equipment is included in 
contributions. 

Income Taxes 

The Water System is exempt from federal and state income taxes and, accordingly, the 
financial statements include no provision for such taxes. 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

1. Organization and Summary ofSig~jficant Accounting Policies, Continued 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, requires management to' make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

2. Utility Plant 

Waterutility plant activity for the year ended May 31,2017, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Retirements Balance 

Utility plant: 
Source of supply plant $ 5,418,682 s 47,748 s s 5,466,430 
Pumping plant 1,177,250 651 1,177,901 
Water treatment. plant 29,742,179 26,691 29,768,870 
Transmission and distribution plant 38,100,550 1,347,060 (225,986) 39,221,624 
General plant 4,658,886 126,465 (70,534) 4,714,817 
Unclassified plant in service 1,539,914 213,988 1,753,902 

Total, at original cost 80,637,461 1;762,603 {296,520} 82,103,544 

Accumulated depreciation: 
Source of supply plant (2,266,477) (184,282) (2,450,759) 
Pumping plant (778,693) (29,881) (808,574) 
Water treatment plant (15,414,751) (776,341) (16,191,092) 
Transmission and distribution plant (16,210,800) (1,530,556) (227,496) (17,513,860) 
General plant ~3,298,807) (324,348~ {66,568~ p,556,587) 

Total accumulated depreciation p71969,528} (2,845,408) {294,0642 {40,520,872) 

Construction in progress 3,271,652 1,118,899 4,390,551 

Utility plant, net s 45,939,585 $ 36,094 $ (2,456) $ 45,973,223 

Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31 was as follows: 

2017 2016 

Water utility plant $ 2,755,408 $ 2,660,514 
Transportation depreciation charged to construction 

activities or other operating expenses 90,000 90,000 

$ 2,845,408 $ 2,750,514 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

Years Ended May 31,2017 and 2016 

3. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets at May 31 consist of the following: 

2017 2016 
7,651,356 $ 9,387,480 
2,188,732 2,223,395 

17,698 5,385 

9,857,786 $ 11,616,260 

3,183,700 $ 3,171,622 
338 7 

6,673,748 8,444,631 

9,857,786 s 11,616,260 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accrued interest receivable 

$ 

$ ===------ 
. The above balances are contained in the following funds: 

Sinking Fund $ 
Renewal and Replacement Fund 
Construction Fund 

$_=------ 
Under the terms of the Water Revenue Bond ordinances, interest income from the temporary 
investment of'the Water System's restricted assets must be credited to the various restricted 
asset funds. In addition, whenever all specified and required payments and transfers into the 
restricted asset funds have been made as provided in the Water Revenue Bond ordinances 
and there is a balance in excess of the estimated amounts required to pay current month 
operation and maintenance Costs (approximately $684,000 at May 31,2017), all or any part 
of such excess may be used for any lawful purpose related to the Water System. 

The Water System follows GASB Statement No. 31, "Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Certain Investments and for External Investments Pools" (GASB 31), which requires 
certain investments to be carried at fair value in the balance sheets and changes in the fair 
value of investments to be reported in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 
fund net assets. In accordance with GASB 31, the Water System recorded unrealized gains 
(losses) of($43,450) and $47,647 for the years ended May 31,2017 and 2016, respectively. 
The Water System's rate making methodology does not consider unrealized gains or losses 
on marketable securities in its rate making process. Accordingly, under F ASB ASe 980, 
Regulated Operations, the unrealized losses for the years ended May 31, 2017 and 2016, 
have been deferred. 

The net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments consists of the following: 

2017 
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investments $ $ 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments (43,450) 47,647 

$ (43,450) $ __ 47 ..... ,6_4_7_ 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Years Ended May 31, 2017 and 2016 

3. Restricted Assets, Continued 

The calculation of realized gains or losses on sales of investments is independent of the 
calculation of the net change in the fair value of investments. Realized gains or losses on 
investments that were held in more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year were 
included as a net change in the fair value of investments reported in prior years and the 
current year. 

4. Cash Deposits and Investments 

At MaySl , the carrying amounts of the Water System's deposits in financial institutions and 
investments other than deposits were: 

Deposits in. financial institutions 
Investments other than deposits 

2017 
$ 9,379,521 $ 

4,986,417 

$ 14,365,938 $ 

2016 
11,472,305 
3,594,257 

15,066,562 

These amounts are reflected in the statements of net position as: 

2017 2016 
---:? 

Cash and cash equivalents s 1,256,269 $ 2,084,825 
Investments 3,269,581 1,370,862 
Restricted assets: . 

Cash and cash equivalents 7,651,356 9,387,480 
Investments 2,}88,732 2,223,395 

$ 14,365,938 $ 15,066,562 

Deposit and Investment Policy. The Water System's deposit and investment policy 
prescribes to the prudent-person rule: Investments shall be made with applicable law and 
under prevailing circumstances which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence 
exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, 
considering the probable safety of their capital, as well as the probable income to be derived. 

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the 
Water System's deposits may not be returned to it. The Water System's deposit and 
investment policy permits uncollateralized deposits only if issued by institutions ranked in 
one of the three highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. As of May 31, 
2017, $9,357,536 of the Water System's bank balance of $9,384,970 was exposed to 
custodial credit risk as follows: 
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Uninsured and uncollateralized 
Uninsured with collateral held by pledging bank's agent 

Total 

s 
9,357,536 

$ 9,357,536 

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value 
measurements are those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statements require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting 
period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure an asset's fair value: Levell inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs ate significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs. The Water System's Investments consist of U.S. agency securities, 
which utilize Level 2 inputs for fair value measurements. Fair value is based upon 
externally developed models that use rates and prices of similar securities, due to the limited 
market activity of the securities. 

As of May 31, 2011, the Water System had thefollowinginvestments, which are reported a.t 
fair value: 

Investments Maturities 

12/28/2018 
thru 
0412612022 $ 1,776,956 
09/20/2018 
thru 
12/16/2024 3,209,461 
06/17/2021 
thru 
05/24/2022 471,896 

$ 5,458,313 

Federal Home Loan Bank - Callable 

Federal Farm Credit Bank - Callable 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
rising interest rates, the Water Works System's deposit and investment policy limits 
investment maturities based upon provisions of bond ordinances. 
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4. Cash Deposits and Investments, Continued 

Credit Risk. The Water System's deposit and investment policy authorizes the investment of 
funds in any manner permitted by bond ordinances and the Kentucky Revised Statutes and 
does not further limit its investment choices. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. Other than the prudent-person rule, the Water System's 
deposit and investment policy places no limit on the amount the Water System may invest in 
anyone issuer. All of the Water System's investments, other than deposits, are in U.S. 
agency securities at May 31, 2017. 

5. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt activity for the year ended May 31, 2017, was as follows: 

Amounts 
Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions BalaIlce One Year 

Bonds payable: 
Series of 2.0.09 s 19,16.0,.0.0.0 s s (5,895,.0.0.0) s 13,265,.0.0.0 s 
Series of2Q14 9,.0.05,.0.0.0 (735,.0.0.0) 8,27.0,.0.0.0 750,0.0.0 
Series of2.o15 5,385,.0.0.0 (35,.0.0.0) 5,35.0,.00.0 :3.0,.0.0.0 
Seriesof2.o16 6,59.0,.0.0.0 6,59.0,.0.0.0 8.0,.0.0.0 

33,55.0,.0.0.0 6,59.0,.0.0.0 (6,665,.0.0.0) 33,475,.0.00 86.0,000 
Addunamortlzed 

debt premium 383!477 25,143 {94!542) 314,.078 

Total bonds payable s 33,933,477 $ 6,615,143 s (6,759,542) s 33,789,.078 s 86.0,.0.0.0 
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Long-term debt at May 31 consists of the following Water Revenue Bonds: 

2017 2016 
Series of 2009: 
5.0% to 5.25%, due serially 
September 15,2018 to 2035 

Series of2014: 
1.75% to 3.9%, due serially 
Septemberl5, 2015 to 2038 

Series of2015: 
3.0% to 4.0%, due serially 
September 15, 2016 to 2040 

Series of 2016: 
2.0% to 3.0%, due serially 
September' 15,2017 to 2035 

Total.long-term debt 

Less current maturities 

$ 13,265,000 s 19,160,000 

Sinking fund requirements and scheduled aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as 
follows: 
Year Ending May 31: 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 -2027 
2028 -2032 
2033 -2037 
2038 -2042 

Add unamortized debt premium 

Principal 
860,000 $ 
890,000 
915,000 
950,000 
985,000 

5,490,000 
6,730,000 
8,415,000 
8,240,000 

$ 33,475,000 

$ 

8,270,000 

5,350,000 

6,590,000 

33,475;000 

(86(),000) 

314;078 

$ 32,929;078 

Interest 
1,309,626 
1,285,020 
1,253,320 
1,222,508 
1,189,533 
5;365,963 
4,130,397 
2,495,184 
644,090 

$ 18,895,641 

9,005,000 

5,385,000 

33,550,000 

(770,000)·· 

383,477 

s .33;163,477 

s 
Total 

2,169,626 
2,175,020 
2,168,320 
2,172,508 
2,174,533 
10,855,963 
10,860,397 
10,910,184 
8,884,090 

$ 52,370,641 

The Water System is subject to certain debt covenants, compliance with which is required 
by the ordinances authorizing its bond issues. Such ordinances require revenue to be first 
applied to the Sinking Fund, next to the Operations and Maintenance Fund, and, finally, to 
the Renewal and Replacement Fund. 
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5. Long-Term Debt, Continued 

On February 5, 2009, the City issued $19,160,000 of Water Revenue Refunding and 
Improvement Bonds, Series2009, dated FebruaryS, 2009. The 2009 Bonds were issued to. 
refund a portion of the 1999 series bonds, to. fund various capital improvement expenditures 
for the Water System and to. fully fund the Bond Reserve Account, The in-substance 
defeasance of the 1999 Bonds was accomplished by placing approximately $11,8()3,854 in 
proceeds from the 2009 Bonds and $591,666 in funds from the 1999 Bond Sinking Fund in 
an irrevocable escrow fund to. be used solely for satisfying scheduled debt service payments 
o.f the 1999 Bonds, Accordingly, 1999 Bonds in the amount of $12,120,000, net of 
unamortized discount and issuance costs of $181,145 and accrued interest payable of 
$214,591, were extinguished resulting in the' accounting recognition- of a loss from 
defeasance of $242,074, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a reduction of 
long-term debt. The City advance refunded the 1999 bonds to. extend the repayment period 
of the bonds and reduce its near term annual debt payments. The advance refunding resulted 
in an economic loss (difference between the present value of the debt service payment on the 
old and new debt) o.f$476,174. 

The Series 2009 Bonds maturing on and after September 15,2019, are subject to. redemption 
prior to. maturity in whole orin part on September 15,2018, and on any date thereafter, at 
the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to. the 
redemption date. 

On June 12, 2014, the City issued $9,730,000 of Water 'Revenue Refunding and 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2014, dated July 31, 2014. The 2014 Bonds were issued to. 
refund all 1999 and 2003 series bonds due after September 15,2014, and to fund various 
capital improvement expenditures for the Water System. The in-substance defeasance ofthe 
1999 and 2003 Bonds was accomplished by placing $3,835,802 in proceeds from the 2014 
Bonds and $40,700 in funds from the 1999 and 2003 Bond Sinking Funds in an irrevocable 
escrow fund to. be used solely for satisfying scheduled debt service payments of the 1999 
and 2003 Bonds. Accordingly, 1999 and 2003 Bonds in the amount of $1,305,000 and 
$2,510,000, respectively, net of unamortized discount and issuance costs of $60,176 and 
accrued interest payable of $47,483, were extinguished resulting in the accounting 
recognition of a loss from defeasance of $74,195, reported in the accompanying financial 
statements as a deferred outflow of resources, The City advance refunded the 1999 and 
2003 bonds to. reduce the effective rate on the debt. The advance refunding resulted in an 
economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service payment on the old 
and new debt) o.f$252,617. 

The Series 2014 Bonds maturing on and after September IS, 2023, are subject to. redemption 
prior to. maturity in whole or in part on September 15, 2022, and on any date thereafter, at 
the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to. the 
redemption date. 
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5. Long-Term Debt, Continued 
On December 16, 2015, the City issued $5,385,000 of Water Revenue Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2015, dated December 1,2015. The 2015 Bonds were issued to provide funds for the 
various capital improvement expenditures for the Water System and to fully fund the Bond 
Reserve Account. The Series 2015 Bonds maturing on and after September 15,2024, are 
subject to redemption in whole or in parton September 15, 2023, and on any date thereafter, 
at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to 
the redemption date. 

On June 8, 2016, the City issued $6,590,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2016, dated June 8, 2016. The 2016 Bonds were issued to refund a portion of the 
outstanding Series 2009 Bonds. The in-substance defeasance of the 2009 Bonds Was 
accomplished by placing $6,417,071 in proceeds from the 2014 Bonds and $104,023 in 
funds from the 2009 Bond Sinking Fund in an irrevocable escrow fund to be used solely f9r 
satisfying scheduled debt service payments of the 2009 Bonds, Accordingly, 2009 Bonds in 
the amount of $5,895,000, net of unamortized discount and issuance costs of $129,024,and 
accrued interest payable of $69,133, were extinguished resulting in the accounting 
recognition of a loss. from defeasance of $685,985, reported in the accompanying financial 
statements as a deferred outflow of resources; The City advance refunded the 2009 bonds to 
reduce the effective. rate on. the debt. The advance refunding resulted in an economic ~ain 
(difference between the present value of the debt service payment on the old and new debt) 
0[$771,709. 

The Series 2016 Bonds maturing on and after September 15,2025, are subjectto redemption 
in whole or in part on September 15, 2024, and on any date thereafter, at the redemption 
price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption 
date. 

All bonds are secured by a pledge of, and are payable from, the gross revenues derived from 
the operation of the Water System and are secured by the statutory mortgage lien as 
provided and authorized by the Kentucky Revised Statutes. 

The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying alllount of defeased bond 
issues has been deferred and is being amortized using the straight-line method over the lives 
of the defeased bond issues. 

6. Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The Water System contributes to the County Employees Retirement System (CERS), which 
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by Kentucky 
Retirement Systems (KRS) that covers all regular full-time members employed in 
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6. Pension Plan, Continued 
Plan Description, Continued 

nonhazardous positions of each participating county, city, and school board, and any 
additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in CERS. Kentucky Revised Statute 
Section 61.645 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Board 
of Trustees of Kentucky Retirement Systems' (Board). CERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that can be obtained at www.kyret.ky.gov. 

Bene·fits Provided 

CERS provides for retirement, disability, and death benefits to system members through its 
pension fund. Retirement benefits may be extended to beneficiaries of members under 
certain circumstances. Retirement benefits are determined using a formula which considers 
the member's final compensation; benefit factors set by statute which vary depending upon 
the type / amount of service, participation date, and retirement date; and years of service. 
Plan members with a participation date prior to September 1, 2008, are eligible to. retire with 
full benefits at any time with 27 or more years of service credit, or at age 65 with at least 48 
months of service credit. Plan members with a participation date on or after September 1, 
2008, are eligible to retire with full benefits at age 57 if the member's age and years of ' 
service equal 87, or at age 65 with at least 60 months of service credit. Plan members With 
participation date on or after January 1, 2014, are eligible for retirement benefits under the 
provisions established for a hybrid Cash Balance Plan. 

CERS also provides for retiree medical benefits through its insurance fund. Generally 
accepted accounting and financial reporting principles do not currently require recognition 
and reporting of the liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, 
and expense associated with this postemployment benefit. Therefore, such information has 
not been reflected in these financial statements. 

Contributions 

Per Kentucky Revised Statues Section 78.545(33), contribution requirements of the active 
employees and the participating employers are established and may be amended by the KRS 
Board. Plan members who began participating in CERS prior to September 1, 2008, are 
required to contribute 5% of their annual creditable compensation to the pension fund. For 
Plan members who began participating in CERS on or after September 1, 2008, the 
contribution rate is 6%, of which 1% is contributed to the insurance fund. The Water 
System's actuarially determined contribution rate as of May 31,2017, was 18.68% of annual 
creditable compensation, of which 13.95% and 4.73% was contributed to the pension and 
insurance funds within CERS, respectively. Contributions to CERS pension fund by the 
Water System were $407,575 for the year ended May 31,2017. 
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Pension ,Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At May 31,2017, the Water System reported a liability 0[$6,095,910 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Water System's proportion of the 
net pension liability was based on a projection of the Water System's Iong-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions ofall participating 
entities, actuarially determined. At the June 30, 2016, measurement date, the Water 
System's proportion was 0.123810%, an increase of 0.002887% from its proportion 
measured at June 30,2015, of 0.120923%. 

For the year ended May 31, 2017, the Water System recognized pension expense of 
$801,218. At May 31,2017, the Water System reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 
Changes in proportion and differences 

between contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments 

Pension contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

$ 26,613 $ 
322,929 

83,939 70,067 

573,078 

508,328 
$ 1,514,887 $ 70,067 ----- 

The $508,328 of deferred outflows of resources resulting from the Water System's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the year ending May 31,2018. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows (inflows) of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred· Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued 

Year ending May 31, 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 

$ 331,135 
240,444 
237,597 
127,316 

$ 936,492 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30,2016, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included.in the measurement: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate 
of return 

3.25% 

4.0% average, including inflation 

7.5%, net of pension plan.investment expense, including inflation 

The mortality table· used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 
projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males. and 30% for females). For 
healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 
Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set-back one year for females). 
For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with 
Scale BB to 2013 (set back four years for males) is used for the period after disability 
retirement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%, which was 
unchanged from the prior year rate. The discount rate does not use a municipal bond rate. 
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Projected Cash Flows 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that local 
employers would contribute the .actuarially determined contribution rate of projected 
compensation over the remaining 27 year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. The actuarial determined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase 
in of anticipated gains on actuarial value of assets over the first four years of the projection 
period. 

Long-Term Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is reviewed as part of the 
regular experience studies prepared every five years for CERS .. The most recent analysis, 
performed for the period covering fiscal years 2008 through 2013, is outlined' in a report 
dated April 30, 2014. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of 
return assumption including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market 
data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future 
real rates of return (expected return, net of investment expense, and inflation) were 
developed. by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected 
inflation. The capital market assumptions developed by the investment consultant are 
intended for use over a l.O-year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate 
of return for funding pension plans which cover a longer time frame. The assumption is 
intended to be a long-term assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant 
change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change 
in the market that alters expected returns in future years. 

Periods of Projected Benefit Payments 

Projected future benefit payments for all current plan members were projected through 2117. 

Assumed Asset Allocation 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table: 
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Assumed Asset Allocation, Continued 

Asset Class 

Combined equity 
Combined. fixed income 
Real return (diversified inflation strategies) 
Real estate 
Absolute return (diversified-hedge funds) 
Private equity 
Cash equivalents 

Total 

Target 
Allocation 

44% 
19 
10 
5 
10 
to 
2 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

5.40% 
1.50 
3.50 
4.50 
4.25 
8.50 
-0.25 

100% 

Sensitivity of the Water System's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to 
Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Water System's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as ' What the Water System's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or l-percentage-point higher (8.50%) 
than the current rate: 

Discount rate 
6.50% 
7.50% 
·8.50% 

Water System' s 
proportionate share 
of net pension 

liability 
$7,596,491 
$6,095,910 
$4,809,613 

1% decrease 
Current discount rate 
1% increase 

Plan Fiduciarv Net Position 

Detailed information about the CERS fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued Kentucky Retirement Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

At May 31, 2017, the Water System reported a payable of $63,561 for the outstanding 
amount of contributions due to CERS for the year. 
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7. Post-employmentHealth Care Benefits 

Plan Description 

The Water System contributes to the Kentucky Retirement Systems Insurance fund 
(Insurance Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit post-employment health 
care plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS). The Insurance Fund 
was established to provide hospital and medical insurance for members receiving benefits 
from the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS), the County Employees 
Retirement System (CERS), and the State Police Retirement System (SP,RS). The Insurance 
Fund pays a prescribed contribution for whole or partial payments of required premiums to 
purchase hospital and medical insurance, based on years of service, for retirees and certain 
eligible beneficiaries. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the 
Kentucky General Assembly. KRS issues Ii publicly available financial report that can be 
obtained at www.kyret.ky.gov. 
Funding Policy 

Per Kentucky Revised Statues 78.545(33), contribution requirements are established and 
may be amended by the KRS Board. The Water System was required to contribute at 
actuarially determined rates of4.73%, 4.64%, and 4.92% of covered payroll for the fiscal 
years ended May 31, 2017,2016, and 2015, respectively. Members hired after September 1, 
2008, contribute 1% to the Insurance Fund. The Water System's contributions to the 
Insurance Fund tor the years ending May 31~ 2017, 4016, and 2015 were $138,196, 
$132,955, and $139,262, respectively, which equaled the required contributions each year. 

S. Dividends - City of Owensboro 

The Water System transfers to the City each year a sum equal to the dollar value of services 
purchased by the City from the Water System. . 

9. Major Customers 

Water revenues from three rural water district customers in Daviess County, Kentucky, 
under wholesale supply agreements totaled approximately $2,344,000 and $2,020,000 for 
2017 and 2016, respectively. 

10. Risk Management 

OMU is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. OMU manages 
its risks through coverages provided by private insurance carriers for various risks of losses 
to which it is exposed, including directors and officers, employee dishonesty, workers' 
compensation, and other property risks. OMU is self-insured for group health and limits its 
risks of loss by purchasing reinsurance coverage. 
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Last 10 Fiscal Years * 

2017 2016 2015 

Water System's proportion of the net pension liability 0.123810% 0.120923% 0.126427% 

$ 6,095,910 $ '5,199,116 $ 4,101,776 

$ 2,869,077 $ 2,803,919 $ 2,920,692 

212.47% 185.42% 140.44% 

55.50% 59.97% 59.31% 

Water System's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Water System's covered-employee payroll 

Water System's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

* Presented for those years for which the information is available. 
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Last 10 Fiscal Years * 

2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contributions .$ 407,575 s 355,884 $ 363,125 

Contributions in relation to the contractually requited contributions (407,575) (355,884) (363,125) 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ ======== 

Water System's covered-employee payroll $ 2,941,934 $ 2,815,932 $ 2,838,215 

Contributions as a percentage ofcovered-emploYl!e payroll 13.85% 12.64% 12.79% 

* Presented for those years fQr which the information is available. 
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Changes of Benefit Terms 

None 

Changes of Assumptions 

None 

OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Year Ended May 31, 2017 
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ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 

Total current assets 

$ 45,973,223 Utility plant, net 

Restricted assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, less allowance f 

doubtful accounts of$5,258 for 
$4,579 for 2017 

Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 

1,256,269 
3,269,581 

1,988,594 
499,550 
120,254 

7,134,248 

995,513 1,074,073 Other none 

:':"\::\:i.,:";'}':!}:-:':);:,'>:-;";::Y;i:;~,:W;ij;::::: 

outflows of resources: : 
Deferred pension outflow , 
Defertyd other postemployment benefit outflows 
Deferred,pension obligation ' 
Deferred postemployment benefit obligation 
Unamortized loss on debt refunding 
Net unrealized loss on investments 

62,663,508 64,039,330 

2,404,594 
683,580 

5,526,277 
1,907,253 
645,935 
147,766 

1,514,887 

4,651,090 
1,908,895 
723,289 
43,588 

Total deferred outflows of resources 11,315,405 8,841,749 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
47 

$ 73,978,913 $ 72,881,079 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 



LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for capital projects, net of related i 

Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

21,631,568 
3,915 
;371 
,907 

Total net position 

Long-term debt 

Deferred pension 
Deferred other postemployment benefit inflows 
Deferred revenues 

32,929,079 

860,000 
274,466 
700,923 

1,835,389 

707,749 303,916 

1,993,171 2,139,305 

7,168,159 6,095,910 
2,461,933 1,908,895 

91,242 118,179 

9,721,334 8,122,984 

43,737,514 43,191,368 

762,712 70,067 
128,900 
82,883 222,883 

974,495 292,950 

$ 73,978,913 $ 72,881,079 

Current liabilities (payable from restrict 
Current maturities of long-term deb 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable 

Current liabilities (payabl 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Years Ended May 31, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 
Operating revenues: 

Charges for services: 
Residential $ 
Commercial 
Water districts 
Fire protection 
City of Owensboro 
Electric Light and Power System 
Service revenues 

Total operating revenues 11,522,989 

Operating expenses: 
Production and purification 3,537,744 
Transmission and distribution 1,318,956 
Customer service and information 783,930 
General and administrative 1,819,627 
Depreciation 2,755,408. 

Total operating expenses 10,215,665 

Operating income 1,308,611 1,307,324 

(1,422,174) (1,525,999) 
190,323 141,477 

32,515 
(104,178) (43,450) 

of investments 104,178 43,450 

(1,231,851) (1,352,007) 

76,760 (44,683) 

110,948 300,711 
of Owensboro (317,565) (310,382) 

Change in net position (129,857) (54,354) 

Net position, beginning of year, before restatement 29,396,761 24,800,025 

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principal 4,651,090 

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 29,396,761 29,451,115 

Net position, end of year $ 29,266,904 $ 29,396,761 
See Notes to Financial Statements 
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OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended May 31, 2018 and 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfers out - dividends to City of Owensboro 

Cash flows from capital and related flnanci 
activities: 
Capital expenditures 
Payments on long-term debt 
Interest paid on long-term debt 
Proceeds from bond issuance 
Payment to refunded bond ag 
Reimbursements of custo 
Debt issuance cost 

Net increase 

Cash and cash 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Included in the following balance sheet captions: 
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted 
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 

Sec Notes to Financial Statements 
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$ 

(310,315) 

(5,622) 

(2,428,355) 
(770,000) 

(1,285,117) 
6,511,882 
(6,521,094) 

(7,465) 
(44,050) 

(5,181,497) (4,544,199) 

(1,240,255) 
200,000 
182,718 

(4,911,067) 
3,004,000 
128,726 

(857,537) (l, 778,341) 

(1,878,204) (2,564,680) 

8,907,625 ·11,472,305 

$ 7,029,421 $ 8,907,625 

$ 362,154 $ 1,256,269 
6,667,267 7,651,356 

$ 7,029,421 $ 8,907,625 



OWENSBORO MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 
WATER WORKS SYSTEM 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, Concluded 

Years Ended May 31, 2018 and 2017 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 

cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Materials and supplies 
Prepayments 
Other noncurrent assets 
Deferred outflows of resou 

Increase (decrease) in lia " "tie 
Accounts payable 
Other current liabil 

2,845,408 

13,546 
10,724 
(5,435) 
(136) 

(456,513) 

(307,665) 

(140,000) 
896,794 
(235,872) 

$ 4,477,126 ==:========= $ 4,068,175 =========== 

$ 89,633 ======= $ 295,443 ========= 

$ 21,315 ======= $ 5,268 ======= 

$ 115,803 ======= $ 201,624 ======= 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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APPENDIX B 
 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
 

[LETTERHEAD OF CHAPMAN AND CUTLER LLP] 
 

[TO BE DATED CLOSING DATE] 

We hereby certify that we have examined a certified copy of the proceedings (the 
“Proceedings”) of the Board of Commissioners of the City of Owensboro, in Daviess County, 
Kentucky (the “City”) and the Board of Commissioners of the Utility Commission (as 
hereinafter defined) passed preliminary to the issue by the City of its fully registered Water 
Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”) to the amount of 
$________________, dated the date hereof, of the denomination of $5,000 or authorized integral 
multiples thereof, and due on September 15 of the years, in the respective amounts and bearing 
interest at the respective rates percent per annum as follows: 
 

YEAR AMOUNT ($) RATE (%) YEAR AMOUNT ($) RATE (%) 

2019   2034   
2020   2035   
2021   2036   
2022   2037   
2023   2038   
2024   2039   
2025   2040   
2026   2041   
2027   2042   
2028   2043   
2029   2044   
2030   2045   
2031   2046   
2032   2047   
2033   2048   

Each Bond bears interest from the later of the dated date as stated above or from the most recent 
interest payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, until the principal 
amount of each Bond, respectively, is paid or duly provided for, such interest (computed upon 
the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) being payable on March 15 and September 
15 of each year, commencing March 15, 2019. 

Those of the Bonds due on or after September 15, 2028, are subject to redemption prior 
to maturity, at the option of the City through the Utility Commission, from any available funds, 
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in whole or in part, on any date on or after September 15, 2027, and if in part, in any order of 
maturity as selected by the Utility Commission, and if less than an entire maturity, in integral 
multiples of $5,000, selected by lot, at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. 

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) paying a portion of the costs of certain 
waterworks system (“System”) improvements, (ii) refunding a portion of the City’s outstanding 
Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2009, and (iii) fully funding the 
Bond Reserve Account. 

The management and operation of the System is controlled by a utility commission (the 
“Utility Commission”) created by ordinance adopted July 29, 1940, as amended. 

We have examined the authorized form of bond prescribed for the Bonds and find the 
same in due form of law, and, based upon our review, we are of the opinion that such 
Proceedings show lawful authority for the issuance of the Bonds under the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Kentucky now in force. 

On the basis of such examination we are further of the opinion as follows: 

 1. The Bonds are valid and binding special obligations of the City which, 
together with the City’s outstanding Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2014, Water Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2015, and Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, and any additional parity obligations which may be issued 
in the future under the terms of the ordinance authorizing the Bonds, are payable solely 
and only from the revenues derived from the operation of the System, and not otherwise, 
and except that enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
moratorium, reorganization and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally 
and except that enforcement by equitable and similar remedies, such as mandamus, is 
subject to the exercise of judicial discretion. 

 2. It is our opinion that, subject to the City’s and the Utility Commission’s 
compliance with certain covenants, under present law, interest on the Bonds is excludable 
from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and is not 
included as an item of tax preference in computing the alternative minimum tax for 
individuals and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, but 
we express no opinion as to whether interest on the Bonds is taken into account in 
computing adjusted current earnings, which is used in determining the federal alternative 
minimum tax for certain corporations.  Failure to comply with certain of such City and 
Utility Commission covenants could cause interest on the Bonds to be includible in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. 
Ownership of the Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain 
taxpayers, and we express no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences arising 
with respect to the Bonds. 
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 3. Under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as presently enacted 
and construed, the Bonds are exempt from general Kentucky ad valorem property taxes, 
and interest on the Bonds is exempt from the income tax imposed under Chapter 141 of 
the Kentucky Revised Statutes.  No opinion is expressed with respect to any other taxes 
imposed by the Commonwealth of Kentucky or any political subdivisions thereof.  
Ownership of the Bonds may result in other state and local tax consequences to certain 
taxpayers, and we express no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences arising 
with respect to the Bonds. 

We express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the 
Official Statement relating to the Bonds. 

In rendering this opinion, we have relied upon certifications of the City and the Utility 
Commission with respect to certain material facts within the City’s and the Utility Commission’s 
knowledge.  Our opinion represents our legal judgment based upon our review of the law and the 
facts that we deem relevant to render such opinion and is not a guarantee of a result.  This 
opinion is given as of the date hereof and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this 
opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or any 
changes in law that may hereafter occur. 

 



 

 

APPENDIX C 
 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INFORMATION 
UNDER SECTION (b)(5) OF RULE 15c2-12 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Agreement”) is executed and delivered by 
the City Utility Commission of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky (the “Utility Commission”) in 
connection with the issuance of its $______________ Water Revenue Refunding and 
Improvement Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to an 
ordinance (the “Ordinance”) adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the City of Owensboro, 
Daviess County, Kentucky (the “City”) on the 21st day of August, 2018, and a Bond Order 
executed by designated officers of the City and the Utility Commission on the 12th day of 
September, 2018. 

In consideration of the issuance of the Bonds by the City and the purchase of such Bonds 
by the beneficial owners thereof, the Utility Commission covenants and agrees as follows: 

 1. PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT.  This Agreement is executed and delivered by the 
Utility Commission as of the date set forth below, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the 
Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with the requirements 
of the Rule (as defined below).  The Utility Commission represents that it will be the only 
obligated person with respect to the Bonds at the time the Bonds are delivered to the 
Participating Underwriters and that no other person is expected to become so committed at any 
time after issuance of the Bonds.  The City is not an obligated person as defined in 
Rule 15c 2-12, and has not assumed any responsibilities under this Agreement. 

 2. DEFINITIONS.  The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings in this 
Agreement, unless the context clearly otherwise requires. 

Annual Financial Information means the financial information and operating data 
described in Exhibit I. 

Annual Financial Information Disclosure means the dissemination of disclosure 
concerning Annual Financial Information and the dissemination of the Audited Financial 
Statements as set forth in Section 4. 

Audited Financial Statements means the audited financial statements of the Utility 
Commission prepared pursuant to the standards and as described in Exhibit I.  

Commonwealth means the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
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Dissemination Agent means any agent designated as such in writing by the Utility 
Commission and which has filed with the Utility Commission a written acceptance of such 
designation, and such agent’s successors and assigns. 

EMMA means the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system for 
municipal securities disclosure or through any other electronic format or system prescribed by 
the MSRB for purposes of the Rule.  

Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Participating Underwriter means each broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer 
acting as an underwriter in the primary offering of the Bonds. 

Reportable Event means the occurrence of any of the Events with respect to the Bonds set 
forth in Exhibit II. 

Reportable Events Disclosure means dissemination of a notice of a Reportable Event as 
set forth in Section 5. 

Rule means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Exchange Act, as the same may 
be amended from time to time. 

SEC means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Undertaking means the obligations of the Utility Commission pursuant to Sections 4 and 
5. 

 3. CUSIP NUMBER/FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  The CUSIP Numbers of the Bonds 
as set forth in Exhibit III.  The Final Official Statement relating to the Bonds is dated 
___________, 2018 (the “Final Official Statement”).  The Utility Commission will include the 
CUSIP Number in all disclosures described in Sections 4 and 5 of this Agreement. 

 4. ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION DISCLOSURE.  Subject to Section 8 of this 
Agreement, the Utility Commission hereby covenants that it will disseminate its Annual 
Financial Information and its Audited Financial Statements (in the form and by the dates set 
forth in Exhibit I) to EMMA in such manner and format and accompanied by identifying 
information as is prescribed by the MSRB or the Utility Commission at the time of delivery of 
such information and by such time so that such entities receive the information by the dates 
specified.  MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format.  
This requirement extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial 
statements and other externally prepared reports. 

If any part of the Annual Financial Information can no longer be generated because the 
operations to which it is related have been materially changed or discontinued, the Utility 
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Commission will disseminate a statement to such effect as part of its Annual Financial 
Information for the year in which such event first occurs. 

If any amendment or waiver is made to this Agreement, the Annual Financial Information 
for the year in which such amendment or waiver is made (or in any notice or supplement 
provided to EMMA) shall contain a narrative description of the reasons for such amendment or 
waiver and its impact on the type of information being provided. 

 5. REPORTABLE EVENTS DISCLOSURE.  Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, the 
Utility Commission hereby covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess 
of ten business days after the occurrence of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure 
to EMMA in such manner and format and accompanied by identifying information as is 
prescribed by the MSRB or the Utility Commission at the time of delivery of such information.  
MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF format.  This 
requirement extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial statements and 
other externally prepared reports.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of optional or 
unscheduled redemption of any Bonds or defeasance of any Bonds need not be given under this 
Agreement any earlier than the notice (if any) of such redemption or defeasance is given to the 
Bondholders pursuant to the Ordinance. 

 6. CONSEQUENCES OF FAILURE OF THE UTILITY COMMISSION TO PROVIDE 
INFORMATION.  The Utility Commission shall give notice in a timely manner to EMMA of any 
failure to provide Annual Financial Information Disclosure when the same is due hereunder. 

In the event of a failure of the Utility Commission to comply with any provision of this 
Agreement, the beneficial owner of any Bond may seek mandamus or specific performance by 
court order, to cause the Utility Commission to comply with its obligations under this 
Agreement.  A default under this Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the 
Ordinance, and the sole remedy under this Agreement in the event of any failure of the Utility 
Commission to comply with this Agreement shall be an action to compel performance. 

 7. AMENDMENTS; WAIVER.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 
the Utility Commission by resolution authorizing such amendment or waiver, may amend this 
Agreement, and any provision of this Agreement may be waived, if: 

 (a)  (i) The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in 
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, including without 
limitation, pursuant to a “no-action” letter issued by the SEC, a change in law, or a 
change in the identity, nature, or status of the Utility Commission, or type of business 
conducted; or 

 (ii) This Agreement, as amended, or the provision, as waived, would 
have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary 
offering, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, 
as well as any change in circumstances; and 
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 (b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the 
beneficial owners of the Bonds, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with the 
Utility Commission (such as the Bond Counsel).  

In the event that the Utility Commission or the MSRB or other regulatory authority shall 
approve or require Annual Financial Information Disclosure or Reportable Events Disclosure to 
be made to a central post office, governmental agency or similar entity other than EMMA or in 
lieu of EMMA, the Utility Commission shall, if required, make such dissemination to such 
central post office, governmental agency or similar entity without the necessity of amending this 
Agreement.  

 8. TERMINATION OF UNDERTAKING.  The Undertaking of the Utility Commission shall 
be terminated hereunder if the Utility Commission shall no longer have any legal liability for any 
obligation on or relating to repayment of the Bonds under the Ordinance.  The Utility 
Commission shall give notice to EMMA in a timely manner if this Section is applicable. 

 9. FUTURE CHANGES TO THE RULE.  As set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement, the 
Utility Commission has executed and delivered this Agreement solely and only to assist the 
Participating Underwriters in complying with the requirements of the Rule.  Therefore, 
notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event the Utility Commission, 
the MSRB or other regulatory authority shall approve or require changes to the requirements of 
the Rule, the Utility Commission shall be permitted, but shall not be required, to unilaterally 
modify the covenants in this Agreement, without complying with the requirements of Section 7 
of this Agreement, in order to comply with, or conform to, such changes.  In the event of any 
such modification of this Agreement, the Utility Commission shall file a copy of this Agreement, 
as revised, on EMMA in a timely manner. 

 10. DISSEMINATION AGENT.  The Utility Commission may, from time to time, appoint 
or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, 
and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor 
Dissemination Agent. 

 11. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent 
the Utility Commission from disseminating any other information, using the means of 
dissemination set forth in this Agreement or any other means of communication, or including 
any other information in any Annual Financial Information Disclosure or notice of occurrence of 
a Reportable Event, in addition to that which is required by this Agreement.  If the Utility 
Commission chooses to include any information from any document or notice of occurrence of a 
Reportable Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Agreement, the Utility 
Commission shall have no obligation under this Agreement to update such information or 
include it in any future disclosure or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event.   

 12. BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement has been executed in order to assist the 
Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule; however, this Agreement shall inure 
solely to the benefit of the Utility Commission, the Dissemination Agent, if any, and the 
beneficial owners of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 
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 13. RECORDKEEPING.  The Utility Commission shall maintain records of all Annual 
Financial Information Disclosure and Reportable Events Disclosure, including the content of 
such disclosure, the names of the entities with whom such disclosure was filed and the date of 
filing such disclosure. 

 14. ASSIGNMENT.  The Utility Commission shall not transfer its obligations under the 
Ordinance unless the transferee agrees to assume all obligations of the Utility Commission under 
this Agreement or to execute an Undertaking under the Rule. 
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 15. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
Commonwealth. 

CITY UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE  
CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

By:  
   Kevin D. Frizzell, Interim General 

Manager 
  Owensboro Municipal Utilities 

 
Address: 
 
2070 Tamarack Road 
Owensboro, Kentucky  42301 

Date:  __________, 2018 
 



C-EXHIBIT I 

EXHIBIT I 
 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND TIMING AND AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

“Annual Financial Information” means financial information and operating data of the 
type contained in the Official Statement under the following captions:   

- The historical information appearing under the heading “Summary of System 
Operations and Debt Service Coverage” 

- “Ten Largest Water Customers” 

- “Water Sales” 

- “Water Retail Customers” 

- “Water Usage” 

- “Water Charges” 

All or a portion of the Annual Financial Information and the Audited Financial 
Statements as set forth below may be included by reference to other documents which have been 
submitted to EMMA or filed with the SEC.  If the information included by reference is contained 
in a Final Official Statement, the Final Official Statement must be available on EMMA; the Final 
Official Statement need not be available from the SEC.  The Utility Commission shall clearly 
identify each such item of information included by reference. 

Annual Financial Information exclusive of Audited Financial Statements will be 
submitted to EMMA by 210 days after the last day of the Utility Commission’s fiscal year.  
Audited Financial Statements as described below should be filed at the same time as the Annual 
Financial Information.  If Audited Financial Statements are not available when the Annual 
Financial Information is filed, unaudited financial statements shall be included. 

Audited Financial Statements will be prepared according to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles as applicable to governmental units (i.e., as subject to the pronouncements 
of the Governmental Standards Accounting Board and subject to any express requirements of 
Commonwealth law).  Audited Financial Statements will be submitted to EMMA within 30 days 
after availability to Utility Commission. 

If any change is made to the Annual Financial Information as permitted by Section 4 of 
the Agreement, the Utility Commission will disseminate a notice of such change as required by 
Section 4. 



C-EXHIBIT II 

EXHIBIT II 
 

EVENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS 
FOR WHICH REPORTABLE EVENTS DISCLOSURE IS REQUIRED 

 
 1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies 
 2. Non-payment related defaults, if material 
 3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties 
 4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties 
 5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 
 6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 

determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the security 

 7. Modifications to the rights of security holders, if material 
 8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers 
 9. Defeasances 
 10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material 
 11. Rating changes 
 12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City* 
 13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the 

sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 
its terms, if material 

 14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if 
material 

 
 

                                                
*  This event is considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal 

agent or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by 
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision 
and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of 
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City. 



C-EXHIBIT III 

EXHIBIT III 
 

CUSIP NUMBERS 
 

(BASE NUMBER IS 691106) 
 

YEAR SUFFIX 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 



 

APPENDIX D 
 

NOTICE OF BOND SALE AND BID FORM 
 

NOTICE OF BOND SALE 

$63,510,000* 

CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

WATER REVENUE REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS 
SERIES 2018 

Request for Bids.  The City of Owensboro, Kentucky (the “City”), will receive bids in the 
manner described below for the purchase of the City’s $63,510,000* principal amount of Water 
Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”), on an all or none basis 
on the date and at the time and place as follows: 

TIME/DATE: Until 10:00 a.m., Central Daylight Saving Time 
Wednesday, September 12, 2018 

PLACE: Owensboro Municipal Utilities 
2070 Tamarack 
Owensboro, Kentucky 42301 

SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS: Bids will be received via PARITY® 

or such other later date as may be established by the Director of Finance and Accounting of the 
Owensboro Municipal Utilities as provided under the caption “Alternative Sale Date” herein.  
All proposals will be publicly opened, read and evaluated at said time, date, and place and the 
award of the Bonds will be acted upon by the Mayor and Interim General Manager of the 
Municipal Utilities of the City acting as representative of the City pursuant to an ordinance 
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the City on August 21, 2018 (as supplemented by a 
bond order dated September 12, 2018). 

Alternative Sale Date.  The City reserves the right to cancel or postpone, from time to 
time, the date and/or time established for receipt of bids and in such event, the cancellation or 
postponement will be announced via The Municipal Market Monitor (“TM3”) News Service at 
least 24 hours prior to the time established for the receipt of bids.  Following a postponement, a 
new date and time of sale (the “Alternative Sale Date”) will be announced via TM3 News 
Service at least 48 hours prior to the time bids are to be submitted.  On any such Alternative Sale 
Date, bidders shall submit bids for the purchase of the Bonds in conformity with the provisions 
of this Notice of Bond Sale (“Notice”), subject to any pre-bid revisions announced via TM3 
News Service as provided under the caption “Pre-Bid Revisions” herein. 
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Terms of the Bonds.  The Bonds will consist of fully registered bonds without coupons 
and, when initially issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), which will act as securities 
depository for the Bonds.  Purchases of beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds will be made 
in book-entry form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 

The Bonds will be dated the date of original issuance and delivery thereof (expected 
September 27, 2018), and will become due in principal installments on the maturity dates as 
follows, with interest payable semiannually on March 15 and September 15 in each year, 
beginning on March 15, 2019: 

SERIES 2018 BONDS 
MATURITY SCHEDULE 

MATURITY 
SEPTEMBER 15 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT* 

MATURITY 
SEPTEMBER 15 

PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT* 

2019 $   980,000 2034 $2,095,000 
2020 1,010,000 2035 2,165,000 
2021 1,055,000 2036 960,000 
2022 1,100,000 2037 995,000 
2023 1,140,000 2038 1,035,000 
2024 1,425,000 2039 1,075,000 
2025 1,480,000 2040 1,115,000 
2026 1,545,000 2041 3,425,000 
2027 1,605,000 2042 3,565,000 
2028 1,665,000 2043 3,715,000 
2029 1,735,000 2044 3,865,000 
2030 1,810,000 2045 4,020,000 
2031 1,880,000 2046 4,185,000 
2032 1,950,000 2047 4,355,000 
2033 2,025,000 2048 4,535,000 

Any bidder electing to designate one or more maturities of term bonds shall specify the 
current serial bonds by year of maturity which are to comprise the term bonds.  The final year 
designated shall be deemed the year of maturity of the term bonds.  Term bonds shall be subject 
to mandatory sinking fund redemption by lot in the amounts currently specified for the serial 
bonds, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount thereof. 

For purposes of computing the true interest cost (as hereinafter defined) and awarding the 
Bonds, the maturity of such term bonds shall be treated as if the amounts subject to mandatory 
sinking fund redemption are equal to the amounts and mature on the dates currently specified as 
serial bonds. 

                                                
* Preliminary, subject to change.  
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Place of Payment.  The principal of and interest on the Bonds will be payable in lawful 
money of the United States of America.  So long as DTC or its nominee is the Registered Owner 
of the Bonds, payments of principal of each Bond will be payable at maturity or upon earlier 
redemption to DTC by U.S. Bank National Association, Louisville, Kentucky, which has been 
designated by the City as paying agent and registrar for the Bonds (the “Paying Agent”).  
Interest on each Bond will be paid to the Registered Owner of such Bond as shown on the Bond 
Register at the close of business on the Record Date for such interest (a) by check or draft mailed 
by the Paying Agent to the address of such Registered Owner shown on the Bond Register or at 
such other address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner or 
(b) in immediately available funds as may be agreed with DTC for so long as DTC is the 
registered owner as of a given record date. 

Redemption of Bonds Prior to Maturity.  Bonds maturing on and after September 15, 
2028, are subject to redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City through its Utility 
Commission in whole or in part, and if in part, in such order of maturities as shall be selected by 
the City acting through its Utility Commission, and if less than an entire maturity, in integral 
multiples of $5,000, selected by lot, on September 15, 2027, and on any date thereafter, at the 
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount redeemed, plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date. 

Conditions of Bids.  Proposals will be received on the Bonds bearing such rate or rates of 
interest as may be specified by the bidders, subject to the following conditions: Each bid shall be 
for all of the Bonds.  Each interest rate specified shall be a multiple of 1/8 or 1/20 of 1%.  The 
interest rates shall not exceed 5.00% per annum.  No supplemental interest payments will be 
authorized.  No bid shall be for less than 98% of the principal amount of the Bonds plus 
accrued interest, if any.  Bidders are requested (but not required) to specify the total interest 
cost (expressed in dollars) and to supply an estimate of the true interest cost (expressed as a rate) 
for the Bonds to the City as specified herein on the basis of their respective bids, which shall be 
considered as informative only and not binding on either the bidder or the City.  Solely for 
purposes of the calculations set forth in the preceding sentence, each bidder shall assume a dated 
date for the Bonds of September 27, 2018. 

Basis of Award.  Following the opening of the bids, the Successful Bidder will be 
designated by a representative of the City (the “Successful Bidder”).  The Successful Bidder will 
be the bidder whose bid will result in the lowest “true interest cost” (“TIC”), determined as 
follows: the TIC is the discount rate (expressed as a per annum percentage rate) which, when 
used in computing the present value of all payments of principal and interest to be paid on the 
Bonds, from the payment dates to September 27, 2018 (the assumed dated date and assumed date 
of delivery of the Bonds), produces an amount equal to the purchase price bid.  Payments of 
principal and interest on the Bonds will be based on the principal amount set forth in this Notice 
(as may be modified as described herein) and the interest rate specified by each bidder.  Present 
value will be computed on the basis of semiannual compounding and a 360-day year of twelve 
30-day months.  No bidder will be designated as the Successful Bidder unless its bid shall be in 
compliance with the other terms and conditions of this Notice.  If there is any discrepancy 
between the TIC shown on the bid form and the interest rate specified on the bid form, the latter 
shall govern and the TIC specified in the bid shall be adjusted accordingly.  If two or more 
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proper bids are received providing for identical lowest TIC, the City shall determine by lot which 
bid, if any, shall be accepted and its determination shall be final. 

Pre-Bid Revisions.  The City reserves the right to issue a Supplemental Notice of Bond 
Sale not later than 24 hours prior to the sale date via TM3 News Service (“Supplemental 
Notice”).  If issued, the Supplemental Notice may modify (i) the principal amount of the Bonds, 
and/or (ii) such other terms of this Notice as the City determines.  Any such modifications will 
supersede the principal amount and such other terms as set forth herein. 

Post-Bid Revisions.  After bids are received on the sale date, the City may in its discretion 
revise the principal amount of the Bonds; provided, that the principal amount of the Bonds shall 
not be increased or decreased by an amount in excess of 10%.  THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER MAY 
NEITHER WITHDRAW NOR MODIFY ITS PROPOSAL AS A RESULT OF ANY POST-BID REVISIONS TO THE 
BONDS MADE BY THE CITY.  The Underwriter’s Discount shall be held constant on a per bond 
basis for any par revisions. 

Authority and Security.  The Bonds are being issued by the City pursuant to an ordinance 
adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the City (the “Bond Ordinance”) by authority given 
to the City in the Statutes of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, including among others, 
Sections 96.350 to 96.510, inclusive, and Sections 58.010 to 58.140, inclusive, all of the 
Kentucky Revised Statutes.  The Bonds are issued on a parity with the City’s outstanding Water 
Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2014, Water Revenue Improvement Bonds, 
Series 2015, and Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (collectively, the “Currently 
Outstanding Bonds”), and any other parity bonds that may be issued in the future.  The Bonds 
and the interest thereon are payable solely from the revenues derived by the City from the 
operation of the City’s water supply system (the “System”), all as described in more detail in the 
Preliminary Official Statement for the Bonds.  The Bonds are limited obligations of the City and 
do not constitute an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or 
statutory provision or limitation. 

Purpose.  The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) refunding the City’s 
outstanding Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2009, (ii) financing 
various capital expenditures to the System, (iii) fully funding the Bond Reserve Account for the 
Currently Outstanding Bonds and the Bonds and (iv) paying the costs of issuance for the Bonds.  

Legal Opinion.  The Bonds will be sold subject to the approving legal opinion of 
Chapman and Cutler LLP, Chicago, Illinois, Bond Counsel (the “Bond Counsel”), which 
opinion will be furnished and paid for by the City and delivered to the Successful Bidder when 
the Bonds are delivered.  Said opinion will also relate to the excludability of the interest on the 
Bonds from gross income for federal and Kentucky income tax purposes.  Reference is made to 
the Preliminary Official Statement for further discussion of federal and Kentucky income tax 
matters relating to the interest on the Bonds.  By submitting a bid, any bidder makes the 
representation that it understands Bond Counsel represents the City in the Bond transaction and, 
if such bidder has retained Bond Counsel in an unrelated matter, such bidder consents to and 
waives any conflict of interest arising from any adverse position to the City in this matter; such 
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consent and waiver shall supersede any formalities otherwise required in any separate 
understandings, guidelines or contractual arrangements between the bidder and Bond Counsel. 

Establishment of Issue Price.  (a) The Successful Bidder shall assist the City in 
establishing the issue price of each maturity of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the 
City on the date of closing (the “Closing Date”) an “issue price” or similar certificate setting 
forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the sales price or prices of 
each maturity of the Bonds, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent 
communications, substantially in the form of the Certificate of Purchaser attached hereto as 
Exhibit I, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable 
judgment of the City and Bond Counsel.  All actions to be taken by the City under this Notice to 
establish the issue price of the Bonds may be taken on behalf of the City by Stifel, Nicolaus & 
Company, Incorporated, St. Louis, Missouri, the City’s municipal advisor (the “Municipal 
Advisor”), and any notice or report to be provided to the City may be provided to the Municipal 
Advisor. Within one hour of the award, the Successful Bidder will provide to the City the 
expected Initial Offering Price of each maturity of the Bonds, which the Successful Bidder used 
in formulating its bid for the Bonds. 

 (b) The City intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) 
(defining “competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the Bonds) will apply 
to the initial sale of the Bonds (the “competitive sale requirements”) because: 

 (1) the City shall disseminate this Notice to potential underwriters in a manner 
that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters; 

 (2) all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid; 

 (3) the City may receive, with respect to the Bonds, bids from at least three 
underwriters of municipal bonds who have established industry reputations for 
underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and 

 (4) the City anticipates awarding the sale of the Bonds to the bidder who 
submits a firm offer to purchase at the lowest TIC, as set forth in this Notice. 

Any bid submitted pursuant to this Notice shall be considered a firm offer for the purchase of the 
Bonds, as specified in the bid. 

 (c) In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied with respect to 
the Bonds, the City shall so advise the Successful Bidder.  Subject to the winning bidder electing 
the hold-the-offering-price rule hereinafter described, the City shall then treat the first price at 
which 10% of a maturity of the Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public as the issue price of 
such maturity of the Bonds.  Such Successful Bidder shall advise the City if such maturity of the 
Bonds satisfies the 10% test as of the date and time of the award of the Bonds.  The City will not 
require bidders to comply with the “hold-the-offering-price rule” and therefore does not intend to 
use the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity of the Bonds as the 
issue price of that maturity, unless the Successful Bidder elects to comply with the 
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hold-the-offering-price rule for such maturity.  Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the 
event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied.  Bidders should prepare their bids 
on the assumption that the Bonds will be subject to the 10% test in order to establish the issue 
price of the Bonds, unless the Successful Bidder elects to comply with the 
hold-the-offering-price rule for the Bonds. 

 (d) Until the 10% test has been satisfied as to a maturity of the Bonds, the Successful 
Bidder agrees to promptly report to the City the prices at which the unsold Bonds of such 
maturity have been sold to the public; this reporting obligation shall only extend to the Closing 
Date if the competitive sale requirements are satisfied. If the competitive sale requirements are 
not satisfied or the Successful Bidder has not elected to apply the hold-the-offering-price rule 
with respect to the Bonds, that reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the Closing 
Date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to such maturity of the Bonds or until 
all Bonds and maturity have been sold to the public.  In the event the Successful Bidder elects to 
apply the hold-the-offering-price rule to the Bonds, the reporting obligation described 
immediately above shall only continue to the Closing Date with respect to the Bonds.  

 (e) By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (i) any agreement among 
underwriters, any selling group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the 
bidder is a party) relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related 
pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a 
member of the selling group, and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution 
agreement, as applicable, to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of 
each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Successful Bidder that either the 10% test has 
been satisfied as to such maturity of the Bonds or all Bonds of such maturity have been sold to 
the public, if and for so long as directed by the Successful Bidder and as set forth in the related 
pricing wires, and (ii) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the Bonds 
to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating 
each underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection 
with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that is a party to such 
retail distribution agreement to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds 
of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the Successful Bidder or such underwriter that 
either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of such maturity, or all Bonds of such 
maturity have been sold to the public, if and for so long as directed by the Successful Bidder or 
such underwriter for and as set forth in the related pricing wires, which shall be at least until the 
10% test has been satisfied as to such maturity of the Bonds or until all Bonds of such maturity 
have been sold to the public. 

 (f) The City is not requiring the application of the hold-the-offering-price rule 
(defined in (g) below) to the Bonds.  The Successful Bidder may elect to apply the 
hold-the-offering-price rule to the Bonds.   

 (g) The City may determine to treat (i) the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the 
Bonds is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity and/or (ii) if the Successful Bidder 
of the Bonds elects to apply the hold-the-offering-price rule, as described below, to any maturity 
of the Bonds, the initial offering price to the public as of the sale date of the Bonds as the issue 
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price of such maturity of the Bonds (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”).  The Successful Bidder 
may, in its discretion, agree to apply the hold-the-offering-price rule to the Bonds.  The City is 
not requiring the Bonds be subject to the hold-the-offering-price rule.  If the Successful Bidder 
so elects to apply the hold-the-offering-price rule to the Bonds, which election will be made in 
the report of the final interest rates and prices of each maturity of the Bonds agreed to between 
the Successful Bidder and the City, the Successful Bidder shall (i) confirm that the underwriters 
have offered or will offer each maturity of the Bonds to the public on or before the date of award 
at the offering price (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield, set forth in the 
bid submitted by the Successful Bidder and (ii) agree, on behalf of the underwriters participating 
in the purchase of the Bonds, that the underwriters will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of a 
maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during 
the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:  

 (1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or 

 (2) the date on which the underwriters have sold at least 10% of such maturity 
of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the 
public. 

The winning bidder will advise the City promptly after the close of the fifth (5th) business day 
after the sale date whether it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price 
that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.   

The City acknowledges that in making the representation set forth above, the winning bidder will 
rely on: 

  (i) the agreement of each underwriter to comply with the requirements 
for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its 
agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the 
Bonds, as set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing 
wires, 

  (ii) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a 
member of the selling group to comply with the requirements for establishing 
issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply 
with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as set forth in a 
selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and 

  (iii) in the event that an underwriter or dealer who is a member of the 
selling group is a party to a third-party distribution agreement that was employed 
in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of 
each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to comply with the 
requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited 
to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to 
the Bonds, as set forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related 
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pricing wires.  The City further acknowledges that each underwriter shall be 
solely liable for its failure to comply with its agreement regarding the 
requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited 
to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to 
the Bonds, and that no underwriter shall be liable for the failure of any other 
underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of any 
broker-dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement to comply with 
its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing 
issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply 
with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds. 

 (h) Sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not 
constitute sales to the public for purposes of this Notice.  Further, for purposes of this Notice: 

 (1) “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party, 

 (2) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 
contract with the City (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees 
pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) 
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a 
selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of 
the Bonds to the public), 

 (3) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if 
the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% 
common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities 
are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more 
than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities 
are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more 
than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or 
the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a 
corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the 
applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and 

 (4) “sale date” means the date that the Bonds are awarded by the City to the 
Successful Bidder. 

Delivery and Payment.  The City will deliver the Bonds to DTC (or to the Paying Agent 
as DTC’s “Fast Agent”) properly prepared, executed and registered, without cost to the 
Successful Bidder within 30 days after the date of sale.  The Successful Bidder will also be 
furnished with a certified transcript of the proceedings evidencing the authorization and issuance 
of the Bonds and the usual closing documents, including a certificate that there is no litigation 
pending or threatened at the time of delivery of the Bonds affecting their validity and a certificate 
regarding the completeness and accuracy of the Official Statement.  Payment for the Bonds shall 
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be made in Federal Reserve funds, immediately available for use by the City.  The City will 
deliver one bond per maturity registered in the name of Cede & Co. 

Good Faith Deposit.  A Good Faith Deposit (“Deposit”) in the form of a Funds Wire 
Transfer in the amount of 2% of the par amount of the Bonds, payable to the order of the City, is 
required for each bid to be considered.  The Successful Bidder agrees to wire the required 
Deposit such that the funds are received in the account of the City by 2:00 p.m., Central Daylight 
Saving Time, on September 12, 2018.  Wiring instructions will be provided to the Successful 
Bidder upon notification of acceptance of the bid.  Failure to submit the Deposit in 
accordance herewith may serve as grounds for rejection of bids.  No interest will be paid 
upon the Deposit made by the Successful Bidder.  If a bid is accepted, said Deposit shall be held 
by the City until the Successful Bidder has complied with all of the terms and conditions of this 
Notice, at which time the amount of said Deposit shall be returned to the Successful Bidder or 
deducted from the purchase price at the option of the City.  If a bid is accepted but the City fails 
to deliver the Bonds to the Successful Bidder in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Notice, said Deposit shall be returned to the bidder.  If a bid is accepted but the Successful 
Bidder defaults in the performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Notice, the Deposit 
shall be retained by the City as and for liquidated damages. 

Ratings.  Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) has assigned an underlying rating 
of “A1” to the Bonds.  Such rating is described in the City’s Preliminary Official Statement 
relating to the Bonds, copies of which will be provided to the Successful Bidder.  As part of the 
City’s application for the rating, certain information and materials, some of which are not 
contained herein, have been supplied to Moody’s.  The rating is neither a “market” rating nor a 
recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds and the rating and the Bonds should be evaluated 
independently. 

Bidders’ Option Bond Insurance. The City has sought prequalification for municipal 
bond insurance with Build America Mutual and Assured Guaranty.  Bidders are instructed to 
consult with each insurer for preapproval and specific insurance premium bids. The City will not 
pay the premium or any associated cost in connection with any policy of municipal bond 
insurance purchased by the Successful Bidder. In the event a bidder desires to purchase and pay 
all costs associated with the issuance of a policy of municipal bond insurance to insure the timely 
payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds, the bidder must (a) indicate such election, the 
name of the bond insurer and the amount of the bond insurance premium to be paid by the bidder 
on the Official Bid Form or provide such information to the City and the Municipal Advisor 
within 20 minutes after notification by the City or the Municipal Advisor of acceptance of such 
bidder’s bid for the Bonds and (b) attach evidence of the qualification of such Bonds for 
insurance, all terms and conditions to which the City would be required to agree in connection 
with the issuance of such insurance policy and a designation of the maturities to be insured to the 
Official Bid Form or provide such information to the City and the Municipal Advisor within 
20 minutes after notification by the City or the Municipal Advisor of acceptance of such bidder’s 
bid for the Bonds. The City specifically reserves the right to reject any bid specifying municipal 
bond insurance, even though such bid may result in the lowest TIC to the City. 



 

-D-10- 

CUSIP Number.  A CUSIP identification number has been ordered by the City and will 
be printed on the Bonds, but neither the failure to print such number on the Bonds nor any error 
with respect thereto shall constitute cause for failure or refusal by the Successful Bidder to 
accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Notice.  All 
expenses in relation to the assignment and printing of a CUSIP number on the Bonds will be paid 
by the City. 

Submission of Proposals.  Each bid must be submitted via PARITY® in accordance with 
this Notice, until 10:00 a.m., Central Daylight Saving Time, on September 12, 2018.  Any 
prospective bidder that intends to submit a bid must submit its bid through PARITY.  No 
in-person or faxed bids will be accepted.  Subscription to i-Deal’s PARITY Competitive 
Bidding System is required in order to submit an electronic bid.  The City will neither confirm 
any subscription nor be responsible for the failure of any prospective bidder to subscribe.  To the 
extent any instructions or directions set forth in PARITY® conflict with this Notice, the terms of 
this Notice shall control.  For further information, potential bidders may contact Ms. Anne Noble 
at Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, the Municipal Advisor to the City, telephone 
(314) 342-8488 or noblea@stifel.com, or PARITY® at 1359 Broadway, New York, New York 
10018, telephone (212) 849-5000.   

An electronic bid made through the facilities of PARITY® shall be deemed to 
incorporate the provisions of this Notice and the Official Bid Form for the Bonds.  Any such 
electronic bid shall be deemed to constitute an irrevocable offer to purchase the Bonds for which 
a bid is submitted on the terms provided herein and shall be binding upon the Successful Bidder.  
The City shall not be responsible for any malfunction or mistake made by, or as a result of the 
use of the facilities of PARITY®, the use of such facilities being the sole risk of the prospective 
bidder. 

Official Statement.  The City has prepared a Preliminary Official Statement, copies of 
which will be available electronically from www.i-DealProspectus.com.  The City has deemed 
the Preliminary Official Statement “final” as of its date for purposes of Section (b)(1) of 
Rule 15c2-12 (the “Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except for such information which is permitted to 
be omitted pursuant to Section (b)(1) of the Rule. 

Upon the sale of the Bonds, the City will adopt a final Official Statement and will furnish 
the Successful Bidder with a sufficient quantity of such Official Statements within seven 
business days of the acceptance of the Successful Bidder’s proposal in order to comply with 
Rule 15c2-12(b)(4) of the Securities and Exchange Commission and Rule G-32 of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board.  The City’s acceptance of the Successful Bidder’s proposal for the 
purchase of the Bonds shall constitute a contract between the City and the Successful Bidder for 
purposes of said Rules.  Additional copies of the final Official Statement may be ordered by the 
Successful Bidder at its expense. 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.  The Utility Commission will enter into a 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) for the benefit of the beneficial owners 
of the Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide notice of certain events to the 
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Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) through its Electronic Municipal Market 
Access system (“EMMA”) pursuant to the requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 (the 
“Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934.  The form of the Undertaking is attached to the Preliminary Official 
Statement as Appendix C, which sets forth the information to be provided on an annual basis, the 
events which will be noticed on an occurrence basis and a summary of other terms of the 
Undertaking, including termination, amendment and remedies.  Such annual information will be 
provided by not later than 210 days after the end of each of the Utility Commission’s fiscal years 
(presently, each May 31), commencing with the fiscal year ended May 31, 2018.  The 
Undertaking will be made by the Utility Commission in order to assist the Underwriters in 
complying with Rule 15c2-12 of the SEC. 

The Successful Bidder’s obligation to purchase the Bonds shall be conditioned upon its 
receiving, at or prior to the delivery of the Bonds, the Bond Ordinance evidencing that the Utility 
Commission has made the continuing disclosure undertaking set forth above for the benefit of 
the holders of the Bonds. 

Additional Information.  Additional information regarding the Bonds may be obtained 
from the undersigned at City of Owensboro, Kentucky, Owensboro Municipal Utilities, 
2070 Tamarack, Owensboro, KY 42301 (270-926-3200 ext. 4202) or from the Municipal 
Advisor, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated, One Financial Plaza, 501 North Broadway, 
10th Floor, St. Louis, Missouri 63102, Attention: Ms. Anne Noble (314-342-8488 or 
noblea@stifel.com). 

DATED this 5th day of September, 2018. 

CITY UTILITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

By:  /s/                    Kevin Frizzell 
Interim General Manager 

Owensboro Municipal Utilities 



 

 

EXHIBIT I TO APPENDIX D 
 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASER 
CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

WATER REVENUE REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2018 

(To be provided by the City for execution and delivery by Successful Bidder prior to closing) 

The undersigned, on behalf of __________________ (the “Purchaser”), hereby certifies 
as set forth below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned obligations (the 
“Bonds”).   

I. GENERAL 

 1. On the Sale Date, the Purchaser purchased the Bonds from the City of Owensboro, 
Kentucky (the “City”), by submitting electronically an “Official Bid Form” responsive to a 
“Notice of Bond Sale” and having its bid accepted by the City.  The Purchaser has not modified 
the terms of the purchase since the Sale Date. 

II. PRICE 

[Competitive Sale Rules (3 bids received)] 

 [1. Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.   

 (a) As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering price of each 
Maturity of the Bonds to the Public by the Purchaser is the price listed in Schedule A (the 
“Expected Offering Prices”).  The Expected Offering Price is the price for such Maturity 
of the Bonds used by the Purchaser in formulating its bid to purchase the Bonds.  
Attached as Schedule B is a true and correct copy of the bid provided by the Purchaser to 
purchase the Bonds. 

 (b) The Purchaser was not given an exclusive opportunity to review other bids 
prior to submitting its bid. 

 (c) The bid submitted by the Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the 
Bonds.] 

[10% Test – All Bonds Sold] 

 [1. As of the date of this certificate, the first price at which at least 10% of each 
Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule C.] 
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[3 Bids Not Received – 10% of Certain Maturities Not Sold By Closing] 

 [1. As of the date of this certificate, for each of the ____________ Maturities of the 
Bonds, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the Public 
is the respective price listed in Schedule A. 

 2. Expected First Sale Price. 

  With respect to each of the ____________ Maturities of the Bonds: 

 (a) As of the date of this certificate, the Purchaser has not sold at least 10% of 
the Bonds of this Maturity at any price. 

 (b) As of the date of this certificate, the Purchaser reasonably expects that the 
first sale to the Public of an amount of Bonds of this Maturity equal to 10% or more of 
this Maturity will be at or below the Expected Sale Price listed on the attached 
Schedule A (the “Expected First Sale Price”).] 

[All Maturities Use Hold the Offer Price] 

 [1. The Purchaser offered the Bonds to the Public for purchase at the initial offering 
price listed in Schedule A (the “Initial Offering Price”) on or before the Sale Date.  A copy of 
the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the Bonds is attached to this certificate as 
Schedule B. 

 2. As set forth in the Official Notice of Bond Sale and bid award, the Purchaser has 
agreed in writing that, (i) it would neither offer nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any 
person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price during the Holding Period for such 
Maturity (the “Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule”), and (ii) any selling group agreement would 
contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and any retail 
distribution agreement would contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the 
retail distribution agreement, to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule.   

 3. No Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Bonds of any Maturity at 
a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price during the Holding Period.] 

[Some Maturities Use Hold the Offer Price] 

[1.  As of the date of this certificate, for each Maturity of the General Rule Maturities, 
the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity of the Bonds was sold to the Public is the 
respective price listed in Schedule A. 

2. A.  The Purchaser offered the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for 
purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the “Initial Offering 
Prices”) on or before the Sale Date.  A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for 
the Bonds is attached to this certificate as Schedule B. 
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B. As set forth in the Official Notice of Bond Sale and bid award, the 
Purchaser has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price 
Maturities, it would neither offer nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any person 
at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the 
Holding Period for such Maturity (the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule”), and (ii) any 
selling group agreement would contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of 
the selling group, and any retail distribution agreement would contain the agreement of 
each broker-dealer who is a party to the retail distribution agreement, to comply with the 
Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule.   

C. No Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Bonds of any Maturity 
of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities at a price that is higher than the respective Initial 
Offering Price for that Maturity during the Holding Period.]  

III. DEFINITIONS 

[(a) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds not listed in 
Schedule A hereto as the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.”] 

[(b) Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds listed in 
Schedule A hereto as the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.”] 

[(c) Holding Period means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the 
period starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day 
after the Sale Date (__________________, 2018), or (ii) the date on which the Purchaser has 
sold at least 10% of such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity to the Public at prices that are no 
higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity.] 

 (d) “Maturity” means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms.  Bonds with 
different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, 
are treated as separate maturities. 

 (e) “Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, 
association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a Related Party to an 
Underwriter. 

 (f) A person is a “Related Party” to an Underwriter if the Underwriter and the person 
are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or 
the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one 
corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or 
profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership 
of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of 
the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one 
entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the 
applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other). 
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 (g) “Sale Date” means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for 
the sale of the Bonds.  The Sale Date of the Bonds is ___________, 2018. 

 (h) “Underwriter” means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with 
the City (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 
contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate 
in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a 
retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public). 

[IV. BOND INSURANCE PROVISIONS, IF REQUIRED 

The present value of the fees paid and to be paid for the Credit Facility (using as a 
discount rate the expected Yield on the Bonds treating the fee paid as interest on the Bonds) is 
less than the present value of the interest reasonably expected to be saved on the Bonds over the 
term of the Bonds as a result of the Credit Facility.  The fees paid and to be paid for the Credit 
Facility does not exceed a reasonable, arm’s-length charge for the transfer of credit risk.  The fee 
does not include any payment for any direct or indirect services other than the transfer of credit 
risk.] 

V. USE OF REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS 

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only.  
Nothing in this certificate represents the Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including 
specifically Sections 103 and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the 
Treasury Regulations thereunder.  The undersigned understands that the foregoing information 
will be relied upon by the City with respect to certain of the representations and with respect to 
compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Chapman and Cutler 
LLP, in connection with rendering their opinions concerning interest on the Bonds, the 
preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form-8038-G, and other federal income tax advice 
that it may give to the City from time to time relating to the Bonds. 
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All terms not defined herein shall have the same meanings as in the Tax Exemption 
Certificate and Agreement with respect to the Bonds, to which this Certificate is attached. 

Dated: _____________, 2018 

Very truly yours, 

________________________ 

By: ___________________________________  
 Its: ________________________________  

 



 

 

OFFICIAL BID FORM 
 

CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 
WATER REVENUE REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2018 



 

 

PROPOSAL FOR THE PURCHASE OF WATER REVENUE REFUNDING AND  
IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2018, OF THE CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

September 12, 2018 

TO: Ms. Anne Noble 
   on behalf of City of Owensboro, Kentucky 

 Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated 
One Financial Plaza 
501 North Broadway, 10th Floor 
St. Louis, Missouri 63102 

For the $63,510,000* principal amount of Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds, Series 2018 (the “Bonds”), of the City of Owensboro, Kentucky, to be dated the date of 
issuance and delivery thereof (expected September 27, 2018), as described in your Notice of 
Bond Sale dated September 5, 2018, said Bonds to mature and bear interest as follows: 

SERIES 2018 BONDS 
MATURITY SCHEDULE 

DUE 
SEPTEMBER 15 

PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT* 

INTEREST 
RATE 

DUE 
SEPTEMBER 15 

PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT* 

INTEREST 
RATE 

2019 $   980,000 ___% 2034 $2,095,000 ___% 
2020 1,010,000 ___% 2035 2,165,000 ___% 
2021 1,055,000 ___% 2036 960,000 ___% 
2022 1,100,000 ___% 2037 995,000 ___% 
2023 1,140,000 ___% 2038 1,035,000 ___% 
2024 1,425,000 ___% 2039 1,075,000 ___% 
2025 1,480,000 ___% 2040 1,115,000 ___% 
2026 1,545,000 ___% 2041 3,425,000 ___% 
2027 1,605,000 ___% 2042 3,565,000 ___% 
2028 1,665,000 ___% 2043 3,715,000 ___% 
2029 1,735,000 ___% 2044 3,865,000 ___% 
2030 1,810,000 ___% 2045 4,020,000 ___% 
2031 1,880,000 ___% 2046 4,185,000 ___% 
2032 1,950,000 ___% 2047 4,355,000 ___% 
2033 2,025,000 ___% 2048 4,535,000 ___% 

                                                
* Preliminary, subject to change. 
 
NOTE: After bids are received on the sale date, the City may in its discretion revise the principal amount of the 

Bonds; provided, that the principal amount of the Bonds shall not be increased or decreased by an amount 
in excess of 10%.  THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDER MAY NEITHER WITHDRAW NOR MODIFY ITS PROPOSAL AS A 
RESULT OF ANY POST-BID REVISIONS TO THE BONDS MADE BY THE CITY.  The Underwriter’s Discount shall 
be held constant on a per bond basis for any par revisions. 
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The undersigned will pay a purchase price equal to $____________ (which is not less 
than ____% of the principal amount). 

Total interest cost on the Bonds calculated to maturity 
at the rates specified above 

$____________ 

Less Premium (if any included in the purchase price) $____________ 

Plus Discount (if any included in the purchase price) $____________ 

Net interest cost $____________ 

True interest cost ___________% 

As provided in the Notice of Bond Sale, the undersigned hereby designates the following 
maturities of Bonds, as shown below, as term bonds: 

BONDS MATURING IN YEARS 

FIRST YEAR THROUGH LAST YEAR** 

______________  ______________ 

______________  ______________ 

______________  ______________ 

This bid is conditioned upon the use of municipal bond insurance ___ yes ___ no 
Bond insurer ___ Assured Guaranty   ___ Build America Mutual 
Bond insurance premium (to be paid by successful bidder) $____________ 

By submitting a bid, any bidder makes the representation that it understands Bond 
Counsel represents the City in the Bond transaction and, if such bidder has retained Bond 
Counsel in an unrelated matter, such bidder represents that the signatory to the bid is duly 
authorized to, and does, consent to and waive for and on behalf of such bidder any conflict of 
interest of Bond Counsel arising from any adverse position to the City in this matter; such 
consent and waiver shall supersede any formalities otherwise required in any separate 
understandings, guidelines or contractual arrangements between the bidder and Bond Counsel. 

This proposal is subject to all terms and conditions contained in the Notice of Bond Sale, 
and if the undersigned is the successful bidder, the undersigned will comply with all of the 
provisions contained in the Notice of Bond Sale.  The acceptance of this proposal by the City 
shall constitute a contract between the City and the successful bidder for purposes of complying 
with Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

                                                
** Last year to be maturity for term bonds. 



 

-D-3- 

The undersigned either agrees to provide a Funds Wire Transfer of $____________ by 
2:00 p.m., Central Standard Time, on September 12, 2018, if designated by the City as the 
successful bidder, or a cashier’s or certified check in that amount payable to the order of the City 
of Owensboro, Kentucky accompanies this proposal as an evidence of good faith. 

 By checking this box, the bidder is electing and agreeing to hold the offering price for the 
Bonds, as described under “Establishment of Issue Price” in the Notice of Bond Sale. 
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Submitted by the Following Firm as Account Manager: 

Firm Name: __________________________________  

Address: ____________________________________  

 ____________________________________________  

____________________________________________  

Phone: ______________________________________  

Fax: ________________________________________  

E-mail Address: _______________________________  

By: _________________________________________  
Authorized Signature 

In Association with the Following Account Members: 

____________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________  

 ____________________________________________  

ACCEPTANCE 

Pursuant to action duly taken by the Board of Commissioners of the City of Owensboro, 
Kentucky, the above proposal is hereby accepted this 12th day of September, 2018. 

CITY OF OWENSBORO, KENTUCKY 

By: ______________________________________  
Mayor, 

City of Owensboro 

By: ______________________________________  
Interim General Manager, 

Owensboro Municipal Utilities 
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